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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 20-F contains forwardkiog statements. A forward-looking statement g@ection about a future
event or result, and whether the statement comesdgrsubject to many risks and uncertainties.s&lsatements often can be identified by the
use of terms such as “may,” “will,” “expect,” “belie,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “approximate” ordatinue,” or the negative thereof. The
actual results or activities of the Company whElly differ from projected results or activitiestbe Company as described in this Annual
Report, and such differences could be material.

Forward-looking statements involve known and unknaisks, uncertainties and other factors that neyse the actual results and
performance of the Company to be different from fatyre results, performance and achievements sgpdeor implied by these statements
other words, our performance might be quite diffiéfeom what the forward-looking statements implou should review carefully all
information included in this Annual Report.

You should rely only on the forward-looking statertsethat reflect management's view as of the datt@iAnnual Report. We
undertake no obligation to publicly revise or updtitese forwardboking statements to reflect subsequent eventgranmstances. You shot
also carefully review the risk factors describedther documents we file from time to time with ®ecurities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC"). The Private Securities Reform Act of 199tains a safe harbor for forward-looking statet®ien which the Company relies in
making such disclosures. In connection with thefésharbor,” we are hereby identifying importardtéas that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those contained in any forddooking statements made by us or on our behgdictors that might cause such a
difference include, but are not limited to, thoggcdssed in the section entitled “Risk Factors”amtem 3. - Key Information.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND CURRENCY PRESENTATION

We prepare our consolidated financial statemengésaordance with accounting principles generalbyepted in the United States of
America and publish our financial statements intechiStates Dollars.

REFERENCES

In this Annual Report, “China” refers to all padfthe People's Republic of China other than thecib Administrative Region of
Hong Kong. The terms “Bonso,” “we,” “our,” “us,"The Group” and the “Company” refer to Bonso Elegits International Inc. and, where
the context so requires or suggests, our direciradicect subsidiaries. References to “dollars*d8$” are to United States Dollars, “HK$"
are to Hong Kong Dollars, “Euros” or “euro” arettee European Monetary Union's Currency, and “RME¥ to Chinese Renminbi.
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PART |
ltem 1. Identity of Directors, Senior Management ad Advisors
Not Applicable.
Item 2. Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable
Not Applicable.
Item 3. Key Information
A.  Selected Financial Data.

The selected consolidated financial data as of M&dg 2009 and 2010 and for each of the threelfiss ended March 31, 2010 are
derived from the Audited Consolidated Financiat&tzents and notes which appear elsewhere in thisi@rReport.

The Financial Statements are prepared in accordaiticggenerally accepted accounting principleshia Wnited States of America and
expressed in United States Dollars. The seleaiadatidated financial data set forth below as ofd&31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, and for each
of the two fiscal years in the period ended MarthZ007 have been derived from our audited conatgdifinancial statements that are not
included in this Annual Report. The selected ctidated financial data is qualified in their entirdoy reference to, and should be read in
conjunction with, the Consolidated Financial Stataeis and related notes included in the F pagds®finnual Report and Item 5, —
“Operating and Financial Review and Prospects’udet in this Annual Report.

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]




SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Statement of Operations Data

(in 000’s US$ except per shares and per share data)

Year Ended March 3:

2006 2007W(2) 200812 20093 20100
$ $ $ $ $

Net sales 64,54 48,27: 45,49¢ 40,37¢ 28,54
Cost of sale: (51,119 (40,309 (43,629 (34,707 (23,699
Gross margit 13,42¢ 7,96¢ 1,86 5,671 4,85(
Selling expense (2,111 (874) (720) (649) (375)
Salaries and related co: (5,68]) (3,019) (3,54)) (3,777) (2,539
Research and development exper (847) (989) (883) (792 (580)
Administration and general expen: (3,42)) (1,655 (3,35)) (4,602 (2,012
Amortization of brand nam (200 (200) (200 - -
Impairment of goodwil (25¢) - (8439) - -
Impairment of brand narr - - (1,597 - -
Impairment on share investme - - (20C - -
Income (loss) from operatiol 911 1,23¢ (9,469 (4,149 (655)
Interest incom 202 30¢ 19¢ 12¢ 108
Interest expense (509) (122) (44¢) (209) (69)
Foreign exchange gain (los (184 (193 (431) (279 (522)
Gain on disposal of proper - - 3,12¢ 162 -
Other income (expense 19C (23¢€) 592 70€ 62C
Income (loss) before income taxes and minorityrggt 61= 997 (6,439 (3,647) (523)
Income tax (expense) bene (237) (911) 341 (208) 9
Net income (loss) before minority intert 484 87 (6,092) (3,850 (532)
Income (loss) from continuing operatic - 87 (6,092) (3,850 (532)
Loss from discontinued operatio - (1,45¢) (2,45¢) (3,739 (12€)
Net income (loss 484 (1,37)) (8,550 (7,589 (65¢)
Earnings per share

-Basic $ 0.0¢
-Diluted $ 0.0¢
Earnings (loss) per share

-Continuing operation $ 0.01 $ (1.09 $ 079 $ (0.1
-Discontinued operatior $ (0.2¢) (0.449 (0.72) (0.09)

-Total $ (0.2%) (1.59 (1.4%) (0.1%)
Weighted average shar 5,577,63! 5,577,63! 5,577,63! 5,246,90: 5,246,90:
Diluted weighted average shai 5,937,64. 5,937,64. 5,577,63 5,246,90: 5,246,90:

(1) The diluted net loss per share was the santeedsasic net loss per share for the fiscal yeaded March 31, 2007, 2008, 2009
and 2010 as all potential ordinary shares includigstock options are anti-dilutive and therefexeluded from the computation of
diluted net loss per share.

(2) The statement of operations for fiscal yeadeel March 31, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 presentincing and discontinued
operation in conjunction with the Consolidated icial Statements.

(3) The statement of operations for fiscal yeatesghMarch 31, 2009 was restated in conjunction thiéhConsolidated Financial
Statements.




Balance Sheet Data
(in 000’s US$ except per shares and per share data)

March 31,
2006 2007® 2008™) 2009 2010
$ $ $ $ $
Cash and cash equivalel 8,582 8,11¢ 9,65¢ 8,04« 8,08t
Working capital of continuing operatio 16,94¢ 16,84: 11,81t 11,24« 10,53¢
Total assets of continuing operatic - - 34,04 25,62( 23,48¢
Total assets of discontinued operati - - 7,742 3,81¢ 20C
Total asset 49,47¢ 47,51¢ 41,78¢ 29,43¢ 23,68
Current liabilities of continuing operatio 15,657 16,39« 11,99( 6,99: 6,78¢
Long-term debts and capital leas - 59 184 52 -
Deferred income tax asst 83 87 22 - -
Total liabilities of continuing operatior - - 14,77+ 9,654 9,40¢
Total liabilities of discontinued operatio - - 6,107 5,78 1,09¢
Common stocl 17 17 17 17 17
Shareholde’ equity 33,80z 31,05: 20,90¢ 13,99¢ 13,187
Dividends declared per she 0.0t - - - -

(1) The selected financial data for balance sheetscal years ended March 31, 2007, 2008, 2&@®2010 present continuing and
discontinuing operations in conjunction with thenSolidated Financial Statements.

Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following risksgether with all other information included ingbAnnual Report. The realization
of any of the risks described below could have &enal adverse effect on our business, resultgefations and future prospects.

Political, Legal, Economic and Other Uncertaintieof Operations in China and Hong Kong

We Could Face Increased Currency Risks If ChinasDdet Maintain The Stability Of The Hong Kong Dolha the Chinese
Renminbi The Hong Kong Dollar and the United States Ddllave been fixed at approximately 7.80 Hong Kongldd®to 1.00 U.S. Dollar
since 1983. From 1994 until July 2005, the ChirReeminbi had remained stable against the U.SabDatl approximately 8.28 to 1.00 U.S.
Dollar. On July 21, 2005, the Chinese currencymegwas altered to link the RMB to a “basket ofreuacies,” which includes the U.S. Dollar,
Euro, Japanese Yen and Korean Won. Under the, thiefRMB is allowed to move 0.3% on a daily bagjainst the U.S. Dollar. The People's
Bank of China, on May 21 2007, widened the RMBitrgdband from 0.3% daily movement against the D@&lar to 0.5%. As of October 4,
2010, the RMB was valued at 6.69121 per U.S. Dol@an June 19, 2010, the People’s Bank of Chireasgld a statement indicating that they
would "proceed further with reform of the RMB exalge rate regime and increase the RMB exchangdleatbility.” Any significant
revaluation of the RMB may materially and adversafgct our cash flows, revenues, earnings andhéiiz position, and the value of, and any
dividends payable to our common shareholders in DdBars. In addition, the Chinese governmentticwres to receive significant
international pressure to further liberalize itsreacy policy and as a result may further changeutrency policy. The Chinese government in
the past has expressed its intention in the Bagie to maintain the stability of the Hong Kong cueg after the sovereignty of Hong Kong \
transferred to China in July 1997. However, thezne be no assurance that titéong Kong Dollar will remain pegged against the \D8llar
or the Chinese Renminbi will not be allowed to fluate more than 0.5% on a daily basis. If theemtrexchange rate mechanism is changed,
we shall face increased currency risks, which cbialde a material adverse effect upon the Company.
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We Face Significant Risks If The Chinese Govern@kahges Its Policies, Laws, Regulations, Tax 8ire¢ Or Its Current
Interpretations Of Its Laws, Rules And RegulatiBesating To Our Operations In ChinaOur manufacturing facility is located in China. As
result, our operations and assets are subjeagnifisant political, economic, legal and other uriamties. Changes in policies by the Chinese
government resulting in changes in laws or regoitegtior the interpretation of laws or regulatiormfescatory taxation, changes in employm
restrictions, restrictions on imports and sourdesupply, import duties, corruption, currency raxation or the expropriation of private
enterprise could materially and adversely affect@ser the past several years, the Chinese gowsrnhas pursued economic reform policies
including the encouragement of private economiiwviigtand greater economic decentralization. & thinese government does not continue
to pursue its present policies that encouragedarigivestment and operations in China, or if theséeies are either not successful or are
significantly altered, then our business operationShina could be adversely affected. We coulehelve subject to the risk of nationalization,
which could result in the total loss of investminthat country. Following the Chinese governmegmpblicy of privatizing many state-owned
enterprises, the Chinese government has attemptaaiment its revenues through increased tax tialfecContinued efforts to increase tax
revenues could result in increased taxation exgebsig incurred by us. Economic development nealyrbited as well by the imposition of
austerity measures intended to reduce inflatiomjiiadequate development of infrastructure angbthential unavailability of adequate power
and water supplies, transportation and communiesgtidf for any reason we were required to moveroanufacturing operations outside of
China, our profitability would be substantially iaiped, our competitiveness and market position ddnel materially jeopardized and we might
have to discontinue our operations.

Our Results Have Been Affected By The Recent Glatmalomic Downturn and We Expect Results will Comtito be
Affected. Between 2008 and 2010, global economic conditlmave experienced a significant downturn fromettfiects of the subprime
mortgage crisis, general credit crisis, variouskoamd institutional failures, collateral effects thie finance and banking industries, volatile
energy costs, slower economic activity, decreasedumer confidence and spending, reduced corpprafiés and adverse business
conditions. These conditions make it difficult faur customers, our vendors and us to forecaspkamdfuture business activities or expansion
accurately. They have caused and may continuauseccompanies worldwide to reduce spending géyeaad our customers to reduce
ordering and spending on our products specificdliyarders from our customers continue to shriekduse of these macroeconomic effects,
our business, financial condition and results adragions will in turn likely be materially and adsely affected.




We cannot predict the time required for full econonecovery in the electronics manufacturing indugt which we
operate. Therefore, management has focused ostrategy to improve production efficiencies, braader product range, and penetrate new
markets. We plan to continue to concentrate onaied overhead costs and improving resources atitin. These actions will increase our
profitability and new products development to et requirements from customers.

The economy of China has been experiencing signifigrowth, leading to some inflation. If the gavaent tries to control inflation
by traditional means of monetary policy or retutoplanned economic techniques, our business ufiésa reduction in sales growth and
expansion opportunitiesThe rapid growth of the PRC economy has histogiaa@sulted in high levels of inflation. If the gevament tries to
control inflation, it may have an adverse effectlo@ business climate and growth of private enigegn the PRC. An economic slowdown
may reduce our revenues. If inflation is allowegtoceed unchecked, our costs would likely inareand there can be no assurance that we
would be able to increase our prices to an extettwould offset the increase in our expenses.

Changes to PRC tax laws and heightened effortedhina’s tax authorities to increase revenueseagected to subject us to
greater taxes Under PRC law before 2008, we were afforded a rarrobtax concessions by, and tax refunds fromn&hitax authorities on
substantial portion of our operations in China &yvesting all or part of the profits attributaltbeour PRC manufacturing operations. Howe
on March 16, 2007, the Chinese government enactmidfiad enterprise income tax law or EIT, whictcame effective on January 1, 2008.
Prior to the EIT, as a foreign invested enterprig¢ FIE”, located in Shenzhen of the PRC, our PRBsidiaries enjoyed a national income tax
rate of 15% and were exempted from the 3% localrimetax. The preferential tax treatment to our sliduses in the PRC of qualifying for tax
refunds as a result of reinvesting their profitmed in previous years in the PRC also expiredaonudry 1, 2008. Under the EIT, apart from
those qualified as high-tech enterprises, most dtimenterprises and FIEs will be subject to alsiffRC enterprise income tax rate of 25% in
year 2012 and afterward. We base our tax positpmn the anticipated nature and conduct of oumassi and upon our understanding of
tax laws of the various administrative regions aadntries in which we have assets or conduct dietsviHowever, our tax position is subjec
review and possible challenge by taxing authoried to possible changes in law, which may haveaetive effect. We cannot determine in
advance the extent to which some jurisdictions negyire us to pay taxes or make payments in ligax#s.

We Face Risks By Operating In China, Because Tlme€& Legal System Relating To Foreign InvestmedtFreign Operations
Such As Bonso’s Is Evolving And The ApplicatioilCifiese Laws Is UncertainThe legal system of China relating to foreign inagnts is
continually evolving, and there can be no certaagyo the application of its laws and regulationgarticular instances. The Chinese legal
system is a civil law system based on written $stuUnlike common law systems, it is a systemvhiich decided legal cases have little
precedential value. In 1979, the Chinese governimegan to promulgate a comprehensive system of éad regulations governing economic
matters in general. Legislation over the past&iry has significantly enhanced the protectiorw@did to various forms of foreign investment
in China. Enforcement of existing laws or agreetsemay be sporadic and implementation and inteaificet of laws inconsistent. The Chin
judiciary is relatively inexperienced in enforcitige laws that exist, leading to a higher than udegtee of uncertainty as to the outcome of
litigation. Even where adequate law exists in @hibhmay not be possible to obtain swift and ethlé enforcement of that law. Further,
various disputes may be subject to the exercismndiderable discretion by agencies of the Chigesernment, and forces and factors
unrelated to the legal merits of a particular nrattedispute may influence their determination.n@ued uncertainty relating to the laws in
China and the application of the laws could haweaterial adverse effect upon us and our operatio@ina.




We Could Be Adversely Affected If China Change&dtmomic Policies In The Shenzhen Special Econdarie Where We Operat
In August 1980, the Chinese government passed ‘Biegus for The Special Economy Zone of GuangdoruyiRce” and officially designate
a portion of Shenzhen as The Shenzhen Special BgoAone. Foreign enterprises in these areas lidrafi greater economic autonomy and
special tax incentives than enterprises in otheispgd China. Changes in the policies or laws gowe The Shenzhen Special Economy Zone
could have a material adverse effect on us. Ma@eaconomic reforms and growth in China have lmeere successful in certain provinces
than others, and the continuation or increaseeaseldisparities could affect the political or sbstability of China, which could have a mate
adverse effect on us and our operations near Skanzh

Controversies Affecting China’s Trade With The BaiStates Could Harm Our Results Of Operations €press Our Stock Price.
While China has been granted permanent mostéauvaation trade status in the United States thraisgimtry into the World Trade
Organization, controversies between the UnitedeStahd China may arise that threaten the statugwgalying trade between the United St
and China. These controversies could materiallyadversely affect our business by, among othagthicausing our products in the United
States to become more expensive, resulting inw@ctioh in the demand for our products by custonretie United States, which would have a
material adverse effect upon us and our resultpefations. Further, political or trade frictioatlveen the United States and China, whether or
not actually affecting our business, could alsoarmally and adversely affect the prevailing manete of our common shares.

If Our Sole Factory Were Destroyed Or Significaigmaged As A Result of Fire, Flood Or Some Othauidl Disaster, We Would
Be Adversely Affecte. All of our products are manufactured at our niaawring facility located in Shenzhen, China. eMighting and
disaster relief or assistance in China may notsbdeaeloped as in Western countries. We currendiyntain property damage insurance
aggregating approximately $25.55 million covering stock in trade, goods and merchandise, furngmcequipment and buildings. We do
not maintain business interruption insurance. $tme are cautioned that material damage to, dio®eof, our factory due to fire, severe
weather, flood or other act of God or cause, ef/ersured, could have a material adverse effeaarfinancial condition, results of operatio
business and prospects.

Our Results Could Be Harmed If We Have To Compti Wew Environmental RegulationgOur operations create some
environmentally sensitive waste that may increagée future depending on the nature of our manufay operations. The general issue of
the disposal of hazardous waste has received siogeattention from China’s national and local goweents and foreign governments and
agencies and has been subject to increasing regulaDur business and operating results could aerally and adversely affected if we were
to increase expenditures to comply with any newirenmental regulations affecting our operations.
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Future Changes In The Labor Laws In China May Rdsurhe Continued Increase In Labor CostBetween the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2007 and 2010, we experienced an inciedbe cost of labor caused by the increase imtimmum hourly rate. According to the
new minimum wage set by the local authorities inyN@10, we have the increased the minimum wag&fmwr from RMB 900 (or
approximately $132) per month to RMB 1100 (or apprmtely $162) per month, starting from July 1, @0MWe believe that increased labor
costs in China will have a significant effect omr tatal production costs and results of operatimmd that we will not be able to continue to
increase our production at our manufacturing faciiithout substantially increasing our non-prodoictsalaries and related costs. This
increase in minimum wage will increase our labastsdoy 22% or approximately $870,000 annually. Astyre changes in the labor laws in
the PRC could result in our having to pay incredabdr costs. There can be no assurance thaaloe laws will not change, which may have
a material adverse effect upon our business andesuits of operations.

If We Were To Lose Our Existing Banking Facilit@xsThose Facilities Were Substantially Decreased €8s Favorable Terms Were
Imposed Upon Us, The Company Could Be Materially Adversely AffectedWe maintain banking facilities with a number offdient
banks, which are typically subject to renewal oraanual basis. Certain of our short-term bank Idaas aggregating approximately $14.7
million) were renewed subsequent to our fiscal yeat.

We use our banking facilities to fund our workirapital requirements. In recent months, the cmeditkets in Hong Kong and
throughout the world have tightened and experiemogiciordinary volatility and uncertainty. We hawad discussion with several of our ba
and believe that the availability of our bankingifi¢ies will continue on terms that are acceptableis. However, as a result of changes in the
capital or other legal requirements applicabléhehianks that provide our banking facilities oouf financial position and operations were to
deteriorate further, our costs of borrowing couldréase or the terms of our banking facilities ddéd changed so as to impact our liquidity. If
we are unable to obtain needed capital on termepéaiole to us, our business, financial conditiesults of operations and cash flows could be
materially adversely affected.

Risk Factors Relating to Our Business

We Depend Upon Our Largest Customers For A Sigmifi@ortion Of Our Sales Revenue, And We Cann@eBtain That Sales To
These Customers Will Continue. If Sales To Thesto@ers Do Not Continue, Then Our Sales Will Dechnd Our Business Will Be
Negatively Impacted.Traditionally, we have relied upon five customersd significant portion of our sales during thecéil year. During the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2008, 2009, and 2i0same five customers accounted for approxim&24yg, 83% and 84% of sales,
respectively. During the fiscal year ended Marth2010, 57% of our sales were to a single custqdt® during the fiscal year ended March
31, 2009). We do not enter into long-term consadgth our customers but manufacture based upachpse orders and therefore cannot be
certain that sales to these customers will contiritige loss of any of our largest customers woildely have a material negative impact on our
sales revenue and our business.
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Defects In Our Products Could Impair Our Ability Bell Our Products Or Could Result In Litigationd®ther Significant Costs.
Detection of any significant defects in our produatay result in, among other things, delay in tivenarket, loss of market acceptance and
sales of our products, diversion of developmentueses, injury to our reputation, or increased ety costs. Because our products are
complex, they may contain defects that cannot bectied prior to shipment. These defects could farnreputation, which could result in
significant costs to us and could impair our apild sell our products. The costs we may incurdrrecting any product defects may be
substantial and could decrease our profit margins.

Since certain of our products are used in appboatthat are integral to our customdrgsinesses, errors, defects, or other perforn
problems could result in financial or other damatgesur customers, which would likely result in adse effects upon our business with these
customers. If we were involved in any productiligblitigation, even if it were unsuccessfulvitould be time-consuming and costly to
defend. Further, our product liability insurancaymmot be adequate to cover claims.

Our Sales Through Retail Merchants Result In SeaggnSusceptibility To A Downturn In The Retadldaomy And Sales Variances
Resulting From Retail Promotional Program:Many of our other customers sell to retail merchamccordingly, these portions of our
customer base are susceptible to a further dowiutire retail economy. A greater number of olesaf scales and telecommunications
products occur between the months of April and &aper for shipment in the summer in preparatiothefChristmas holiday. Throughout"
remainder of the year, our products do not appehetsubject to significant seasonal variation weleer, past sales patterns may not be
indicative of future performance. A significantrion of our sales in Europe is attributable to phemotional programs of our retail industry
customers. These promotional programs resuliginifstant orders by customers who do not carrymoducts on a regular basis. We cannot
assure you that promotional purchases by our rieghilstry customers will be repeated regularlyatoall. Further, our promotional sales could
cause our quarterly results to vary significanfiyhe reduction in promotional purchases would {ikehve a material adverse effect upon our
results of operations.

Our Customers Are Dependent On Shipping Comparae®Elivery Of Our Products, And Interruptions Thifging Could
Materially And Adversely Affect Our Business An@&@apng Results. Typically, we sell our products either F.O.B. Hdfgng or Yantian
(Shenzhen), and our customers are responsibladdransportation of products from Hong Kong or tam (Shenzhen) to their final
destinations. Our customers rely on a varietyaofiers for product transportation through variewsld ports. A work stoppage, strike or
shutdown of one or more major ports or airportddoesult in shipping delays materially and advirsdfecting our customers, which in turn
could have a material adverse effect on our busiaed operating results. Similarly, an increadegight surcharges due to rising fuel costs or
general price increases could materially and aéleedfect our business and operating results.
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Customer Order Estimates May Not Be Indicative €fiAl Future Sales.Some of our customers have provided us with foteaafs
their requirements for our products over a peribtinoe. We make many management decisions baséiese customer estimates, including
purchasing materials, hiring personnel, and otheitens that may increase our production capacitycasts. If a customer reduces its orders
from prior estimates after we have increased oodytion capabilities and costs, this reduction megrease our net sales and we may not be
able to reduce our costs to account for this rédndh customer orders. Many customers do notideus with forecasts of their requirements
for our products. If those customers place sigaift orders, we may not be able to increase outustmn quickly enough to fulfill the
customers’ orders. The inability to fulfill custemorders could damage our relationships with ensts and reduce our net sales.

Pressure By Our Customers To Reduce Prices AndeAgpd_ong-Term Supply Arrangements May Cause OuShles Or Profit
Margins To Decline. Our customers are under pressure to reduce prichsioproducts. Therefore, we expect to expexdeimcreasing
pressure from our customers to reduce the pricesioproducts. Continuing pressure to reduce thoe pf our products could have a material
adverse effect upon our business and operatindgtsesDur customers frequently negotiate supplgragements with us well in advance of
placing orders for delivery within a year, therebguiring us to commit to price reductions beforeaan determine if we can achieve the
assumed cost reductions. We believe we must realwceanufacturing costs and obtain higher volunges to offset declining average sales
prices. Further, if we are unable to offset deéctiraverage sales prices, our gross profit mangitiglecline, which would have a material
adverse effect upon our results of operations.

We Depend Upon Our Key Personnel And The Loss @Kag Personnel, Or Our Failure To Attract And Retdey Personnel,
Could Adversely Affect Our Future Performance, udahg Product Development, Strategic Plans, Marig#nd Other ObjectivesThe loss
or failure to attract and retain key personnel daignificantly impede our performance, includirrgguct development, strategic plans,
marketing and other objectives. Our success deptena substantial extent not only on the ability axperience of our senior management,
but particularly upon Anthony So, our Chairmanhe Board. We do not have key man life insuranc®lorSo. To the extent that the servi
of Mr. So would be unavailable to us, we would bguired to obtain another person to perform theedr. So otherwise would perform. \
may be unable to employ another qualified persdh thie appropriate background and expertise t@oepMr. So on terms suitable to us.

Certain Subsidiaries Of The Company Received Onggghquiries From The Local Tax Authorities Durifilge Year. If The
Subsidiaries Were Finally Held Liable For Such Amtaial Taxation, Our Consolidated Net Income An@ Walue Of Your Investment Could
Be Substantially Reduce During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2008.928@d 2010, certain of our subsidiaries were, amticued to be,
subject to enquiries from the local tax authoriti€ipon the adoption of ASC 740 (formerly FIN 48 ¢ccounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No.,109 FIN 48, the Company recorded a provision mp@ximately $2,164,000 in relation
to uncertain tax positions as of April 1, 2007.eTdssessment is subject to final determinatiorhbydcal tax authorities and may be different
from what we have recorded as a provision. As stielre can be no assurance that the enquiry ailtesult in imposing additional income
expense on the Group, which could have a matetiarae effect upon the Group and its results ofaijmns.
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Contractual Arrangements We Have Entered Into Amdsigind Our Subsidiaries May Be Subject To ScriBinyrhe Respective Tax
Authorities And A Finding That Bonso And Its Suiasids Owe Additional Taxes Could Substantially &exlOur Consolidated Net Incor
And The Value Of Your Investme We could face material and adverse tax consequdttesrespective tax authorities determine that t
contractual arrangements among our subsidiarie®ando do not represent an arm’s length price afpgsaBonso’s, or any of its subsidiaries’
income in the form of a transfer pricing adjustmeBbnso did not consider the need to make taxigi@vin this respect. However, there can
be no assurance that the assessment performed hycti tax authorities will result in the sameifioa. A transfer pricing adjustment could,
among other things, result in a reduction, forggaxrposes, of expense deductions recorded by Barsoyoof its subsidiaries, which could in
turn increase its tax liabilities. In additionettax authorities may impose late payment feesotmel penalties on our affiliated entities for
underpaid taxes. Our consolidated net income reaynéterially and adversely affected if our afféidtentities’ tax liabilities increase or if they
are found to be subject to late payment fees @rqgibnalties.

Increased Prices For Raw Materials May Have A Negatmpact Upon Us.During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 20@B,
the costs of component parts increased due tmtnedse in the price of oil used in the producibnomponents such as plastic resin, steel anc
other raw materials. During the fiscal years eniliedich 31, 2009 and 2010, we did not experienceeased prices for raw materials we used
in manufacturing our products. However, if oilga$ increase in the future, it will likely resuitan increase in the costs of components to us,
as well as an increase in our operating expendg@shwnay have a material adverse effect upon osinkss and results of operations.

We May Face An Increased Shortage Of Factory Werk@&uring the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 ar@B2@e experienced
labor shortages for factory workers. During trsedil year ended March 31, 2009, we reduced our auofifactory workers due to the
decrease in demand for our products. Furtheradaaed our labor requirements by subcontractingaone production processes during the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2009. During the fisesr ended March 31, 2010, we increased the nuoflmer factory workers compared to
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009. There camobassurance that we will not experience an ise@aeed for workers in China in the
future or that we can adequately staff the factdrige inability to adequately staff our factory tthhave a material adverse impact on
production, which could lead to delays in shipmeamtmissed sales. In the event that we have delay&ost sales, we may need to deliver
goods by air at our cost to ensure that our predaictve on time, which would likely result in arcrease in air freight costs and vendor fines
and could result in missed sales, any of whichdtalve a material adverse effect upon our busiaed®ur results from operations. We int
to monitor the quality of goods from outsourcingotigh our incoming quality control process; howeves cannot guarantee the ability of our
subcontractors to deliver goods on time.
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Recent changes in the PRC's labor law could pee@ianso if it needs to make additional workforauions. In June 2007, the
National Peopl's Congress of the PRC enacted new labor law letifisl called the Labor Contract Law, which becafffecéve on January 1,
2008. It formalizes workers’ rights concerning diree hours, pensions, layoffs, employment consracid the role of trade
unions. Considered as one of the strictest labws lin the world, among other things, this new teguires an employer to conclude an “open-
ended employment contract” with any employee whioegeihas worked for the employer for 10 years oraxaw has had two consecutive fixed-
term contracts. An “open-ended employment cornitiadh effect a lifetime, permanent contract, whis terminable only in specified
circumstances, such as a material breach of théoges rules and regulations, or for a serioustietion of duty. Under the new law,
downsizing by 20% or more of each individual entitgy occur only under specified circumstances, sisca restructuring undertaken purst
China’s Enterprise Bankruptcy Law, or where a comypsuffers serious difficulties in production andbwisiness operations. Also, if we lay
off more than 20 employees at one time, we haw®tomunicate with the labor union of our Company sembrt to the District Labor
Bureau. During the fiscal year ended March 31,020 recognized a provision for severance payme$658,779 in anticipation of reducing
our full workforce in Shenzhen, PRC as we transitaperations to a new factory in Xinxing (20098%438). This accrued severance
payment allowance is reviewed every year. We mayrimuch higher costs under China’s labor lawsgsifare forced to downsize again and
accordingly, this new labor law may exacerbatesttieerse effect of the economic environment on imantial results and financial condition.

We Face Increasing Competition In Our Industry Afaly Not Be Able To Successfully Compete With Ouanggditors. Our busines
is in an industry that is becoming increasingly petitive, and many of our competitors, both loaad international, have substantially greater
technical, financial and marketing resources tharhave, and as a result, we may be unable to cerspetessfully with these
competitors. We compete with scale manufacturetie Far East, the United States, and Europe béleve that our principal competitors in
the scale and telecommunications market are ottiginal equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) and origirdgdsign manufacturer (“ODM”)
manufacturers, and all companies engaged in threlbch ODM and OEM business. Both the scale antetkeommunications markets are
highly competitive, and we face pressures on pgieind lower margins as evidenced by the declimeargins that we have experienced with
our scale and telecommunications products. Lowangins may affect our ability to cover our costjah could have a material negative
impact on our operations and our business.

We Are Controlled By Our Management, Whose Intévest Differ From Those Of The Other Shareholdefss of August 31, 2010,
Mr. Anthony So, our founder and Chairman, benelliciawns approximately 36.4% of the shares of cammon stock (including 330,736
shares that are held in treasury), including shanelerlying his outstanding options, or 29.2% withimcluding his outstanding options. Dut
his stock ownership, Mr. So may be in a positioel&rt the board of directors and, therefore, ttrod our business and affairs, including
certain significant corporate actions such as a&itjpms, the sale or purchase of assets and tharise and sale of our securities. Mr. So may
be able to prevent or cause a change in contrthleoCompany. We also may be prevented from emgténto transactions that could be
beneficial to us without Mr. So’s consent. Theenatt of our largest shareholder may differ fromititerests of other shareholders.
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Due to inherent limitations, there can be no asageathat our system of disclosure and internal mdstand procedures will be
successful in preventing all errors or fraud, oriirfiorming management of all material informationa timely manner. Our disclosure
controls and internal controls and procedures nmyprevent all errors and all fraud. A controlteys, no matter how well conceived and
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absasteirance that the objectives of the controksystre met. Further, the design of a control
system reflects that there are resource constraintsthe benefits of controls must be considesttive to their costs. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluatidircontrols can provide absolute assurance thaboalirol issues and instances of fraud, if any,
within the company have been or will be detect&blese inherent limitations include the realitiest fludgments in decision-making can be
faulty and that breakdowns can occur simply becafiseror or mistake. Additionally, controls cae tircumvented by the individual acts of
some persons, by collusion of two or more peopleyatircumvention of the internal control procedur& he design of any system of controls
also is based in part upon certain assumptionstabeuikelihood of future events, and there cambeassurance that any design will succe
achieving its stated goals under all potentialfeittonditions; over time, a control may become éuphte because of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdaces may deteriorate. Because of the inhereiitaliions in a cost-effective control system,
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur aaylmot be detected.

Compliance Costs With The Securities Laws And Régok Pursuant To The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20li2ntrease Our Costs
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that became lawlinn 2002 has required changes in some of our catp@overnance, securities disclosure,
accounting and compliance practices. In respanfieetrequirements of that act, the Securitiesearahange Commission and NASDAQ have
promulgated new rules on a variety of subjectsmf@l@nce with these rules, as well as with the &aels-Oxley Act of 2002, including but not
limited to compliance with Section 404 that regsinreanagement to assess the effectiveness ofétmaitcontrol over financial reporting, has
increased our legal, financial and accounting ¢c@sid we expect the cost of compliance with these mules to be permanent. Further, the
rules may increase the expenses associated witthir@ator and officer liability insurance.

Our Operating Results And Stock Price Are SubjeciVide Fluctuations. Our quarterly and annual operating results dectdfd by ¢
wide variety of factors that could materially ardvarsely affect net sales, gross profit and prbiiitg. This could result from any one or a
combination of factors, many of which are beyonda@antrol. Results of operations in any periodudtianot be considered indicative of resi
to be expected in any future period, and fluctuettim operating results may also result in fludoret in the market price of our common stock.
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Our Results Could Be Affected By Changes In Cuyr&xchange RatesChanges in currency rates involving the Hong Kdaliar
or Chinese Renminbi could increase our expensesingpthe fiscal years ended March 31, 2008, 20@b2010, our financial results were
affected by currency fluctuations, resulting irotat foreign exchange loss of approximately $43Q,@279,000 and $522,000,
respectively. Generally, our revenues are coltbitdJnited States Dollars. Our costs and expeasepaid in United States Dollars, Hong
Kong Dollars, and Chinese Renminbi. We face aetyiof risks associated with changes among thévelaalue of these
currencies. Appreciation of the Chinese Renmighiigst the Hong Kong Dollar and the United Stateidd would increase our expenses
when translated into United States Dollars anddaudterially and adversely affect our margins awlits of operations. If the trend of
Chinese Renminbi appreciation continues againstithreg Kong Dollar and the United States Dollar, operating costs will further increase
and our financial results will be adversely affectén addition, a significant devaluation in thei@se Renminbi or Hong Kong Dollar could
have a material adverse effect upon our resultpefations. If we determined to pass onto ourarusts through price increases the effect of
increases in the Chinese Renminbi relative to thegKong Dollar and the United States Dollar, itlebmake our products more expensivi
global markets, such as the United States anduh@p&an Union. This could result in the loss aftomers, who may seek, and be able to
obtain, products and services comparable to theseffer in lower-cost regions of the world. If wig not increase our prices to pass on the
effect of increases in the Chinese Renminbi redativthe Hong Kong Dollar and the United Statedddpbur margins and profitability would
suffer.

Protection And Infringement Of Intellectual PropertWe have no patents, licenses, franchises, cooosssr royalty agreements tt
are material to our business. We have obtaineald@mark registration in Hong Kong for the marksNEE®D and MODUS in connection with
certain electronic apparatus. Unauthorized pantiag attempt to copy aspects of our products detraarks or to obtain and use information
that we regard as proprietary. Policing unautteatiase of our products is difficult. Our meangwftecting our proprietary rights may not be
adequate. In addition, the laws of some foreigmtides do not protect our proprietary rights ta@esat an extent as do the laws of the United
States. Our failure to adequately protect our pedary rights may allow third parties to duplicater products or develop functionally
equivalent or superior technology. In addition; competitors may independently develop similahtexdogy or design around our proprietary
intellectual property.

Further, we may be notified that we are infringpagents, trademarks, copyrights or other intell@ghuoperty rights owned by other
parties. In the event of an infringement claim,may be required to spend a significant amountafiey to develop a non-infringing
alternative or to obtain licenses. We may notuxsssful in developing such an alternative oriabig a license on reasonable terms, if at
all. Any litigation, even without merit, could ndsin substantial costs and diversion of resousres could have a material adverse affect on
our business and results of operations.

Cancellations Or Delays In Orders Could Materiafynd Adversely Affect Our Gross Margins And Opematicome. Sales to our
OEM customers are primarily based on purchase smderreceive from time to time rather than firrmdeterm purchase
commitments. Although it is our general practicg@tirchase raw materials only upon receiving almse order, for certain customers we will
occasionally purchase raw materials based on sustiormerstolling forecasts. Further, during times of potaintomponent shortages we hi
purchased, and may continue to purchase, raw ralstamd component parts in the expectation of veéggpurchase orders for products that
use these components. In the event actual purcheses are delayed, are not received or are dadc&le would experience increased
inventory levels or possible write-downs of raw aré&l inventory that could materially and adversaffgct our business and operating results.
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We Generally Have No Written Agreements With Sergplio Obtain Components, And Our Margins And OtregeResults Could
Suffer From Increases In Component Pricéale are typically responsible for purchasing comgras used in manufacturing products for our
customers. We generally do not have written agezegsnwith our suppliers of components. This tyfyoesults in our bearing the risk of
component price increases because we may be uiogiecure the required materials at a price leeelessary to generate anticipated margins
from the orders of our customers. Prices of corsptsimay increase in the future for a variety asoms. Accordingly, additional increases in
component prices could materially and adverselgcafbur gross margins and results from operations.

Certain Legal Consequences of Foreign Incorporatiomnd Operations

Judgments Against The Company And Management M&yff8ailt To Obtain Or Enforce. We are a holding corporation organized
as an International Business Company under the ¢dtvee British Virgin Islands, and our principglerating subsidiaries are organized under
the laws of Hong Kong and the laws of the PeogR&public of China. Our principal executive offi@® located in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China. Outside the Unitede3tait may be difficult for investors to enforeglgments obtained against us in actions
brought in the United States, including actiongdpgrated upon the civil liability provisions of Uei States federal securities laws. In addition,
most of our officers and directors reside outsidelWnited States, and the assets of these persotarated outside of the United States. As a
result, it may not be possible for investors teeffservice of process within the United Stateswutpese persons, or to enforce against the
Company or these persons judgments predicated thediability provisions of United States federatarities laws. Our Hong Kong counsel
and our British Virgin Islands counsel have adviseat there is substantial doubt as to the enfditiBaagainst us or any of our directors or
officers in original actions or in actions for erdement of judgments of United States courts imddor liability based on the civil liability
provisions of United States federal securities laws

Because We Are Incorporated In The British Virgilahds, You May Not Have The Same Protections ae&biders Of U.S.
Corporations. We are organized under the laws of the BritistgWii Islands. Principles of law relating to masteffecting the validity of
corporate procedures, the fiduciary duties of oanagement, directors and controlling shareholdsaslze rights of our shareholders differ
from, and may not be as protective of shareholdsrshose that would apply if we were incorporatea jurisdiction within the United
States. Our directors have the power to take icestetions without shareholder approval, includamyending our Memorandum or Articles of
Association, which are the terms used in the BriXigrgin Islands for a corporation’s charter andawys, respectively, and approving certain
fundamental corporate transactions, including raoizations, certain mergers or consolidations hedsale or transfer of assets. In addition,
there is doubt that the courts of the British Mirgglands would enforce liabilities predicated updmited States federal securities laws.
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Future Issuances Of Preference Shares Could Mdlgdand Adversely Affect The Holders Of Our Comi8bares Or Delay Or
Prevent A Change Of ControlOur Memorandum and Articles of Association provide ability to issue an aggregate of 10,000,000eshaf
preferred stock in four classes. While currenttypneferred shares are  issued or outstandingnayeissue preferred shares in the
future. Future issuance of preferred shares coalrially and adversely affect the rights of tieédlers of our common shares, dilute the
common shareholders’ holdings or delay or prevesitamge of control.

Our Shareholders Do Not Have The Same Protectiariaformation Generally Available To ShareholderslDS. Corporations
Because The Reporting Requirements For Foreigralrilssuers Are More Limited Than Those Applicdlddublic Corporations Organize
In The United State: We are a foreign private issuer within the megrmifirules promulgated under the Securities Exchakg of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”). We are not subject to certainyisimns of the Exchange Act applicable to Unitedt& public companies including: the
rules under the Exchange Act requiring the filinghvthe SEC of quarterly reports on Form 10-Q arent reports on Form E; the sections ¢
the Exchange Act regulating the solicitation ofyes, consents or authorizations in respect taargg registered under the Exchange Act and
the sections of the Exchange Act requiring insiderfle public reports of their stock ownershipdanading activities and establishing insider
liability for profits realized from any “short-swifi trading transaction (i.e., a purchase and salsale and purchase, of the issuer’s equity
securities within six months or less). Becauseveenot subject to these rules, our shareholderaarafforded the same protections or
information generally available to investors in ficicompanies organized in the United States.

Our Board’s Ability To Amend Our Charter Withouta®tholder Approval Could Have Anti-Takeover Efféldiat Could Prevent A
Change In Control. As permitted by the law of the British Virgin dslds, our Memorandum and Articles of Associatioly maamended by
our board of directors without shareholder approviiis includes amendments to increase or reducawthorized capital stock. Our board’s
ability to amend our charter documents without ghalder approval could have the effect of delaydejerring or preventing a change in
control of Bonso, including a tender offer to puask our common shares at a premium over the cunaniiet price.

We Have Not Paid Dividends Since 2007 And May MgtBividends In The Future We have not paid dividends on our Common

Stock since 2007, and we may not be able to dedigigends, or the board of directors may decidetaaleclare dividends in the future. We
will determine the amounts of any dividends whed #ithey are declared, in the future at the tirhdexclaration.
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Item 4. Information on the Company
History and Development of the Company

Bonso Electronics International Inc. was formeddagust 8, 1988 as a limited liability Internatior&isiness Company under the
laws of the British Virgin Islands under the nan@&ofden Virtue Limited.” On September 14, 1988, we changed our name to Bflestronic:
International, Inc. We operate under the BVI BassiCompanies Act.

Effective as of May 1, 2001 we acquired 100% ofehaity of Korona Haushaltswaren GmbH & Co. KG,ited liability partnership
registered in Germany (“Korona”). Korona marketasumer scale products throughout Europe to reithandisers and distributors. These
products feature contemporary designs using tlestiataterials and attractive packaging. Effedtilsech 31, 2009, we sold assets of Korona
to Beurer GmbH, including inventories, accountsereable, toolings and intellectual property right¥e are in the process of liquidating
Korona.

Effective as of August 1, 2002, we acquired 51%hefequity of Gram Precision Scales Inc. (“GrancRien”). Gram Precision is
primarily engaged in the distribution and marketirigpocket scales in the United States, CanadaEanope. Effective November 1, 2008, we
sold our 51% of the equity in Gram Precision to o hadani, the founder of Gram Precision.

In April 2007, we set up a new wholly-owned subsigj Bonso USA, Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Bob&A”) to focus on the sales
of industrial scales in the U.S. market. We arthinprocess of liquidating Bonso USA.

Our corporate administrative matters are conduittemligh our registered agent, HWR Services Limie@). Box 71, Road Town,
Tortola, British Virgin Islands. Our principal exdtive offices are located at Unit 1915-1916, 1®Elta House, 3 On Yiu Street, Shek Mun,
Shatin, Hong Kong. Our telephone number is 852526822, our facsimile number is 852-2691-1724,eunail address is info@bonso.com
and our website is www.bonso.com.

Our principal capital expenditures on propertynpkand equipment over the last two years are stt kelow:

2008 2009 2010
Property plant & equipment and land use rig $ 2558720 % 7153 % 490,53°

Our capital expenditures include the purchase afhim@ry used in the production of certain of owdurcts.

All of the foregoing capital expenditures were figad principally from internally generated funds.

In November, 2006, Bonso entered into a land pwelgreement with Xincheng Hi-Tech Industrial Estatacquire a piece of land
of 133,500 square meters for future expansion®Cbmpany’s operations in XinXing. This new pieféand of 133,500 square meters is
more than triple the size of the land upon whidgh@ompany's existing facilities are located in Sivem, China. The land transfer was

completed in 2009. The first phase of constructibthe new manufacturing facilities has commenaed the construction is expected to fir
in 2012.
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Business Overview

Bonso Electronics International Inc. designs, depg] produces and sells electronic sensor-basediagléss products for private
label Original Equipment Manufacturers (individyalOEM” or, collectively, “OEM's”), Original BrandManufacturers (individually “OBM”
or, collectively, “OBM's”) and Original Design Mafacturers (individually “ODM” or, collectively, “OM's”).

Since 1989, we have manufactured all of our pradincChina in order to take advantage of the loswerhead costs and competitive
labor rates. Our factory is currently located lre8zhen, China, about 50 miles from Hong Kong. ddrevenient location permits us to easily
manage manufacturing operations from Hong Kongfaaititates transportation of our products out &iirga through the ports of Hong Kong
and Yantian (Shenzhen).

Products

Our sensor-based scale products include bathroibchek, office, jewelry, laboratory, postal andusttial scales that are used in
consumer, commercial and industrial applicationEhese products accounted for 58% of revenue fofisbal year ended March 31, 2008,
75% for 2009 and 88% for 2010. We believe thatindustrial scales will continue to be a largertjwor of our scales revenue as we are ab
secure orders from our major customers.

Our wireless telecommunications products include-tvay radios and cordless telephones that areinsgmhsumer and commercial
applications These products accounted for 41% of revenuenifiscal year ended March 31, 2008, 24% for 2009 % for 2010. The
decrease in sales of telecommunications productscaased by the continuation of the Company’s dectit® give up orders of
telecommunications products with low profit margind/e believe that revenue from our telecommuniceiproducts will remain stable.

We also receive revenue from certain customerthimdevelopment and manufacture of tooling and inglébr scales and

telecommunication products. Generally, these tantsmoulds are used by us for the manufacturecafyets. We also generate some sales of
scrap materials. These revenues accounted fooxippately 1% of net sales for the fiscal years ehidiarch 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010.
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The following table sets forth the percentage dfsades for each of the product lines mentioned/@pfor the fiscal years ended

March 31, 2008, 2009, and 2010:

Year ended March 3:

Product Line 2008 200¢ 201C
Scales 58% 75% 88%
Telecommunication 41% 24% 11%
Products

Others 1% 1% 1%
Total 100% 100% 100%

Business Strategy

We believe that our continued growth depends uporability to strengthen our customer base by ecingnand diversifying our
products, increasing the number of customers apdreding into additional markets, while maintainorgncreasing sales of our products to
existing customers. Our continued growth and dilitato become profitable are also dependent upanability to control production costs
and increase production capacity. Our strate@ctoeve these goals is as follows:

Product Enhancement And DiversificatioWVe continually seek to improve and enhance oistieg products in order to provide a
longer product life-cycle and to meet increasingtomer demands for additional features. Our rebeand development staff are currently
working on a variety of projects to enhance oustg scale products and for the telecommunicatiotgstry and in the postal scale/meter
area. See “Products, Research and Development/&itiop” below.

Maintaining And Expanding Business Relations Witlstihg Customers.We promote relationships with our significant tousers
through regular communication, including visitingrain of our customers in their home countries maiding direct access to our
manufacturing and quality control personnel. Tdidsess, together with our concern for quality,reasited in a relatively low level of
defective products. Moreover, we believe thatemphasis on timely delivery, good service and loat tias contributed, and will continue to
contribute, to good relations with our customerd excreased orders. Further, we solicit suggestioom our customers for product
enhancement and when feasible, plan to develofnaodporate the enhancements suggested by oumeertanto our products.

Controlling Production Costs In 1989, recognizing that labor cost is a méator permitting effective competition in the canser
electronic products industry, we relocated all @f manufacturing operations to China to take achgabf the large available pool of lower
cost manufacturing labor. We located our manufauoguacilities within 50 miles of Hong Kong in cgdto facilitate transportation of our
products to markets outside of China, while beimgfifrom the advantages associated with manufagun China and in the Shenzhen Special
Economy Zone.

We are actively seeking to control production chstsuch means as redesigning our existing prodiucsder to decrease material
and labor costs, controlling the number of our eeés, increasing the efficiency of workers by piimg regular training and tools and
redesigning the flow of our production lines.

22




Increasing Production Capacity In November 2006, Bonso entered into a landlmse agreement to acquire 133,500 square meters
of land for future expansion in XinXing, China. &bonstruction of the new manufacturing facilitghe during the fiscal year ended March
31, 2010 and is expected to be completed by 20%&2.intend to carefully monitor our capacity needd to expand capacity as necessary.

Customers and Marketing
We sell our products primarily in the United Staaes Europe. Customers for our products are pilyd@EM's, OBM's and ODM's,
which market the products under their own brandesmmNe continue to market our products to OEMBMX and ODM’s at trade shows, \

e-mail and facsimile.

Net export sales to customers by geographic anesisted of the following for each of the three weamnded March 31, 2008, 2009 :

2010.
Year ended March 31:
2008 2009 2010
$ % $ % $ %

United States of Americ 29,585,94 65 26,923,18 67 19,798,91 69
Germany 5,361,389 12 4,782,28I 12 3,922,77. 14
Other European Countrit 6,652,23! 14 2,858,23! 7 685,22¢ 3
Asia and Other 3,895,54. 9 5,814,49 14 4,136,35. 14
Total 45,495,622 10C 40,378,19 10C 28,543,27 10C

We maintain a marketing and sales team of 9 peofleo, our experienced engineering teams workctliyavith our customers to
develop and tailor our products to meet the custtsrspecific needs. We market our products primahilgugh a combination of direct cont
by our experienced in-house technical sales staffcar sales representatives, and through thefudieeat mail catalogues and product
literature. During the fiscal years ended MarchZ108, 2009 and 2010 we recorded total commigsa&yments of $92,602, $91,592 and
$41,768, respectively. In addition, our marketiegms contact existing and potential customer&lephone, mail and facsimile and in person.
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Our major electronics sensor customer and its pexfesales for the prior three fiscal years arewe

Percent of Sales — Year ended March 31:

Electronics Sensor Customer. 2008 2009 2010
Sunbeam Products, In 29% 45% 57%
Gottl Kern + Sohn GMBF 8% 10% 9%
Pitney Bowes Inc 6% 12% 8%

A list of our major telecommunications customensdach of the prior three fiscal years follows:
Percent of Sales — Year ended March 31:

Telecommunications 2008 2009 2010
Customer

TTI Tech Co., Ltd 20% 11% 7%

Global Link Corporation Ltd 19% 5% 3%

Component Parts and Suppliers

We purchase over 1,000 different component paota fmore than 100 major suppliers and are not degengon any single supplier
for key components. We purchase components fopmgucts primarily from suppliers in Japan, Taiw@outh Korea, Hong Kong and Chi

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 ar@B2the costs of component parts increased wasodihe increase in the price of
oil used in the production of components such astj resin, steel and other raw materials. Furilie believe that costs of component parts
increased during this time period was due to aregse in worldwide demand for electronic componsath as those used in the production of
our products. During the fiscal year ended Marth2®09 and 2010, there were not significant chagehe price of oil, steel or other raw
materials. We have taken steps to reduce our expas any inability to obtain components by fostray with an increased buffer rate and
placing orders for components earlier and allowiordonger delivery lead times. Because of thes®mas, we do not expect to experience any
difficulty in obtaining needed component partsdor products.

Quality Control

We have received ISO 9001: 2000 certification fidat Norske Veritas Certification B.V., the Netlzertis. The ISO 9001: 2000
certification was awarded to our subsidiary, BoR&ctronics Limited and to Bonso Electronics Lirdigesubsidiary Bonso Electronics
(Shenzhen) Company Limited. Further, we have vecelL 9000 certification for our telecommunicasgoroducts. We have also received
certification according to the Environmental Managat Standards of ISO 14001:2004, the Occupatidaalth and Safety Management
Standard of OHSAS 18001, and management systemddical devices of 1ISO13485:2003.

24




ISO 9001 is one of the ISO 9000 series of qualistem standards developed by the International fdzgtion for Standardization, a
worldwide federation of national standards bodik30 9001 provides a model for quality assuranoé @ntinuous improvement) in product
development, manufacturing, installation and sémgi¢chat focuses on meeting customer requiremente TL 9000 standard was developed
by the Quality Excellence for Suppliers of Teleconmications (QUEST) Leadership Forum. The TL 908dification process was developed
exclusively to address the quality of products sexvices provided by suppliers to the telecommuizica industry.

By integrating the Occupational Health and Safegnigement Standard of OHSAS 18001 into our quatityenvironmental
systems, we have created a total Integrated Managtie8ystem (IMS) - Quality, Environment and Healtid Safety by combining 1ISO9001,
ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 into one Quality/EnvirentfHealth and Safety registration.

ISO 13485 certification ensures that we have impleted and maintained a quality system for the desigl manufacture of medical
devices, and allows us to develop and manufacafeeand effective medical devices.

The European Union has enacted the Restrictioheobise of Certain Hazardous Substances in ElekcénmthElectronic Equipment
Directive (“RoHS”). RoHS prohibits the use of @nt substances, including lead, in certain produéfe believe that we are in compliance
with RoHS and have a supply of compliant componé&ots suppliers.

The Company provides to certain customers an auditione to two percent of certain products ordérdigu of a warranty, which
are recognized as cost of sales when these proaecshipped to customers from our facility. lalididn, certain products sold by the
Company are subject to a limited product qualityramaty. The Company accrues for estimated incustedinidentified quality issues based
upon historical activity and known quality issuka ioss is probable and can be reasonably estimatbe standard limited warranty period is
one to three years. Quality returns, refunds,tesband discounts are recorded net of sales &htbeof sale to three years and estimated basec
on past history. All sales are based upon firnegavith fixed terms and conditions, which gengradinnot be modified. Historically, we ht
not experienced material differences between dimated amounts of quality returns, refunds, rebated discounts and the actual results. In
all contracts, there is no price protection or &mprivilege in relation to the sale of goods.

Patents, Licenses, Trademarks, Franchises, Concemss and Royalty Agreements

We have obtained a trademark registration in Hongd<and China for the marks BONSO and MODUS in eation with certain
electronic apparatus.

We rely on a combination of patent, trademark aade secret laws, employee and third party noratisce agreements and other
intellectual property protection methods to protat proprietary rights. There can be no assur#ratethird parties will not assert
infringement or other claims against us with respe@ny existing or future products. We cannguas you that licenses would be available if
any of our technology was successfully challenged third party, or if it became desirable to usg third-party technology to enhance the
Company’s products. Litigation to protect our pietary information or to determine the validity ady third-party claims could result in a
significant expense to us and divert the effortewftechnical and management personnel, whetheotasuch litigation is determined in our
favor.
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While we have no knowledge that we are infringipgm the proprietary rights of any third party, #tnean be no assurance that such
claims will not be asserted in the future with o existing or future products. Any such assery a third party could require us to pay
royalties, to participate in costly litigation addfend licensees in any such suit pursuant to iméferation agreements, or to refrain from
selling an alleged infringing product or service.

Product Research and Development/Competition

The major responsibility of the product designeegsh and development personnel is to develop evdlipe designs to the
satisfaction of, and in accordance with, the sjxtibns provided by the OEM's, OBM's and ODM'se ¥élieve our engineering and product
development capabilities are important to the fisuwccess of our business. As an ODM, we takefg@ions that are provided to us by the
customer and design a product to meet those spatdfins. Some of our product design, researchdamdlopment activities are customer
funded and are under agreements with specific met®for specific products. We have successfollyered the costs for our research and
development team by moving most research and dewelot activities to our facilities in China. Wermipally employ Chinese engineers and
technicians at costs that are substantially lowen those that would be required in Hong Kong Match 31, 2010, we employed 27
individuals in Hong Kong and China for our engiriegrstaff, which are at various time engaged iragsh and development. The major
responsibility of the product design and researzhdevelopment personnel is to develop and prodasigns of scales products to the
satisfaction of, and in accordance with, the sjpeatibns provided by the ODM's and OEM's. We apéte hiring additional research and
development personnel to meet the increased defoasdale products.

The manufacture and sale of electronic sensor-baseédvireless products is highly competitive. Ceiitpn is primarily based upon
unit price, product quality, reliability, produadtures and management’s reputation for integrigcordingly, reliance is placed on research
and development of new products, line extensionstachnological, quality and other continuous paidmprovement. There can be no
assurance that we will enjoy the same degree afesisan these efforts in the future. Researchdemdlopment expenses aggregated $883,304
during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, $7BR during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009%6%D,700 during fiscal year ended
March 31, 2010.
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Seasonality

Generally, the first calendar quarter of each yg#&ypically the slowest sales period because amufacturing facilities in China are
closed for two weeks for the Chinese New Year laglidto permit employees to travel to their homeShinma. In addition, sales during the 1
calendar quarter of both scales and telecommunoitaproducts usually dip following the increassates during the Christmas season. A
greater number of our sales of scales and telecomnwaions products occur between the months oflAmd September for shipment in the
summer in preparation of the Christmas holidayrotighout the remainder of the year, our productaaappear to be subject to significant
seasonal variation. Sales of telecommunicatiodyets are generally higher in the summer monthsweéver, past sales patterns may not be
indicative of future performance.

Employee incentive compensation is conditionednenemployee’s return to work following the Chiné&mw Year and is paid to
employees following the reopening of the factogathe holidays. We believe that this methodreasited in lower employee turnover than
might otherwise have occurred.

Transportation

Typically, we sell products either F.O.B. Hong KamrgYantian (Shenzhen), which means that our custsrare responsible for the
transportation of finished products from Hong Kargrantian (Shenzhen) to their final destinatidmansportation of components and finis!
products to and from the point of shipment is lugkr To date, we have not been materially affebiedny transportation problems. Howey
transportation difficulties affecting air cargogtipping, such as an extended closure of portatthétrially disrupts the flow of our customers’
products into the United States, could materiatlgt adversely affect our sales and margins if, @salt, our customers delay or cancel orders
or seek concessions to offset expediting chargasititurred pending resolution of the problems oaputhe port closures.

Government Regulation

We are subject to comprehensive and changing foré&gleral, provincial, state and local environmaéréquirements, including those
governing discharges to the air and water, the lrepend disposal of solid and hazardous wastetldemediation of contamination
associated with releases of hazardous substaii¢eselieve that we are in compliance with currentinmental requirements. Neverthels
we use hazardous substances in our operationgsiiglthe case with manufacturers in generalréfease of hazardossbstances occurs on
from our properties we may be held liable and maydguired to pay the cost of remediation. Thewrof any resulting liability could be
material.

Foreign Operations

A significant amount of our products are manufaatiuat our factory located in China. While China baen granted permanent most
favored nation trade status in the United Statesugh its entry into the World Trade Organizatioontroversies between the United States and
China may arise that threaten the status quo iinvgtvade between the United States and Chinasé& bentroversies could materially and
adversely affect our business by, among other shiogusing our products in the United States tofecmore expensive, resulting in a
reduction in the demand for our products by custsrirethe United States.
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Sovereignty over Hong Kong reverted to China ol dul1997. The 1984 Sino-British Joint Declaratittre 1990 Basic Law of Hong
Kong, the 1992 United States-Hong Kong Policy Adl ather agreements provide some indication obtlgness climate we believe will
continue to exist in Hong Kong. Hong Kong remainSpecial Administrative Region (“SAR”) of Chinaitlvcertain autonomies from the
Chinese government. Hong Kong is a full membahefWorld Trade Organization. It has separateotnstterritory from China, with separi
tariff rates and export control procedures. It aagparate intellectual property registrationesyst The Hong Kong Dollar is legal tender in
SAR, freely convertible and not subject to foregmrency exchange controls by China. The SAR gowent has sole responsibility for tax
policies, though the Chinese government must agptioe SAR’s budgets. Notwithstanding the provisiohthese international agreements,
we cannot be assured of the continued stabilityotifical, legal, economic or other conditions ioi) Kong. No treaty exists between Hong
Kong and the United States providing for the remit enforcement of foreign judgments. Accordingdpng Kong courts might not enforce
judgments predicated on the federal securities @wise United States, whether arising from actibrmight in the United States or
permitted, in Hong Kong.

Organizational Structure

We have two wholly-owned Hong Kong subsidiariesn&wm Electronics Limited (“BEL”) and Bonso Advancéechnology Limited
(“BATL"). BEL was organized under the laws of HoKgng and is responsible for the design, develognmeanufacture and sale of our
products. BATL was organized under the laws of ¢l&long and has been used to acquire and hold rgnaperty investments in China.

BEL has one active Hong Kong subsidiary, Bonso stwent Limited (“BIL"). BIL was organized underetaws of Hong Kong and
has been used to acquire and hold our propertygiments in Hong Kong and China.

BEL also has one active PRC subsidiary, Bonso Eleis (Shenzhen) Company Limited, which is orgediander the laws of the
PRC and is used to manufacture all of our products.

BATL has one active PRC subsidiary, Bonso Advaribechnology (Xinxing) Limited, which is organizedder the laws of the PRC
and is used to acquire and hold our new manufagjdacility that is being constructed in XinXinghi@a.

We also have another wholly-owned British Virgitaleds subsidiary, Modus Enterprise International In

As of March 31, 2009, Modus Enterprise Internatidne. owned 100% of Korona. Korona was engagedanketing, distributing
and retailing consumer bathroom and kitchen scaldyzts throughout Europe. Effective March 31,200e sold certain assets of Korona to
Beurer GmbH, and we are in the process of disspliorona.

Effective November 1, 2008, we sold our 51% ofelyeity in Gram Precision to Mohan Thadani, the fitmmof Gram

Precision. Gram Precision was primarily engagettiéndistribution and marketing of pocket and irtidakscales in the United States, Canada
and Europe.
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In April 2007, we set up a wholly-owned subsidiaBpnso USA. We are in the process of dissolving€®oUSA.
Property, Plant and Equipment
British Virgin Islands

Our corporate administrative offices are locate@rmigmuir Chambers, Road Town, Tortola, Britishgifirlslands and corporate
administrative matters are conducted through agistered agent, HWR Services Limited located at B&x 71, Road Town, Tortola, British
Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong

We lease approximately 2,045 square feet of offfzzce located at Unit 1915-1916, 19/F, Delta HoB2n Yiu Street, Shek Mun,
Shatin, Hong Kong as our principal executive offid&e monthly lease payment is $3,933 and thesleapires on January 28, 2011. We do
not intend to renew the lease after it expiresaimuary 2011.

We own a residential property in Hong Kong, whistadcated at Savanna Garden, House No. 27, Tal®w,Territories, Hong
Kong. House No. 27 consists of approximately 2 gq&are feet plus a 177 square foot terrace an808 2quare foot garden area. The use of
House No. 27 is provided as quarters to Mr. Anth8nythe Chairman and Chief Executive Officer & @ompany.

China

Our existing factory in China is located at Shemzimethe DaYang Synthetical Development Distrithse to the border between Hc
Kong and China. This factory consists of four éagtbuildings, which contain approximately 276,3@uare feet, two workers’ dormitories,
containing approximately 103,000 square feet, aemand recreation center of approximately 26@re feet, an office building, consist
of approximately 26,000 square feet, and two sfaffrters for our supervisory employees, consistirgpproximately 34,000 square feet, for a
total of approximately 465,000 square feet. Altleé facilities noted above are wholly-owned, exdeptwo factory buildings with
approximately 90,000 square feet.

We also own one residential property in Shenzhdrichnis located at Lakeview Mansion, B-20C, HujiBuilding No. 63, Xinan
Road, Boacheng Baoan Shenzhen, China. It cordiaigproximately 1,591 square feet and is utilibgdlirectors when they require
accommodations in China.

We also own two office units in Beijing, namely thi2 and 13 on the 3rd floor, Block A of Sunshii@za in Beijing, China. Unit
12 consists of 1,102 square feet and Unit 13 ctmefsl,860 square feet. One Unit is rented tarzaffiliated third party for an aggregate
monthly rental of RMB 14,150, or approximately $)0while the other unit is rented to another ufiaféd third party for an aggregate
monthly rental of RMB 8,300, or approximately $1022
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In November, 2006, Bonso entered into a land g purchase agreement with Xincheng Hi-Tech InhldEstate to acquire a piece
of land of 133,500 square meters for future expansf the Company’s operations in XinXing. Thedaransfer was completed in
2009. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2046 first phase of construction of the new manwiidicg facilities commenced and the
construction is expected to be completed in 2012.

Adequacy of Facilities

We believe the manufacturing complex will be adeégdier our reasonably foreseeable needs.
Item 4A. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable.
Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospés

The following discussion and analysis should bel ieaconjunction with Item 3 — “Key Information -e&cted Financial Dataind the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to @idiased Financial Statements included elsewhetkinAnnual Report.

Overview

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, then@any experienced decreased revenues. Our salgsedr due to the Company’s
decision to reduce orders for telecommunicatiordpets with low profit margin. Sales for electrositales dropped also due to lower demand
for consumer products because of poor economicitonsl

We derive our revenues principally from the salseisor-based manufactured in China, which repr@&38a of total sales for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2010. As mentionelteim 3, — “Key Information — Risk Factors,” we altependent upon a limited number of
major customers for a significant portion of owarues. Our revenues and business operation lajexsto fluctuation if there is a loss of
orders from any of our largest customers. Furtierpricing of our scales and telecommunicati@dpcts are becoming increasingly
competitive, especially to our customers in thetéthiStates and Germany, who contributed approxign@89 of our revenue during the fiscal
year ended March 31, 201

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, nkgssfor continuing operations were approximatel$,496,000, and net loss was
approximately $8,550,000. During the fiscal yederl March 31, 2009, net sales for continuing dfmers were approximately $40,378,000,
and net loss was approximately $7,584,000. Duhediscal year ended March 31, 2010, net salesdntinuing operations were
approximately $28,543,000, and net loss was apprately $658,000.
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Costs are increasing in China, and our labor cegtesented approximately 16.5% of our total prtidaccosts in the fiscal year enc
March 31, 2010, compared to 14.4% in the fiscal yealed March 31, 2009. There was no change imthinum wage set by the PRC
government during the fiscal year ended March 8102as compared to fiscal year ended March 319.2@@&cording to the new minimum
wage set by the local authorities in May 2010, weehthe increased the minimum wage for labor frdtBROOO (or approximately $132) per
month to RMB 1100 (or approximately $162) per mostarting from July 1, 2010. We believe that @aged labor costs in China will have a
significant effect on our total production costslaasults of operations and that we will not beeablcontinue to increase our production at our
manufacturing facility without substantially incesag our non-production salaries and related coBkss increase in minimum wage will
increase our labor costs by 22% or approximateRO¥B0 annually. There can be no assurance that &osts will not further increase or that
any additional increase in labor costs will notdavmaterial adverse effect upon our results ofaijoss.

We have not experienced significant difficultieistaining raw materials for our products, and ng@maent does not anticipate any
such difficulties in the foreseeable future. Psioéraw materials did not vary significantly digithe fiscal year ended March 31, 2010. Prices
of raw materials decreased during the fiscal yaded March 31, 2009 due to decreases in oil prieeies of raw materials increased
significantly during the fiscal year ended March 3008 as a result of the increase in oil pricElsere can be no assurance that raw material
costs will not fluctuate or that any additionalri@ase in raw material costs will not have a matadaerse effect upon our results of operations.
Operating Results

The following table sets forth selected income @ata percentage of net sales for the periodsatetic
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Fiscal Yer Ended March 31,

Statement of Operations Data 2008 2009 2010
% % %

Net sales 100.( 100.( 100.(
Cost of sale: (95.9 (86.0 (83.0
Gross margit 4.1 14.C 17.C
Selling expense (1.6) (1.6 1.3
Salaries and related co: (7.8 (9.9 (9.0
Research and development exper (1.9 (2.0) (2.0
Administration and general expen: (7.4 (11.9) (7.0
Amortization of brand nam (0.9 - -
Impairment of goodwil (2.9 - -
Impairment of brand narr (3.5 - -
Impairment of share investme (0.9 - -
Loss from operation (20.9) (10.9) (2.3
Interest incom 0.4 0.3 0.4
Interest expense (1.0 (0.5 0.3
Foreign exchange lo: (0.9 (0.6) (1.9
Gain on disposal of proper 6.9 0.4 -
Other income 1.3 1.8 2.1
Loss before income tax (14.7) (9.0 (1.9
Income tax expenst (0.7) (0.5 (0.0
Loss from continuing operatiol (13.9 (9.5 (1.9
Loss from discontinued operatio (5.9 9.9 (0.9

Net loss (18.9) (18.¢) (2.3

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2010 compared to fiscgear ended March 31, 2009

Net Sales Our sales decreased approximately $11,835,029.886 from approximately $40,378,000 for the fisear ended March
31, 2009, to approximately $28,543,000 for thedisear ended March 31, 2010. The decrease is sale primarily the result of decreased
demand for our telecommunication products and comeselectronics scales products. Sales of oueseald others business decreased 17.4%
from approximately $30,903,000 for the fiscal yeaded March 31, 2009 to approximately $25,522,@0@he fiscal year ended March 31,
2010, and sales for telecommunications producteedsed 68.1% from approximately $9,475,000 fofigeal year ended March 31, 2009 to
approximately $3,022,000 for the fiscal year enifieaich 31, 2010. The decrease in sales for scalk®ther business was the result of
reduced demand for consumer electronics scale ptodue to the worldwide economic downturn sineeehd of calendar year 2008. The
decrease in sales for telecommunications produassoaused by the continuation of the Company’ssaetio give up orders of
telecommunications products with low profit margins

Gross Margin. Gross margin as a percentage of revenue inae¢asgpproximately 17.0% during the fiscal yearezhtarch 31,
2010, as compared to approximately 14.0% durindisioal year ended March 31, 2009. The highergmargin was the result of the
Companys decision to reduce products with low profit masgirom its telecommunication products, and redueests of raw materials both
a result of the Company’s efforts to purchase nieltemore cost effectively and the effort to redesexisting products with less material
consumption. As a result of these factors, ousgprofit margin increased by 3.0% when comparebedgrior fiscal year.
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Selling Expenses Selling expenses decreased by approximately,$2@04rom approximately $649,000 for the fiscalyeaded
March 31, 2009 to approximately $375,000 for tisedi year ended March 31, 2010. Local freightasd related selling expenses decreased
during the year due to fewer shipments made asudt ref decreased sales for the fiscal year endativid1, 2010. As a result, selling
expenses decreased by 42.2% when compared toidhdigcal year.

Salaries And Related CostsSalaries and related costs decreased by appaitedin$1,238,000, or 32.8%, from approximately
$3,777,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008pproximately $2,539,000 for the fiscal yeadleshMarch 31, 2010. The reduction in
salaries and related costs was primarily the redidtreamlined managerial and operational perdptmenatch with the reduction in sales for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010.

Research And DevelopmenResearch and development expenses decreasecxiapely $212,000, or 26.8%, from approximately
$792,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2@0&pproximately $580,000 for the fiscal year enfiedlch 31, 2010. The decrease in
research and development was primarily the redatreduction in the number of total engineers @yg@ll. Research and Development as a
percentage of revenue remained at 2.0% duringshalfyear ended March 31, 2010, and the fiscal ggded March 31, 2009.

Administration And General Expense&dministration and general expenses decreasegproximately $2,591,000, or 56.3%, from
approximately $4,602,000 for the fiscal year enblizdich 31, 2009 to approximately $2,011,000 forfikeal year ended March 31,
2010. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 Company recognized an one-off bad debt prawisf approximately $1,700,000
relating to the disposition of the Company’s Canadiubsidiary in November 1, 2008. The Companf§itsteto reduce expenses during lower
sales for the fiscal year ended March 31, 201Gttogy with the non existence of any one-off bad getvision like the $1,700,000 made in
fiscal year 2009, resulted in the lower administraand general expenses for the fiscal year eMiedh 31, 2010.

Loss From Operations As a result of the factors described above, flasa operations decreased by 84.2% from a loss of
approximately $4,149,000 for the fiscal year enblizdich 31, 2009 to a loss of approximately $655 fad@he fiscal year ended March 31,
2010.

Interest Income Interest income decreased by $24,000, or 18i@¥ approximately $127,000 for the fiscal year eshdarch 31,
2009 to approximately $103,000 for the fiscal yetaded March 31, 2010. The decreases were printhglyesult of fewer deposits in higher
yield accounts and a decrease in interest rataéatfmest bearing accounts during the fiscal yeaed March 31, 201(

Interest Expenses Interest expenses decreased approximately $14m060,.0%, from approximately $209,000 for the disgear

ended March 31, 2009 to approximately $69,000Herfiscal year ended March 31, 2010. This decreaseprimarily the result of a decrease
in interest rates during the fiscal year ended M&t, 2009 and decreased utilization of the Comigamgnking facilities.
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Foreign Exchange Lossdsoreign exchange loss increased approximately $283pr 87.1%, from approximately $279,000 for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 to approximaté&®2$000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 20TKis increase was primarily the result of
the change in the rate of appreciation of Chinesenitnbi against the United States Dollar duringfibeal year ended March 31, 2010, as
compared to that during the fiscal year ended M&fcH2009.

Other Income. Other income decreased approximately $87,000, @%4.2from approximately $707,000 for the fiscal yeaded
March 31, 2009, to approximately $620,000 for ikedl year ended March 31, 2010. In the fiscat yealed March 31, 2009, the sale of a
warehouse in Hong Kong resulted in a gain of $186,0ut there were no disposal of properties whimhid result in a gain in the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2010.

Income Tax Expenselncome tax expense decreased approximately 829%;om $208,000 during the fiscal year ended M&L,
2009 to $9,000 during the fiscal year ended Mari2B10. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 269 Company wrote off deferred income
tax assets of $191,618 because of operation logkdo/ear. Whereas, for the fiscal year endedchi&d, 2010, the Company recognized an
increase in deferred tax liability of $5,000.

Gain on Disposal of Subsidiary under Loss from Digmued OperationEffective November 1, 2008, the Company disposétsof
Canadian subsidiary, Gram Precision, since thiertem unit experienced operating losses in theafiyears ended March 31, 2007 and 2008,
and for the first seven month period ended Oct8ie2008. The Company recognized a gain of apprataly $363,000 from the disposition
because the Company was relieved of Gram’s ligslidluring the fiscal year ended March 31, 200Ber& was no disposal of subsidiaries and
gain or loss thereof for the fiscal year ended M&t, 2010.

Net Loss As a result of the factors described above|asst decreased from a loss of approximately $70&8®4{or the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2009 to a loss of approximatel\8Bg&E® for the fiscal year ended March 31, 201Ge@ehse of approximately $6,926,000
91.3%.

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment$:oreign currency translation adjustments, nedxfdecreased from a gain of $811,00(
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 to a losppf@imately $153,000 for the fiscal year ended dia81, 2009, an decrease of
approximately $964,000, or 118.9%. The decreasemign currency translation adjustment, net of es primarily the result of fluctuation of
the Chinese Renminbi against the United StatesaDoll

Comprehensive LossAs a result of the factors described above, celmnsive loss decreased from a loss of approxiynate

$6,773,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2094 loss of approximately $810,000 for the fisear ended March 31, 2010, a decrea:
approximately $5,963,000, or 88.0%.
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Fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 compared to fiscgéar ended March 31, 2008

Net Sales Our sales decreased approximately $5,118,000.886 from approximately $45,496,000 for the yeatesl March 31,
2008, to approximately $40,378,000 for the yearendarch 31, 2009. The decrease in sales was fil§iittze result of decreased sales orders
for telecommunication products. Sales of our scaled others business increased 14.9% from appateiy$26,898,000 for the year ended
March 31, 2008 to approximately $30,903,000 forytbar ended March 31, 2009, and sales for telecarwations products decreased 49.1%
from approximately $18,598,000 for the year endextd¥d 31, 2008 to approximately $9,475,000 for tbaryended March 31, 2009. The
increase in sales for scales and other businestheassult of increased customer demands for gecatfucts. The decrease in sales for
telecommunications products was caused by the Coyfgéecision to give up orders of telecommuniaagiproducts with low profit margins.

Gross Margin. Gross margin as a percentage of revenue inaeasgmproximately 14.0% during the year ended M&, 2009, as
compared to approximately 4.1% during the year éidarch 31, 2008. The higher gross margin wasehelt of the Company’s decision to
reduce products with low profit margins from itteemmunication products, and reduced costs ofmaterials both as a result of the
Company'’s efforts to purchase materials more désttévely and the decline in costs resulting friower petroleum prices. Furthermore,
prices of raw materials decreased due to the deelieaoil prices and the financial crisis in 20@8jch benefited the Company in the fiscal y
ended March 31, 2009. As a result of these factansgross profit margin increased by 9.9% whemared to the prior fiscal year.

Selling Expenses Selling expenses decreased by approximately0$@Xrom approximately $720,000 for the year enlledch 31,
2008 to approximately $649,000 for the year endeddil 31, 2009. Local freight costs decreased duhia year due to decreased sales. As a
result, selling expenses decreased by 9.8% whepam@u to the prior fiscal year.

Salaries And Related CostsSalaries and related costs increased by appeteiyn$236,000, or 6.7%, from approximately $3,800,
for the year ended March 31, 2008 to approxim&$8ly 77,000 for the year ended March 31, 2009. Ating to the New Labor Law in the
PRC that was effective January 1, 2009, the Compaasyrequired to provide one month of salary famhegear of service as a severance
payment to each worker that was furloughed. A& stie Company recognized a provision of $785,438¢ fiscal year ended March 31,
2009 for severance payments for staff in PRC.

Research And DevelopmenResearch and development expenses decreaseciamtely $91,000, or 10.3%, from approximately
$883,000 for the year ended March 31, 2008 to aqmrately $792,000 for the year ended March 31, 20Di8e decrease in research and
development was primarily the result of a reductiothe number of engineers employed. ResearclDawdlopment as a percentage of
revenue increased to 2.0% during the year endedhvat, 2009, as compared to 1.9% during the yedeaMarch 31, 2008, because of lower
sales in the year ended March 31, 2009.

Administration And General Expense&dministration and general expenses increaseappyoximately $1,251,000, or 37.3%, from
approximately $3,351,000 for the year ended Mafg2B08 to approximately $4,602,000 for the yealeehMarch 31, 2009. This increase
was primarily the result of recognizing an immesdiatrite down of approximately $1,700,000 relatiadte disposition of the Company’s
Canadian subsidiary.
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When the Company disposed of its Canadian subgidgram Precision, on November 1, 2008, Gram Pi@tissued a promissory
note to the Company to repay $1,700,000 to the Gomm installments. Monthly payments of $10,00&evto be paid to the Company in the
six months from December 2008 to May 2009, and higrmtayments of $20,000 were to be paid from JW@92intil the full amount of
$1,700,000 was repaid. Since Gram Precision hadatipg losses during the years ended March 319 28d 2008, the recoverability of the
full amount of $1,700,000 was doubtful. As a resthle Company recognized a bad debt provisiorlgf@,000 for the year 2009.

Amortization Of Brand NamesDuring the year ended March 31, 2008, we amatt$200,000 relating to the brand names acquired
upon the acquisition of Korona. Brand names arertireal using the straight-line method over theteglaestimated useful life of 15
years. During the year ended March 31, 2009, norégration was recognized, since the brand namefuliysamortized during the year end
March 31, 2008.

Impairment Of GoodwillBased on the assessment for the year ended Mar@®38, the Group made a provision for impairmént o
approximately $843,000 for Gram Precision due &dbntinued losses from operations. The repotiigs operating results for fiscal 2008
were used as a basis of management’s discountbdloasanalysis in determining the reporting unfgs value. There was no impairment
loss recognized during the fiscal year ended M&fdcH2009 although the Company did record a bad piehision of $1,700,000 in connection
with the disposition of Gram Precision as notedvabo

Impairment Of Brand Nam&lanagement performed an impairment assessmeng dfrind name of Korona due to continuing losses
incurred by Korona and the diminishing price premithat Korona was able to realize on its brandedyots since the last quarter of fiscal
2008. Based on the assessment for the year endethM1, 2008, the Company recorded an impairntearige on the brand name of
approximately $1,597,000. There was no impairn@s¥ recognized during the fiscal year ended M&d;2009.

Impairment Of Share InvestmeBfsed on the assessment for the year ended May@988, the Company made a provision for an
impairment of $200,000 for its investment in a pteszcompany, since the value of the investmentleadme uncertain during the fiscal
year. There was no impairment loss recognizechduhie fiscal year ended March 31, 20

Loss From Operations As a result of the factors described above, flasa operations decreased by 56.2% from a loss of
approximately $9,468,000 for the year ended Mad;H2B08 to a loss of approximately $4,149,000 leryear ended March 31, 2009.

Interest Income Interest income decreased by $71,000, or 35(@¥h, approximately $198,000 for the year ended Ma&t, 2008 to

approximately $127,000 for the year ended March2809. The decreases were primarily the resdltwér deposits in higher yield accounts
and a decrease in interest rates for interestigpadcounts during the fiscal year.
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Interest Expenses Interest expenses decreased approximately $23%063,3%, from approximately $448,000 for the yemded
March 31, 2008 to approximately $209,000 for tharyended March 31, 2009. This decrease was pfinihé result of a decrease in interest
rates during the year ended March 31, 2009 ancedsed use of the Company’s banking facilities.

Foreign Exchange LosséSoreign exchange loss decreased approximately 0620r 35.3%, from approximately $431,000 for the
year ended March 31, 2008 to approximately $279f60¢he year ended March 31, 2009. This decreaseprimarily the result of the reduc
rate of appreciation of Chinese Renminbi agairsthited States Dollar during the fiscal year enlliedch 31, 2009, as compared to that
during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

Other Income. Other income decreased approximately $2,847,0006 &%, from approximately $3,717,000 for the yerded
March 31, 2008, to approximately $869,000 for tearyended March 31, 2009. The difference was mdim to the fact that in the year en
March 31, 2008, there was a gain on the sale offise suite in Hong Kong of approximately $3,12200 In the year ended March 31, 2009,
the sale of a warehouse in Hong Kong resultedgaia of $136,016.

Income Tax Expenselncome tax expense increased approximately $88%rom an income tax benefit of $341,000 durimg year
ended March 31, 2008 to an income tax expense@8,$20 during the year ended March 31, 2009, reptesy approximately 0.7% and
approximately negative 0.5% of net sales, respelstiviFor the year ended March 31, 2009, the Compante off deferred income tax assets
of $191,618 because of operation loss for the yBaring the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 ,Gbenpany performed an assessment and
made a reversal of provision of approximately $808,in relation to uncertain tax positions of pryears.

Gain on Disposal of Subsidiary under Loss from Digued Operation€Effective November 1, 2008, the Company disposetsof
Canadian subsidiary, Gram Precision, since thisrtgmg unit experienced operating losses in theafigyears ended March 31, 2007 and 2008,
and for the first seven month period ended Oct8te2008. The Company recognized a gain of appratdly $363,000 from the disposition
because the company was relieved of Gram'’s ligslit

Net Loss As a result of the factors described above|asst decreased from a loss of approximately $80&EDfor the year ended
March 31, 2008 to a loss of approximately $7,58@.,a0 the year ended March 31, 2009, a decreaapprbximately $966,000, or 11.3%.

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment$:oreign currency translation adjustments, neéaxfincreased from a gain of $567,000 for
the year ended March 31, 2008 to a gain of apprateiym $811,000 for the year ended March 31, 2009nerease of approximately $244,000,
or 43.0%. The increased foreign currency trarmtadidjustment, net of tax, was primarily the restithppreciation of the Chinese Renminbi
against the United States Dollar.
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Comprehensive LossAs a result of the factors described above, cetrmsive loss decreased from a loss of approxiynate
$7,982,000 for the year ended March 31, 2008 |oss0f approximately $6,773,000 for the year erdadch 31, 2009, a decrease of
approximately $1,209,000, or 15.2%.

Impact of Inflation

We believe that inflation did not have a matenmpact on our business during the fiscal year ehdath 31, 2010 and we expect t
inflation will not have a material impact upon darsiness during the fiscal year ended March 311 20Ve have generally been able to mo
and improve our product designs so that we coulgeeincrease the prices of our products or lodwemtroduction cost in order to keep pace
with inflation. During the fiscal years ended Ma@1, 2006, 2007 and 2008, the costs of comporsets mcreased due to the increase in the
price of oil used in the production of componentshsas plastic resin, steel and other raw mater@isprices have been volatile in recent
years. If oil prices increase, it will likely rdsin an increase in the cost of components t@masyell as an increase in our operating expe!
which will have a material adverse effect upon lousiness and results of operations. Furtherntrease in labor costs and operating costs in
the PRC had a material impact on our profitability.

Taxation

The companies comprising the Group are subjeex@h an entity basis on income arising in or datifrom Hong Kong, the PRC,
Germany, the United States and Canada. The cuatnof taxation of the subsidiary operating imgdlong is 16.5%. Korona is registered
as a partnership in Germany which is subject t@ary tax rate of 14.17%. The Group is not sabjo income taxes in the British Virgin
Islands. The statutory tax rate in Canada andUthited States was 36% and 34%, respectively, ®thhee years ended March 31, 2010.

Most of our subsidiaries’ profits accrue in Hongri§oand the PRC, where the applicable tax rated& B2 and 20%, respectively, in
2009. The tax rates for our subsidiary in PRC b&l22% in 2010, 24% in 2011, and 25% in 2012 aybbd. There is no tax payable in H
Kong on offshore profit or on dividends paid to BorElectronics Limited by its subsidiaries or taoysBonso Electronics Limited. Therefore,
our overall effective tax rate may be lower thaat thf most United States corporations; howeves, dldivantage could be materially and
adversely affected by changes in the tax laws@#titish Virgin Islands, Hong Kong or China.

On March 16, 2007, the Chinese government enacteifiad enterprise income tax law or EIT, whictchme effective on January 1,
2008. Prior to the EIT, as a foreign invested qortse, or “FIE”, located in Shenzhen of the PRQ, BRC subsidiaries enjoyed a national
income tax rate of 15% and were exempted from #hddgal income tax. The preferential tax treatnterdur subsidiaries in the PRC of
qualifying for tax refunds as a result of reinvegttheir profits earned in previous years in theCRis0 expired on January 1, 2008. Under the
EIT, apart from those qualified as high-tech enisgs, most domestic enterprises and FIEs willligest to a single PRC enterprise income
tax rate of 25% in year 2012 and afterward.
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Efforts by the Chinese government to increaseéagmues could result in decisions or interpretatimithe tax laws by the Chinese
tax authorities that are unfavorable to us and lviricrease our future tax liabilities, or deny expected refunds. Changes in Chinese tax
or their interpretation or application may subjestto additional Chinese taxation in the future.

No reciprocal tax treaty regarding withholding tsvexists between the United States and the B¥tigfin Islands. Under current
British Virgin Islands law, dividends, interestrayalties paid by us to individuals are not subjediax as long as the recipient is not a resident
of the British Virgin Islands. If we were to payaidend, we would not be liable to withhold am@xt but shareholders would receive gross
dividends, irrespective of their residential orioaal status.

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2008, 2Q090, certain of our subsidiaries were and coettioube subject to enquiries from
the local tax authorities. Upon the adoption ofCAB40 (formerly FIN 48), “Accounting for Uncertaynin Income Taxes — An Interpretation
of FASB Statement No. 109the Company recorded a provision of approximat@lyl 4,000 in relation to uncertain tax positione®Bapril 1,
2007. The assessment is subject to final detetiaimay the local tax authorities and may be déférfrom what we have recorded as a
provision. As such, there can be no assurancerteanquiry will not result in imposing additionatome tax expense on the Group, which
could have a material adverse effect upon the Gamapits results of operations.

Contractual arrangements we have entered into am®agd our subsidiaries in different locations rbaysubject to scrutiny by
respective tax authorities, and a finding against@ompany and its subsidiaries may result in sufdit tax liabilities that could substantially
reduce our consolidated net income. We could fiaaterial and adverse tax consequences if respaativ@uthorities determine that the
contractual arrangements among our subsidiarieando do not represent an arm'’s length price ajisaBonso’s or its subsidiaries’
income. Our consolidated net income may be méditeead adversely affected if our affiliated erggi tax liabilities increase.

Dividends, if any, paid to any United States restd® citizen shareholder are treated as dividendre for United States federal
income tax purposes. Such dividends are not d&iddr the 70% dividends-received deduction alloweetinited States corporations on
dividends from a domestic corporation under Sec2i48 of the United States Internal Revenue Cod86, as amended (the “Internal
Revenue Code”). Various Internal Revenue Codeipiavs impose special taxes in certain circumstsiocenon-United States corporations
and their shareholders. You are urged to consult tax advisor with regard to such possibilitiesl gour own tax situation.

In addition to United States federal income taxgt&hareholders may be subject to state and lagastupon their receipt of dividen
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Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

We sell most of our products to international costes. Our principal export markets are North Aicefmainly the United States),
Europe (mainly Germany) and Asia. Other marketsodiner European countries (such as the Unitedd¢ing, Australia and Africa. Sales to
international customers are made directly by usutocustomers. We sell all of our products in gdiStates Dollars and pay for our material
components principally in United States Dollars alwhg Kong Dollars. A very small portion of theneponents used are paid for in Japanese
Yen. Most factory expenses incurred are paid im&e Renminbi. Because the Hong Kong Dollar ggpd to the United States Dollar, in
past our only material foreign exchange risk prasip arose from potential fluctuations in the Clsie&enminbi and the devaluation in United
States Dollars. For the reasons discussed indtegmphs below, management believes that it mapssible that there will be some
fluctuation in the coming year. During the fisgelr ended March 31, 2010, we experienced a foigmrency loss of $521,832. We do not
currently engage in hedging transactions; howewvennay undertake hedging activities in the future.

A summary of our debts from our banking facilitig8ized as at March 31, 2010 which was subjectefbteign currency risk is as
follows:

March 31, 201
$

Hong Kong dollar: 2,163,11:
The amount above is due within one year.

Fluctuations in the value of the Hong Kong Dollara not been significant since October 17, 198%&mthe Hong Kong government
tied the value of the Hong Kong Dollar to that le¢ tUnited States Dollar. However, there can bagsurance that the value of the Hong Kong
Dollar will continue to be tied to that of the Ugit States Dollar. China adopted a floating cuyreystem on January 1, 1994, unifying the
market and official rates of foreign exchange. mahapproved current account convertibility of tHer@se Renminbi on July 1, 1996, followed
by formal acceptance of the International Monetaimd’s Articles of Agreement on December 1, 1996ese regulations eliminated the
requirement for prior government approval to busefgn exchange for ordinary trade transactionsjghcapproval is still required to repatriate
equity or debt, including interest thereon. Fra®84 until July 2005, the Chinese Renminbi had reedistable against the U.S. Dollar at
approximately 8.28 to 1.00 U.S. Dollar. On July 2@05, the Chinese currency regime was alteréidkdhe RMB to a “basket of currencies,”
which includes the United States Dollar, Euro, d&se Yen and Korean Won. Under the rules, the Rivilowed to move 0.3% on a daily
basis against the United States Dollar. The P&oBlenk of China, on May 21 2007, widened the R¥#8ling band from 0.3% daily
movement against the United States Dollar to 0A&wf October 4, 2010, the RMB was valued at 6.894&r US Dollar. On June 19, 2010,
the People’s Bank of China released a statemeidatidg that they would "proceed further with refoof the RMB exchange rate regime and
increase the RMB exchange rate flexibility.” Theem be no assurance that these currencies willirestable or will fluctuate to our benefit.
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To manage our exposure to foreign currency andlaéion risks, we may purchase currency exchangeaia contracts, currency
options, or other derivative instruments, providedh instruments may be obtained at suitable prigés do not currently engage in hedging
transactions; however we may undertake hedgingites in the future. If we are unsuccessful inldi@g against currency fluctuations, it may
have a material adverse effect on us.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have financed our growth and cash needs toptlabarily from internally generated funds and balebt. We do not use off-
balance sheet financing arrangements, such astsetion of receivables or obtaining access tetsthrough special purpose entities, as
sources of liquidity. Our primary uses of cashénbeen to fund expansions and upgrades of our metowing facilities, to make strategic
acquisitions and to fund increases in inventory acwbunts receivable resulting from increased sales

Operating activities generated $3,486,229 of ngh dar the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, coenbér $1,816,957 of net cash
used during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008s decrease in the amount of cash used by opgratitivities was primarily attributable to
our reduction in inventory in accordance with tbeér sales amount for the fiscal year ended Maligt2810, and the recovered accounts
receivable for our discontinued operations durlmgfiscal year ended March 31, 2010.

As of March 31, 2010, we had $8,085,405 in cashcasth equivalents, as compared to $8,043,535 maras cash equivalents as of
March 31, 2009. Working capital at March 31, 2084 $9,640,161, as compared to $9,271,089 at M&rcRB009. We believe there are no
material restrictions (including foreign exchangatols) on the ability of our subsidiaries to tsfer funds to us in the form of cash dividends,
loans, advances or product/material purchasesbéNeve our working capital is sufficient for ouregent requirements.

As of March 31, 2010, we had net $1,323,655 ingnateivables, as compared to $1,084,756 as ofiVErc2009. The increase of
$238,899 was primarily attributable to more salese&to the end of the fiscal year, compared todh&arch 31, 2009.

As of March 31, 2010, we had $4,989,958 in invae®ras compared to $6,284,293 as of March 31,.200@ decrease of $1,294,
was primarily attributable to reduction of inventan light of the lower sales amount in the fisgaar ended March 31, 2010.

As of March 31, 2010, we had a total of $4,727,ifl8otes payable and accounts payable, as compafj465,289 as of March 31,
2009. The increase of $262,430 was primarilylaitable to the increased notes payable due toasetkutilization of banking facilities in lic
of low interest rate.

As of March 31, 2010 we had in place general bapkagilities with three financial institutions wittmounts available aggregating
$14,707,693. Such facilities include the abilyobtain overdrafts, letters of credit, short-terates payable, factoring, short-term loans and
long-term loans. As of March 31, 2010, we hadagd $2,163,112 from these general banking fagditiinterest on this indebtedness
fluctuates with the prime rate and the Hong Kortgrimank Offer Rate as set by the Hong Kong Bankssbciation. The bank credit facilities
are collateralized by certain of our bank guarante@ur bank credit facilities are due for reneammtually. We anticipate that the banking
facilities will be renewed on substantially the sat@rms and our utilization in the next year wélhmain at a similar level as that in the current
year. During the fiscal years ended March 31, 28® 2009, we paid a total of $67,096 and $199,/%pectively, in interest on indebtedn
for continuing operations.
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Our current ratio increased from 1.73 as of Marth2909 to 2.22 as of March 31, 2010. Our quitioriacreased from 1.23 as of
March 31, 2009 to 1.59 as of March 31, 2010.

Due to the new minimum wage set by the local auitiks in May 2010, we have the increased the mimh wage for labor from
RMB 900 (or approximately $132) per month to RMB)@Xor approximately $162) per month, starting fréuy 1, 2010. We believe that
this increase in minimum wage will increase ounlatosts by 22% or approximately $870,000 annually.

We believe that our cash flows from operations,aurrent cash balance and funds available ungleworking capital and credit
facilities will be sufficient to meet our workingpital needs and planned capital expenditurestfi@aat the next 12 to 24 months. However, a
decrease in the demand for our products or incri@aser costs of goods sold or expenses may affecinternally generated funds, and we
would further look to our banking facilities to ntexir working capital demands.
Commitments

The following table sets forth information with pegt to our commitments as of March 31, 2010:

Payments due by Perioc

Within 1 Within 1 to 3 Within 3 to More than
Total year years 5 years 5 years
Notes payable and bank overdrd®) $ 216311 $ 216311 $ 0o $ 0o $ 0
Operating lease $ 157,51 $ 157,51 $ 0o $ 0o $ 0
Capital lease $ 51,97: $ 51,97: $ (O (O 0
Construction in Xinxing $ 163299 $ 163299 $ 0 3 0 3 0
Interest on capital leas $ 206 % 206 % 0o $ 0o $ 0
Income tax liabilities® $ 260202 $ 6,88¢ $ 259513 $ 0 3 0
Total $ 6,607,81 $ 4,012,67 $ 2,595,13 $ 0 $ 0

(1) Represents amounts due within one year unatebbanking facilities agreement.

(2) Effective April 1, 2007, the Company adopteH@&\740. As a result of the adoption of ASC 748,@lompany recognized a
$1,169,777 increase in the liability for unrecoguizax benefits and penalties of $994,310, whictevaecounted for as a reduction to
the April 1, 2007 balance of retained earningse Tompany assessed the tax position during fisgaa gnded March 31, 2010, and
concluded that the same tax liability were carfavard.
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For a discussion of interest rates on our noteafgayand short-term loans, see “ltem 11. Qualiatind Quantitative Disclosures
About Market Risk” below.

Critical Accounting Policies

The methods, estimates and judgments we use igiagmur most critical accounting policies havagn#icant impact on the results
we report in our financial statements. The SECdeimed the most critical accounting policiestzes dnes that are most important to the
portrayal of our financial condition and resultslaaquire us to make our most difficult and subijeciudgments, often as a result of the ne¢
make estimates of matters that are inherently tamicer Based on this definition, our most critipalicies include inventories, impairment,
brand name, trade receivables and deferred incaxes.t

Below, we discuss these policies further, as wetha estimates and judgments involved. We belieatthese other policies either
not generally require us to make estimates andnjigthgs that are as difficult or as subjective, @ Iess likely that they would have a material
impact on our reported results of operations fgivan period. For a discussion of all our sigrific accounting policies, see footnote 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsesvimethis Annual Report.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orealizable value with cost determined on a firstfirst-out basis. Net realizable value
is the price at which inventories can be sold enbrmal course of business after allowing forabsts of completion and disposal. The
Company continuously reviews slow-moving and oltsoleventory and assesses any inventory obsolesdsszd on inventory levels,
material composition and expected usage as ofititat

Revenue recognition

No revenue is recognized unless there is persuasidence of an arrangement, the price to the bigyfered or determinable, delive
has occurred and collectability of the sales pisagasonably assured. Revenue is recognized titteeand risk of loss transfers to the
customer, which is generally when the product ipd to the customer from our facilities. Shigpgosts billed to our customers are inclu
within revenue. Associated costs are classifiezbst of sales.

The Company provides to certain customers an awditione to two percent of certain products ordérdiu of a warranty, which
are recognized as cost of sales when these proatecshipped to customers from our facilities adidition, certain products sold by the
Company are subject to a limited product qualityramaty. The Company accrues for estimated incustedinidentified quality issues based
upon historical activity and known quality issuka ioss is probable and can be reasonably estimatbe standard limited warranty period is
one to three years. Quality returns, refunds,te=band discounts are recorded net of sales &intkeof sale to three years and estimated basec
on past history. All sales are based upon firnegavith fixed terms and conditions, which gengradinnot be modified. Historically, we ht
not experienced material differences between dimated amounts of quality returns, refunds, rebated discounts and the actual results. In
all contracts, there is no price protection or Bmprivilege in relation to the sale of goods.
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Due to similar contractual terms, the Company’sree recognition policies do not differ among igg#icant product lines (i.e.
sensor based scales versus wireless productsnammbavarious marketing venues used by the Compganyd(stributors and direct sales fort
and do not vary in different parts of the world.

Long-Lived Assets Including Goodwill and Other Acqured Intangible Assets

Long-lived assets held and used by the Group aaddible assets, excluding goodwill, are reviewadrpairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the iceyymount of such assets may not be recoverdiiie. Group evaluates recoverability of
assets to be held and used by comparing the cgrayimount of an asset to future net undiscounteld ftaws to be generated by the asset. If
such assets are considered to be impaired, thérimgat loss is measured by the amount by whictcéneying amount of the assets exceed
fair value of the assets calculated using a disimlifuture cash flows analysis. During the fisegdr ended March 31, 2008, the Group made a
provision for impairment of $200,000 (2009: $0; A0%0) on its investment in a private company duedntinuous losses and net liability
positions.

Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment reviethe evaluation of goodwill for impairment involvéno steps: (1) the
identification of potential impairment by comparitige fair value of a reporting unit with its camgiamount, including goodwill and (2) the
measurement of the amount of goodwill loss by caingahe implied fair value of the reporting unaagwill with the carrying amount of that
goodwill and recognizing a loss by the excess efléitter over the former. The Company measurev#iie based upon a discounted future
cash flow analysis. No provision was made by theu@ on impairment of goodwill for the year endedrivh 31, 2010 and 2009. During the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 the Company médd# provision of the goodwill ($842,821) becausfeGram Precision’s failure to meet
business objectives and achieve profitability dyitime fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

Brand Name

Brand name acquired as part of the purchase ofiadss is capitalized based on the estimated dievas at the date of acquisition
and amortized using the straight-line method olerrelated estimated useful life of 15 years. \Wlzar indication of impairment exists, the
carrying amount of the brand name is assessed dtidmdown to its recoverable amount.

Expected useful lives are reviewed at each balaheet date and, where these differ significantyfprevious estimates, amortiza!
periods are changed accordingly. Where an indioaif impairment exists, such as the downturn ofiemic inflow from the brand name,
changes in business plan and so on, the carryimgiai® of brand name is assessed and written dodeitorecoverable amounts. The
measurement of the fair value of brand name isestiltp management’s assumptions regarding futuirm&zd cash flows, discount rates,
etc. Changes in these assumptions could significaffect the recording of an impairment charglatex to this asset. Based on the
assessment for the year ended March 31, 2008 vésimo of $1,597,392 was made by the Group for iimpant of brand name because of
Korona'’s failure to meet business objectives aridea® profitability during the fiscal year ended fda 31, 2008 (2009: $0, 2010: $0).
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Trade Receivables

Provision is made against trade receivables te@xient that collection is considered to be doubtithis provision is primarily
determined from our monthly aging analysis. Ibaksquires judgment regarding the collectabilitceftain receivables as certain receivables
may be identified as collectible that are subsetiyemcollectible and which could result in a sutpsent write-off of the related receivable to
the statement of operations. Any change in thiecibility of accounts receivable that were n@&wviwusly provided for could significantly
change the calculation of such provision and tselte of our operations.

Income Taxes, Deferred Income Taxes

On April 1, 2007, the Company adopted FIN 48, nadified with ASC 740. ASC 740 prescribes a recdgnithreshold and
measurement attributes for the financial statemessugnition and measurement of a tax position talkezxpected to be taken in a tax
return. ASC 740 also provides guidance on derdtiognclassification, interest and penalties, asdong in interim periods, disclosure and
transition. Only tax positions that meet the midrely-than-not recognition threshold at the effeetdate may be recognized or continue to be
recognized upon adoption of ASC 740. The Compaagtounting policy is to treat interest and peaaldis a component of income taxes.

Amounts in the consolidated financial statemernitsted to income taxes are calculated using thecjples of ASC 740. ASC 740
requires recognition of deferred tax assets atulitias for the expected future tax consequendevents that have been included in the
financial statements or tax returns. Under thishoe, deferred tax assets and liabilities are dgtexd based on the temporary differences
between the financial reporting basis and the tsisof assets and liabilities using enacted teesria effect for the year in which the
differences are expected to reverse. Future tagflis, such as net operating loss carry forwaads recognized as deferred tax
assets. Recognized deferred tax assets are reblyeedaluation allowance if, based on the weidtgvailable evidence, it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of the deferred taseasvill not be realized.

Research and Development, Patents and Licenses,.etc
We believe that our engineering and product devetq capabilities are important to the future sesad our business. We have
successfully lowered the costs of our researchdaveélopment team by moving most research and dewot activities to our facility in

China and principally employing Chinese engineais technicians at costs that are substantially tdien those that would be required in
Hong Kong. Research and development costs aresggden the financial period during which they a@urred.
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Trend Information

Although we are optimistic about our future in thanufacture and sale of telecommunications ane gralducts, we are dependent
upon a limited number of customers for a signiftqaortion of our revenues, and the loss of anynebé customers could have a material
adverse effect upon us and our results of opemtiéws of March 31, 2010, our backlog of manufaotyiorders was $7,379,961, as compared
to $7,152,691 as of March 31, 2009. We expectithtite fiscal year ending March 31, 2011, thedrehsales from scales will be more or less
the same as the year ended March 31, 2010, wiilsales of telecommunication products will contitudecrease.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any offalance sheet arrangements that have, or are edagdikely to have, a current or future effectaur financia
condition, changes in financial condition, revenaesxpenses, results of operations, liquidity itedyexpenditures or capital resources that are
material to investors.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
The new accounting pronouncements in the UniteteStaat may be relevant to the Group are as fatlow

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC 820. FABBC 820 clarifies when markets are illiquid ortth@arket pricing may not
actually reflect the “real” value of an asset. tharket is determined to be inactive and markeiepis reflective of a distressed price then an
alternative method of pricing can be used, such @®sent value technique to estimate fair vak&SB ASC 820 identifies factors to be
considered when determining whether or not a maskieactive. FASB ASC 820 would be effective fioterim and annual periods
ending after June 15, 2009, with early adoptiomiteed for periods ending after June 15, 2009 dvadl e applied prospectively. The adop
of FASB ASC 820 had no material effect on the Conyfmfinancial statements.

In May 2009, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 165 “Subsadtreents”. The objective of this statement isgtablish general standards of
accounting for and disclosures of events that oafter the balance sheet date but before finastiééments are issued or are available to be
issued. SFAS 165, which is now codified as FASB AS6 “Subsequent Events”, is effective for therimieand annual periods ending after
June 15, 2009. The adoption of FASB ASC 855 didnant a material impact on the Company’s finanedsiition, results of operations and
cash flows. Effective February 24, 2010, the Comypaaiopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) N@l@-09, ‘Subsequent Events (To|
855): Amendments to Certain Recognition and Disglefkequirements”, which removes the requiremediddose the date through which
subsequent events have been evaluated. The adoptioen ASU did not have a material impact on tleenPany’s financial position, results of
operations and cash flows.

In June 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC 105, whathl#ishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codificaéis the source of
authoritative accounting principles recognized iy FASB to be applied in the preparation of finahstatements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. FASB ASC 105 eikplicecognizes rules and interpretive releasethefSecurities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) under federal securities laws as authdrieaGAAP for SEC registrants. FASB ASC 105 is efffex for financial statements issued for
interim and annual periods ending after Septembe2@09. The codification is effective for the Gmemy for the year ended March 31,

2010. Adoption of FASB ASC 105 did not have a matémpact on the Company’s consolidated finanstatements.
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In August 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Stand#pdate No. 2009-05 (“ASU 2009-05"), FASB ASC 82@¢asuring Liabilities
at Fair Value”. ASU 2009-05 applies to all enstibat measure liabilities at fair value within gemf FASB ASC 820. ASU 20085 provides
clarification that in circumstances in which a qeobprice in an active market for the identical liabis not available, a reporting entity is
required to measure fair value using one or moheati@n techniques.

The amendments in ASU 2009-05 also clarify thatméstimating the fair value of a liability, a repog entity is not required to
include a separate input or adjustment to othartipelating to the existence of a restriction gratvents the transfer of the liability. It also
clarifies that both a quoted price in an active katfor the identical liability at the measuremdate and the quoted price for the identical
liability when traded as an asset in an active miankhen no adjustments to the quoted price of $Betaare required are level 1 fair value
measurements. The guidance provided in ASU 2008-88ective for the first reporting period begingiafter issuance. The adoption of ASU
2009-5 did not have a material impact on the Comigaconsolidated financial statements.

In September 2009, the FASB issued Accounting StatsdUpdate No. 2009-12 (“ASU 2009-12"), Fair VaMeasurements and
Disclosures (Topic 820), Investments in Certainitier®t that Calculate Net Asset Value per ShardtéoEquivalent). ASU 2009-12 provides
amendments to Subtopic 820-10, Fair Value Measun&sraand Disclosures — Overall, for the fair valueasurement of investments in certain
entities that calculate net asset value per sfitais. ASU also requires disclosures by major catggbinvestment about the attributes of
investments within the scope of the amendmentsignupdate. The amendments in this update aretifiéefor interim and annual periods
ending after December 15, 2009. The adoption sfghidance did not have a material impact on thagamy’s consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009‘@@nsolidations (Topic 810): Improvements to Finah&eporting by
Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest EnstieThe amendments in this update are the reslHASB Statement No. 16 Amendments t
FASB Interpretation No. 46 (R)”, which is now caddd as FASB ASC 810-10-50-2A “Consolidation — Owera Disclosure — Variable
Interest Entities” and is effective for the interand annual periods ending after December 15, 2089 adoption of ASU No. 2009-17 did not
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidfitencial statements.

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-Q2risolidation (Topic 810)'in which it clarifies that the scope of the deceein
ownership provision of the Subtopic and relatedlignce applies to a subsidiary or group of assatdgha business or nonprofit activity, but
does not apply to sales of substance real estat&eyances of oil and gas mineral rights. ASU 281.0-02 is effective for the interim and
annual periods ending after December 15, 2009.atloption of ASU No. 2010-02 did not have a matengdact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.
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In April 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-13, fmensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Effé@enominating the
Exercise Price of a Share-Based Payment AwardeiiCtinrency of the Market in Which the Underlyinguitg Security Trades”, which is now
codified as FASB ASC 718 “Compensation—Stock Conspéon”. This Update provides amendments to Topic 718 tafgldnat an employe
share-based payment award with an exercise priventi@ated in the currency of a market in which lassantial portion of the entity’s equity
securities trades should not be considered to poateondition that is not a market, performancesesvice condition. Therefore, an entity
would not classify such an award as a liabilitit Gtherwise qualifies as equity. The update ig&iff’e for fiscal years, and interim periods
within those fiscal years, beginning on or aftecBmber 15, 2010. The Company does not expect thatiad of ASC 2010-13 will have a
material impact on the Company’s financial positimsults of operations and cash flows.

Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees
Directors and Senior Management

Our board of directors and executive officers &ted below:

Name Age Position with Bonso

Anthony Sa 67 Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer &idector, President ar
Treasurer

Kim Wah Chunc 52 Director of Engineering and Research and Developmed Directol

Woc-Ping Fok 61 Director

J. Stewart Jackson, | 74 Director

Henry F. Schluete 59 Director and Assistant Secretz

Albert So 32 Chief Financial Officer and Secrete

ANTHONY SO is the founder of Bonso. He has beenCGhairman of the Board of Directors since July898le was appointed as
the Chief Executive Officer and the President owé&ober 16, 2006. Mr. So received his BSE degreévihengineering from National
Taiwan University in 1967 and a master’'s degreleuisiness administration (“MBA”) from the Hong Kongmpus of the University of Hull,
Hull, England in 1994. Mr. So has been ChairmathefHong Kong GO Association since 1986, and sésved as Chairman of the Alumni
Association of National Taiwan University for th89B3-1994 academic years. Mr. So has served astaérof the Chinese University of Hong
Kong, New Asia College since 1994,

KIM WAH CHUNG has been a director since Septemiderl®94. Mr. Chung has been employed by us sif8& and currently
holds the position of Director of Engineering anesBarch and Development. Mr. Chung is responfiblall research projects and product
development. Mr. Chung’s entire engineering cahesrbeen spent with Bonso, and he has been ird/ohval of our major product
developments. Mr. Chung graduated with honor<9®il1from the Chinese University of Hong Kong witBachelor of Science degree in
electronics.
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WOO-PING FOK was elected to our Board of DirectmnsSeptember 21, 1994. Mr. Fok has practiced takddng Kong since 1991
and is a Consultant with Messrs. C.K. Mok & Co. . Mok’s major areas of practice include conveyagainreal property law, corporations
and business law, commercial transactions andnatienal trade with a special emphasis in Chindetraatters. Mr. Fok was admitted to the
Canadian Bar as a Barrister & Solicitor in Decenitf#87 and was a partner in the law firm of Woo &JFa Canadian law firm with its head
office in Edmonton, Alberta, Canada. In 1991, Mok was qualified to practice as a Solicitor of Emgl & Wales, a Solicitor of Hong Kong
and a Barrister & Solicitor of Australian Capitadrfitory.

J. STEWART JACKSON IV has been a director sincaidan10, 2000. From 1962 until its merger with Raf Industries in 1996,
Mr. Jackson served in various management capaditiesding president, of Denver Burglar Alarm Clog., a business founded by his
family. In addition, in the mid-1960’s, Mr. Jackstounded Denver Burglar Alarm Products, a separamepany which invented, patented,
manufactured, distributed and installdtie first self-contained ionization smoke detectmd which was later sold to a conglomerate
manufacturer. After the merger of Denver Burgléar/ Co., Inc., Mr. Jackson founded Jackson Burglarm Co., Inc. Mr. Jackson served
as Chief Executive Officer of Jackson Burglar Ala@o. from February 1998 to October 2005. Mr. Janksas served as the Chief Executive
Officer of 3 S J Corporation. Mr. Jackson servedhe advisory board of directors for Underwritdradboratories for burglar and fire alarm
systems for 25 years and has been an officer i€#mgral Station Protection Association, whichnglavith the National Burglar Alarm
Association, was formed by his family in the la@1@’s. Mr. Jackson graduated from the Universft€olorado in 1962 with a degree in
Business Management and Engineering.

HENRY F. SCHLUETER has been a director since Oat@081, and has been our Assistant Secretary Slotaber 6, 1988. Since
1992, Mr. Schlueter has been the Managing Diremt&chlueter & Associates, P.C., a law firm, preiaty in the areas of securities, mergers
and acquisitions, finance and corporate law. Mhl&eter has served as our United States corpanatsecurities counsel since 1988. From
1989 to 1991, prior to establishing Schlueter & @&sates, P.C., Mr. Schlueter was a partner in teever, Colorado office of Kutak Rock
(formerly Kutak, Rock & Campbell), and from 19841889, he was a partner in the Denver office okshel& Harding. Mr. Schlueter is a
member of the American Institute of Certified PalAiccountants, the Colorado and Denver Bar Assiocist and the Wyoming State Bar.

ALBERT SO was appointed as the Chief Financial Odfehe Company in March 2009. Mr. So was finsiptoyed as the Financial
Controller of the Company in January 2008 and msaagement trainee of the Company in November 200ir to his employment as a
management trainee of the Company, Albert So wagdent. Mr. Albert So is a Certified Managementduntant, Financial Risk Manager,
and has received a Bachelor degree in Mathematios $imon Fraser University in Burnaby, British Qolbia, Canada.
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Anthony So, the Company’s President, Chief Exeeu@ificer and Chairman of the Board of Directorthis father of Albert So, the
Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

No arrangement or understanding exists betweersagty director or officer and any other personsyamsto which any director or
executive officer was elected as a director or etiee officer. Our directors are elected annualiy serve until their successors take office or
until their death, resignation or removal. Thearive officers serve at the pleasure of the Badidirectors.

Compensation

The aggregate amount of compensation paid by usanslubsidiaries during the year ended March 8102o all directors, former
directors, and officers as a group for serviceallicapacities was $1,176,056. Total compensdtiothe benefit of Anthony So was $800,000,
for the benefit of Kim Wah Chung was $151,103,tfae benefit of George O’Leary was $60,000, fortikaefit of Albert So was $86,538 and
for the benefit of Henry F. Schlueter was an agategf $78,415. The $78,415 listed as having Ipadh for the benefit of Mr. Schlueter was
paid to his law firm, Schlueter & Associates, Pf@.legal services rendered.

We did not set aside or accrue any amounts to geegeénsion, retirement or similar benefits for clioes and officers for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2010, other than contributiormur Provident Fund Plan, which aggreg: $15,846 for officers and directors.

Employment Agreements

We have employment agreements with Anthony So dndWah Chung. Mr. S& employment agreement provides for a yearly s
of approximately $800,000 per year plus bonus,MndChung’s employment agreement provides for a yearly saaapproximately $200,0(
per year plus bonus, as stated in their respeetivloyment agreements, which expire on March 3132@@ne of the properties of the Group
in Hong Kong is also provided to Mr. So as parhisfcompensation. Mr. So’s employment agreememtiagios a provision under which we
will be obligated to pay Mr. So all compensationtite remainder of his employment agreement aretfimes his annual salary and bonus
compensation if a change of control, as definduisremployment agreement occurs.
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Options of Directors and Senior Management

The following table provides information concernioptions owned by the directors and senior manageateMarch 31, 2010.

Number of
Common
Shares
Subject to Exercise
Stock Price
Name Options Per Share Expiration Date
Anthony Sa 128,00( $ 3.65 April 9, 2011
128,00( $ 2.5C March 6, 201
222,50( $ 1.61 March 31, 201
Kim Wah Chunc 20,00( $ 3.65 April 9, 2011
20,00( $ 2.5C March 6, 201-
55,00( $ 1.61 March 31, 201
Woc-Ping Fok 10,00( $ 7.87¢ January 9, 201
10,00( $ 6.12 March 25, 201«
10,00( $ 6.2C September 12, 201
10,00( $ 4.5C December 4, 201
J. Stewart Jackson | 10,00( $ 7.87¢ January 9, 201
10,00( $ 2.5 October 15, 201
10,00( $ 1.61 March 31, 201
10,00( $ 6.12 March 25, 201«
10,00( $ 6.2C September 12, 201
10,00( $ 4.5C December 4, 201
Henry F. Schluete 10,00( $ 6.12 March 25, 201
10,00( $ 6.2C September 12, 201
10,00( $ 4.5C December 4, 201

Directors

Except as mentioned above, our directors do neiveany additional monetary compensation for sgrim their capacities. All
directors are reimbursed for all reasonable expeimgeirred in connection with their services asractor.

Employee retirement benefits

(@) With effect from January 1, 1988, BEL, a wiatned foreign subsidiary of the Company in Hong &oimplemented a defin
contribution plan (the “Plan"yith a major international assurance company twidmlife insurance and retirement benefits fo
employees. All permanent full time employees whiogd BEL before December 2000, excluding factoorkers, are eligible to jo
the provident fund plan. Eligible employees of Bian are required to contribute 5% of their mongdlary, while BEL is required
contribute from 5% to 10% based on the eligible layge’s salary, depending on the number of yearthefeligible employee’
service.

The Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPRVas introduced by the Hong Kong Government, andnsented in December 2000. B
joined the MPF by implementing a plan with a majdernational assurance company. All permanentgHtong full time employees
who joined BEL on or after December 2000, excludaxjory workers, are eligible to join the MPF.igible employees’ and the
employer’s contributions to the MPF are both at&@dthe eligible employee’s monthly salary and arkjsct to a maximum
contribution of HK$1,000 (US$128) monthly.
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Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Gi®ugguired to make contributions for each empéoy rates based upon the
employee’s standard salary base as determinedeldgdhl Social Security Bureau, to a defined cbotion retirement scheme
organized by the local Social Security Bureau speet of the retirement benefits for the Group’pkyees in the PRC.

(b) The contributions to each of the above schemeseamgnized as employee benefit expense when tleegiier and are charged to
consolidated statement of income (loss). The Gmotgtal contributions to the above schemes forydmrs ended March 31, 20
2009 and 2010 amounted to $251,538, $324,882 an@, $27, respectively. The Group has no other atibg to make payments
respect of retirement benefits of the employ

Board Practices

All directors hold office until our next annual niieg of shareholders or until their respective fssors are duly elected and qualified
or their positions are earlier vacated by resigmatir otherwise. All executive officers are appethby the Board and serve at the pleasure of
the Board. There are no director service contracisiding for benefits upon termination of emplagmt or directorship.

NASDAQ Exemptions and Home Country Practices

NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 4350 provides that forefigivate issuers may elect to follow certain homentoy corporate governance
practices so long as they provide NASDAQ with gefefrom outside counsel in its home country cgirtid that the issuer 's corporate
governance practices are not prohibited by homatcplaw.

On July 19, 2005, we submitted a letter to NASDARtifying that certain of Bonso’s corporate goveroe practices are not
prohibited by the relevant laws of the British Mirdslands. We will follow British Virgin Islandaw in respect to the following requirements:

A majority of Bons('s board of directors will not be independe
Bonso will not have a nominating committ

Bonso will not have a compensation commit

Bonsc's independent directors will not meet in execusigssion; an
Bonsc's audit committee may have only one mem

Audit Committee

Mr. Woo Ping Fok and Mr. Henry F. Schlueter arerttembers of the Audit Committee. Mr. Fok is “indaegent” as defined in the
NASDAQ listing standards and Mr. Schlueter may lmtonsidere“independent” since his law firm serves as Bon&fri#ted States counsel.

The Audit Committee was established to: (i) revaawd approve the scope of audit procedures employedir independent auditors;
(ii) review and approve the audit reports renddngdur independent auditors; (iii) approve the atek charged by the independent auditors;
(iv) report to the Board of Directors with respexsuch matters; (v) recommend the selection afpeddent auditors; and (vi) discharge such
other responsibilities as may be delegated t@ihftime to time by the Board of Directors. Effgetias of August 17, 2000, the Board of
Directors adopted a formal charter for its Auditn@uittee, which was amended effective June 30, 2005.
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Employees

At March 31, 2010, we employed a total of 1,87%pas, as compared to 1,557 persons at March 39,802,755 persons at Mal
31, 2008; 22 employees in Hong Kong (24 in 2009 Zhih 2008), 1,857 employees in China (1,533 id2énd 2,724 in 2008). Employees
are not covered by collective bargaining agreemeWts consider our global labor practices and egygsaelations to be good.

Share Ownership

The following table shows the number of sharesoofimion stock beneficially owned by our directors ardcutive officers as of
August 31, 2010:

Total Numbe
of
Shares of Shares of
Common Common
Stock Ownec Stock Percent o
of Beneficially Beneficial
Name Record Options Helc Owned Ownershig
Anthony Sa 1,626,190 478,50(@ 2,104,69! 34.6%
Kim Wah Chunc 93,70( 95,00(®) 188,70( 3.5%
Henry F. Schluete 34,00( 30,00(® 64,00( 1.2%
Wooe-Ping Fok 66,507 40,00® 106,50° 2.C%
J. Stewart Jackson | 462,57'©) 60,00() 522,57 9.8%
Albert So 0 0 0 0%
All Directors and Officers as a group (6 persc 2,282,97 703,50( 2,986,47 47.%

Note: The number of shares outstanding is 5,246s8@8es, with 5,577,639 total number of shares@sthich includes 330,736 sha
in treasury. The calculations above are based thpnumber of shares issued of 5,577t

(1) Includes 1,143,421 shares of common stock ownedaunfrd by a corporation that is wholly owned byuwst of which Mr. S
is the sole benefician

2) Includes options to purchase 128,000 shares of aimstock at an exercise price of $3.65 per shgv@ieg on April 9, 2011
options to purchase 128,000 shares of common stbek exercise price of $2.50 per share expiringdanch 6, 2012 ar
options to purchase 222,500 shares of common stiogak exercise price of $1.61 per share expirinlylarch 31, 2013

3) Includes options to purchase 20,000 shares of canstozk at an exercise price of $3.65 per shar@iegmon April 9, 2011
options to purchase 20,000 shares of common stbek axercise price of $2.50 per share expiringvianch 6, 2012, ar
options to purchase 55,000 shares of common staak exercise price of $1.61 per share expiriniylanch 31, 201!
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4) Includes options to purchase 10,000 shares of canstozk at an exercise price of $6.12 expiring aard¥i 25, 2014, optio
to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock at aniserice of $6.20 per share expiring on SepterhiBe2014 and optio
to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock at aciseerice of $4.50 per share expiring on Decemb@015

(5) Includes options to purchase 10,000 shares of canmstaxk at an exercise price of $7.875 per shap@&ieg on January
2011, and options to purchase 10,000 shares of constock at an exercise price of $6.12 expiringMarch 25, 201«
options to purchase 10,000 shares of common stoak exercise price of $6.20 per share expiringeptember 12, 2014 ¢
options to purchase 10,000 shares of common staahk exercise price of $4.50 per share expirinecember 4, 201!

(6) Includes 461,975 shares held by Mr. Jackson andbages held by Mr. Jacke's wife.

@) Includes options to purchase 10,000 shares of camstaxk at an exercise price of $7.875 per shap&ieg on January
2011, and options to purchase 10,000 shares of constock at an exercise price of $2.55 expiringatober 15, 2011, a
options to purchase 10,000 shares of common stioak axercise price of $1.61 expiring on March 2113,and options t
purchase 10,000 shares of common stock at an egqudce of $6.12 expiring on March 25, 2014, aptito purchase 10,0
shares of common stock at an exercise price of0f§e? share expiring on September 12, 2014 andrptd purchase 10,0
shares of common stock at an exercise price 0034eb share expiring on December 4, 2(

Stock Option and Bonus Plans
The 1996 Stock Option Plan

In October 1996, our stockholders adopted the Fa66k Option Plan (the “Employees’ Planihich provides for the grant of optio
to purchase an aggregate of not more than 400/2@@s of our common stock. In January 2000, ocarredtolders approved the proposal of the
Board of Directors to increase from 400,000 to 800,in the aggregate the number of options to @seltommon stock under the Employees’
Plan. The purpose of the Employees’ Plan is toerggitions available to management and employeesiar to encourage them to secure or
increase on reasonable terms their stock ownesgstdpo encourage them to remain with the Company.

The Employees’ Plan is administered by a comméfgeointed by the Board of Directors which determitiee persons to be granted
options under the Employees’ Plan, the number afeshsubject to each option, the exercise prieach option and the option period, subject
to the requirement that no option may be exercésaimre than ten years after the date of grant. ekkecise price of an option may be less:
the fair market value of the underlying sharesarhmon stock. No options granted under the Empl&ter are transferable by the optionee
other than by will or the laws of descent and distion and each option will be exercisable during lifetime of the optionee, only by such
optionee.

The exercise price of an option granted pursuatitead&Employees’ Plan may be paid in cash, by theesder of options, in common
stock, in other property, including the optionegemissory note, or by a combination of the abat@ur discretion.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, ndomstwere granted under the Employees Plan.
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The 2004 Stock Option Plan

On March 23, 2004, our stockholders adopted the Z06ck Option Plan (the “2004 Plan”) which prodder the grant of up to six
hundred thousand (600,000) shares of the Companysnon stock in the form of stock options, subjeatertain adjustments as described in
the 2004 Plan.

The purpose of the 2004 Plan is to secure key grapkto remain in the employ of the Company arehttourage such employees to
secure or increase on reasonable terms their corstook ownership in the Corporation. The Compagiiebes that the 2004 Plan promotes
continuity of management and increased incentivepanrsonal interest in the welfare of the Company.

The 2004 Plan is administered by a committee apediby the Board of Directors which consists diast two but not more than
three members of the Board, one of whom shall beraemployee of the Company. The committee menmtherently are Anthony So and
Woo-Ping Fok. The committee determines the spetgfims of the options granted, including the erygds to be granted options under the
plan, the number of shares subject to each optiantgthe exercise price of each option and theopggeriod, subject to the requirement tha
option may be exercisable more than 10 years tiféedate of grant. The exercise price of an optiay be less than the fair market value of
the underlying shares of common stock. No optgnasited under the plan will be transferable byap#onee other than by will or the laws of
descent and distribution and each option will bereisable, during the lifetime of the optionee yooy the optionee.

The exercise price of an option granted pursuatiie®®004 Plan may be paid in cash, by the surresfdgptions, in common stock, in
other property, including a promissory note frora dptionee, or by a combination of the above, atikcretion of the Committee.

As of March 31, 2010, no options had been grantettuthe 2004 Plan.
2004 Stock Bonus Plan

On September 7, 2004, our stockholders adopte@@B4 Stock Bonus Plan (the “Stock Bonus Plan”) Wtaathorizes the issuance of
up to five hundred thousand (500,000) shares o€tirporation’s Common Stock in the form of stockt@ck bonus.

The purpose of this Stock Bonus Plan is to: @uice key employees to remain in the employ of thep@ration, or of any subsidiary
of the Corporation; (ii) encourage such employeeseture or increase their stock ownership in tip@ration; and (iii) reward employees,
non-employee directors, advisors and consultamtsefvices rendered or to be rendered to or fobémefit of the Corporation or any of its
subsidiaries. The Corporation believes that SBahkus Plan will promote continuity of managemerd arcreased incentive and personal
interest in the welfare of the Corporation.

The Stock Bonus Plan shall be administered by antittee appointed by the Board of Directors whichgists of at least two but not
more than three members of the Board, one of whuaati ke a non-employee of the Corporation. The @ittee members currently are
Anthony So and Woo-Ping Fok. The Committee hastithority, in its sole discretion: (i) to detemaithe parties to receive bonus stock, the
times when they shall receive such awards, the eumibshares to be issued, and the time, termgamditions of the issuance of any such
shares; (ii) to construe and interpret the termh@fStock Bonus Plan; (iii) to establish, amend @scind rules and regulations for the
administration of the Stock Bonus Plan; and (ivinake all other determinations necessary or adgabadministering the Stock Bonus Pl
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As of March 31, 2010, no shares had been grantddrihe Stock Bonus Plan.
Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Tranactions

Major shareholders

We are not directly or indirectly owned or conteallby any foreign government or by another corpamatThe following table sets
forth, as of August 31, 2010, beneficial ownerstfipur common stock by each person, to the bestpknowledge, known to own
beneficially 5% or more of our common stock outdiag as of such date. Except as otherwise indicatiée shares are owned directly and hold

equal voting rights.

Options tao
Shares of Purchase Percent of
Common Common Beneficial
Name Stock Owne( Stock Ownershig®
Anthony Sc 1,626,19/@ 478,50 34.&%
J. Stewart Jackson | 462,57¢ 60,00(® 9.27%
W. Douglas Morelan: 501,40( - 8.9%
CAS Corporatior 290,65 - 5.21%
1) Based on beneficial ownership of both shares nfrmon stock and of options to purchase common stwtkare immediately
exercisable The calculations above are based upon the numistranés issued of 5,577,6:
2 Includes 1,143,421 shares of common stock ownedanird by a corporation that is wholly owned byust of which Mr. Sc
is the sole benefician
3) See“Share Ownersh” for additional information

There are no arrangements known to us which maysabsequent date result in a change in contithleo€ompany.

Related Party Transactions

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, wel smhlueter & Associates, P.C. an aggregate o$B&or legal fees. Mr. Henry
F. Schlueter, a director of the Company, is the &@mg Director of Schlueter & Associates, P.C.

As of March 31, 2008, BEL had paid deposits of agpnately US$1,528,000 with regard to potentialésiments in a commercial
residential building and a land use right in theCPBubsequently to this fiscal year end, Mr. Anth&o, Chairman of Bonso decided to take
BEL'’s potential investments and paid BEL the futi@unt of approximately US$1,528,000 in Septemb@&820T he carrying amount of the
deposits approximates their fair value due to thleart maturities.
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Interests of Experts and Counsel
Not Applicable.
Legal Proceedings
Not Applicable.
Item 8. Financial Information
Financial Statements
Our Consolidated Financial Statements are set fortter ltem 18. Financial Statements.
Iltem 9. The Offer and Listing
Listing Details
Our common stock is traded only in the United Stateer-the-counter market. It is quoted on the NA® Capital Market under the
trading symbol “BNSO.” The following table setgttg for the periods indicated, the range of higtl bow closing sales prices per share
reported by NASDAQ. The quotations represent grimetween dealers and do not include retail mankgkdown or commissions and may

not necessarily represent actual transactions.

The following table sets forth the high and lowesptices for each of the last five years:

Period High Low
April 1, 2005 to March 31, 20C $ 7.0C $ 3.4C
April 1, 2006 to March 31, 20C $ 547 $ 3.01
April 1, 2007 to March 31, 20C $ 468 $ 1.8¢€
April 1, 2008 to March 31, 20C $ 248§ 0.0¢
April 1, 2009 to March 31, 201 $ 14z $ 0.6:

The following table sets forth the high and lowesptices during each of the quarters in the ywwar period ended September 30, 2!

Period High Low
October 1, 2008 to December 31, 2( $ 13¢ 0.0¢
January 1, 2009 to March 31, 2C $ 13€ $ 0.62
April 1, 2009 to June 30, 20( $ 138 % 0.8:
July 1, 2009 to September 30, 2( $ 14z % 0.8z
October 1, 2009 to December 31, 2( $ 137 $ 0.7¢
January 1, 2010 to March 31, 2C $ 12 % 0.6:
April 1, 2010 to June 30, 20: $ 132 % 0.9
July 1, 2010 to September 30, 2( $ 14z % 0.92
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The following table sets forth the high and lowesptices during each of the most recent six months.

Period High Low
April 2010 $ 132 $ 1.1¢
May 2010 $ 128 % 0.9¢
June 201( $ 1.1z % 0.9¢
July 2010 $ 11 % 0.8¢
August 201( $ 111 % 0.92
September 201 $ 14 % 1.0¢

On October 4, 2010, the closing price of our commsimek was $1.35. Of the 5,577,639 shares of comstuck issued as of August
31, 2010, 5,246,903 shares were outstanding, 3B2&hares were held in the United States by 18&of record, and 330,736 shares were
held by the Company as treasury stock. We haves@@feholders of record and estimate that we h@vesBareholders holding their stock in
street name (who have not objected to their naragglaisclosed to us).

Transfer and Warrant Agent

The transfer agent and registrar for the commockssoComputershare, 1745 Gardena Avenue #200dalenCalifornia 91204.
Item 10. Additional Information
Share Capital

Our authorized capital is $170,000 consisting 9833,334 shares of common stock, $0.003 par vausimre, and 10,000,000
authorized shares of preferred stock, $0.01 parevalivided into 2,500,000 shares each of classefepred stock, class B preferred stock, ¢
C preferred stock and class D preferred stockorinétion with respect to the number of shares afroon stock outstanding at the beginning

and at the end of the last three fiscal yearsasenmted in the Consolidated Statements of Chandggisareholders’ Equity for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 included hardieam 18.
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At August 31, 2010, there were 5,577,639 sharesipEommon stock issued, 5,246,903 shares wereadiag, and 330,736 shares were
held by the Company in treasury. All shares waly paid. In addition, we had outstanding 856,8@@ions to purchase common stock as
follows:

Exercise
Number of Price Expiration
Options per Share Date
30,00( $ 7.87¢ January 9, 201
196,00( $ 3.6t April 9, 2011
10,00( $ 2.5¢E October 15, 201
168,00( $ 2.5C March 6, 201
342,50( $ 1.61 March 31, 201
40,00( $ 6.12 March 25, 201
40,00( $ 6.2C September 12, 20
30,00( $ 4.5C December 4, 20:

At August 31, 2010 there were no shares of oureprefl stock outstanding.
Memorandum and Articles of Association

We are registered in the British Virgin Islands drade been assigned company number 9032 in theteegif companies. Our
registered agent is HWR Services Limited at Craigi@hambers, P.O. Box 71, Road Town, Tortola, BhitVirgin Islands. The object or
purpose of the Company is to engage in any acttovity that is not prohibited under British Virgislands law as set forth in Paragraph 4 of
our Memorandum of Association. As an InternatidBasiness Company, we are prohibited from doingnass with persons resident in the
British Virgin Islands, owning real estate in thetBh Virgin Islands or acting as a bank or inswea company. We do not believe that these
restrictions materially affect our operations.

Paragraph 57(c) of our Amended Articles of Assaaiafthe “Articles”) provides that a director mag bounted as one of a quorum in
respect of any contract or arrangement in whictdthextor is materially interested; however, if figreement or transaction cannot be appr
by a resolution of directors without counting theesor consent of any interested director, theergent or transaction may only be validate:
approval or ratification by a resolution of the nimsrs. Paragraph 53 of the Articles allows theatimes to vote compensation to themselves in
respect of services rendered to the Company. Rarh@6 of the Articles provides that the directosy by resolution exercise all the powers
of the Company to borrow money and to mortgageharge its undertakings and property or any paretifeto issue debentures, debenture
stock and other securities whenever money is bardoov as security for any debt, liability or obliga of ours or of any third party. Such
borrowing powers can be altered by an amendmethetérticles. There is no provision in the Artiglfor the mandatory retirement of
directors. Directors are not required to own shafe¢he Company in order to serve as directors.

Our authorized share capital is $170,000 dividéo 28,333,334 shares of common stock, $0.003 daeyvand 10,000,000 authorized
shares of preferred stock, $0.01 par value. Heldépur common stock are entitled to one voteerh whole share on all matters to be voted
upon by shareholders, including the election oéctiors. Holders of our common stock do not haveudative voting rights in the election of
directors. All of our common shares are equaktcheother with respect to liquidation and divideigihts. Holders of our common shares are
entitled to receive dividends if and when decldvgaur board of directors out of funds legally dakblie therefor under British Virgin Islands
law. In the event of our liquidation, all assetaitable for distribution to the holders of our coon shares are distributable among them
according to their respective holdings. Holderswf common stock have no preemptive rights tolpase any additional unissued common
shares. No shares of our preferred stock have ibseed however the board of directors has théyabil determine the rights, preferences and
restrictions of the preferred stock at their ditiore
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Paragraph 7 of the Memorandum of Association pewithat without prejudice to any special rights/pmesly conferred on the
holders of any existing shares, any share maydoeiswith such preferred, deferred or other speights or such restrictions, whether in
regard to dividend, voting, return of capital onenwise, as the directors may from time to timesdatne.

Paragraph 10 of the Memorandum of Association pleithat if at any time the authorized share claigidivided into different
classes or series of shares, the rights attachaaytalass or series may be varied with the corisentiting of the holders of not less than three-
fourths of the issued shares of any other clasgiies of shares which may be affected by suclatian.

Paragraph 105 of the Articles of Association pregidhat our Memorandum and Articles of Associatimy be amended by a
resolution of members or a resolution of directofbus, our board of directors without shareholfgsroval may amend our Memorandum and
Articles of Association. This includes amendmenticrease or reduce our authorized capital st@zlr ability to amend our Memorandum
and Articles of Association without shareholdermp@al could have the effect of delaying, determmgreventing a change in control of the
Company, including a tender offer to purchase aanmon shares at a premium over the then curreritanprice.

Provisions in respect of the holding of general tings and extraordinary general meetings are gehdRaragraphs 68 through 77 of
the Articles and under the International Businesm@anies Act. The directors may convene meetifiggseomembers at such times and in ¢
manner and places as the directors consider negessdesirable, and they shall convene such aingeapon the written request of members
holding more than 30% of the votes of our outstagdioting shares.

British Virgin Islands law and our Memorandum andiéles of Association impose no limitations on tight of nonresident or
foreign owners to hold or vote our securities. fEhare no provisions in the Memorandum and Articlie8ssociation governing the ownership
threshold above which shareholder ownership mustisidosed.

A copy of our Memorandum and Articles of Associatias amended, was filed as an exhibit to our Regjisn Statement on Form F-
2 (SEC File No. 333-32524).

Material Contracts

The following summarizes each material contrad¢tepothan contracts entered into in the ordinarys®of business, to which Bonso
or any subsidiary of Bonso is a party, for the fears immediately preceding the filing of this repo
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We signed a Banking Facility Letter, dated Jan&&r3010, amending our Banking Facilities Lettersedapril 17, 2009, April 6,
2009, October 14, 2008, June 4, 2008 and June0g, R&ween Bonso and Standard Chartered Bank folik&i-3,000,000 letter of credit, trt
receipt facility, export D/P bills, export tradealn factoring and overdraft facility. A copy ofgtBanking Facilities Letter is attached to this
Annual Report on Form 20-F as Exhibit 4.1 and omporated herein by this reference.

We signed a Banking Facility Letter dated Febri28y2010, with Hang Seng Bank for a HK$63,000,@0tef of credit, trust receipt
facility, export D/P bills, export trade loan, fadhg and overdraft facility that amended our poes facility with Hang Seng Bank, including
the facility entered into pursuant to that Bankiragility Letter dated March 6, 2009. A copy ofstfianking Facilities Letter is attached to this
Annual Report on Form 20-F as Exhibit 4.2 and omorated herein by this reference.

Exchange Controls

There are no exchange control restrictions on paysngf dividends on our common stock or on the cohdf our operations either in
Hong Kong, where our principal executive offices lrcated, or the British Virgin Islands, where ave incorporated. Other jurisdictions in
which we conduct operations may have various exghaontrols. Taxation and repatriation of profégarding our China operations are
regulated by Chinese laws and regulations. Wipeet to our PRC subsidiaries, with the exceptiom requirement that about 11% of profits
be reserved for future developments and staff weslthere are no restrictions on the payment afldivds and the removal of dividends from
China once all taxes are paid and assessed amd dsany, from previous years have been made.gdoddate, these controls have not had,
and are not expected to have, a material impaouofinancial results. There are no material Bhit/irgin Islands laws that impose foreign
exchange controls on us or that affect the paymedividends, interest or other payments to holaémsur securities who are not residents of
the British Virgin Islands. British Virgin Islandaw and our Memorandum and Articles of Associatiopose no limitations on the right of
nonresident or foreign owners to hold or vote @mausities.

Taxation

No reciprocal tax treaty regarding withholding e¢xibetween the United States and the British Vitgliands. Under current British
Virgin Islands law, dividends, interest or royadtigaid by us to individuals are not subject todgaxong as the recipient is not a resident of the
British Virgin Islands. If we were to pay a divit# we would not be liable to withhold any tax, bhareholders would receive gross divide
if any, irrespective of their residential or na@bstatus.

Dividends, if any, paid to any United States reside citizen shareholder are treated as dividendre for United States federal
income tax purposes. Such dividends are not éiddy the 70% dividends-received deduction allowetnited States corporations on
dividends from a domestic corporation under Sec2i4® of the Internal Revenue Code. Various InteRevenue Code provisions impose
special taxes in certain circumstances on non-distates corporations and their shareholders. afewrged to consult your tax advisor with
regard to such possibilities and your own tax situne
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A foreign corporation will be treated as a passoreign investment company (“PFICfr United States federal income tax purp
if, after applying relevant lookirough rules with respect to the income and assfetsibsidiaries, 75% or more of its gross incomesgsts ¢
certain types of passive income or 50% or mordefgross value of itassets is attributable to assets that produceveaissiome or are held 1
the production of passive income. For this purppsasive income generally includes dividends r@#e royalties, rents (other that rents
royalties derived in the active conduct of a tradéusiness), annuities and gains from assetptbdtice passive income. We presently be
that we are not a PFIC and do not anticipate bemgm@iPFIC. This is, however, a factual determamathade on an annual basis and is su
to change. If we were to be classified as a PRl@ny taxable year, (i) U.S. holders would gengiiadl required to treat any gain on sales o
shares held by them as ordinary income and to paipntarest charge on the value of the deferralhefrtUnited States federal income
attributable to such gain and (ii) distributionsdohy us to our United States holders could alsguigect to an interest charge. In addition
would not provide information to our United Statedders that would enable them to make a “qualiBéztting fund”election under whic
generally, in lieu of the foregoing treatment, earnings would be currently included in their Udittates federal income.

In addition to United States federal income taxatghareholders may be subject to state and lagastupon their receipt of dividen
Documents on Display

You may read and copy documents referred to inAhisual Report on Form 20-F that have been filetthwie SEC at the SEC’s
Public Reference Room, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Vifagtion, D.C. You may obtain information on the gi®n of the Public Reference Room
by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. You can alst@ain copies of our SEC filings by going to tHeC3s website at http://www.sec.gov.

The SEC allows us to “incorporate by reference”itfiermation we file with the SEC. This means that can disclose important
information to you by referring you to another domnt filed separately with the SEC. The informatiimcorporated by reference is conside
to be part of this Annual Report on Form 20-F.
Iltem 11. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk

We are exposed to a certain level of interestniakeand foreign currency exchange risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Our interest rate risk primarily arises from oundeterm debt and our general banking facilities aAMarch 31, 2010, there was no
long-term debt. We had utilized $2,163,112 of our tbtatking facilities of $14,707,693. Based on ttaturity profile and composition of o
long-term debt and general banking facilities, uidihg the fact that our banking facilities are atiable interest rates, we estimate that change:

in interest rates will not have a material impattoor operating results or cash flows. We intenchtinage our interest rate risk through
appropriate borrowing strategies. We have notredtato interest rate swap or risk managementesgeats; however, it is possible that we
may do so in the future.
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A summary of our debts as at March 31, 2010 whiehevgubjected to variable interest rates is asabelo

March 31, Interest
2010 rate
Notes payabli $ 2,094,53 HIBOR + 2.5% tc2.59%

Prime rate to Prime rate +
Bank overdraft- securec $ 68,58( 1%

HIBOR: Hong Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate

Interest rates are subject to change if the Compafaults on the amounts due under the facilitgramws in excess of the facility
amounts or at the discretion of the banks and rénoge 4% to 6% in addition to the United States &lwhg Kong Prime Rates, respectively.

All the balances above are due within one year.
A change in the interest rate of 1% will increase@crease the interest expense of the Compan2hy $4.

For further information concerning our banking féieis, the interest rates payable and repaymentseplease see Note 8 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsesvimethis Annual Report.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

For a discussion of our Foreign Currency Exchanigi,FSee Iltem 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prasptoreign
Currency Exchange Rates.”

Item 12. Description of Securities Other Than Equy Securities

Not applicable.

PART I
Item 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delingancies
None.
ltem 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of &curity Holders and Use of Proceeds

None.
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Iltem 15. Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participatioitso€hief Executive Officer and the Chief Finanh¢Xficer, conducted an
evaluation of our disclosure controls and procesiuss defined in paragraph (e) of Rule 13a-15 drlll5under the Exchange Act, as of March
31, 2010.

Based on this evaluation, Anthony So, the Chiefdatige Officer, and Albert So, the Chief Finandificer, have concluded that, as
of March 31, 2010, the Company’s disclosure contesid procedures were effective to provide readerssurance that information required
to be disclosed by the Company in reports it fdlesubmits under the Exchange Act is recorded,ge®ed, summarized and reported withir
time periods specified in the rules and forms ef #£C, and included controls and procedures designensure that information required tc
disclosed by the Company in such reports is accatadiland communicated to the Company’s managemehiding the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, ggpeopriate, to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure.

Management’'s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for estiaby and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting, as such
term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) 46d-15(f). The Compang'internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfjabilfinancial reporting and the preparation iofancial statements for external purposes in
accordance with applicable generally accepted attoayprinciples. A company’s internal control o¥imancial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to tlaéntenance of records that, in reasonable detaiyrately and fairly reflect the transactions
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) ideweasonable assurance that transactions aneleecas necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generalbepted accounting principles, and that receiptiseipenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of nganzent and directors of the Company; and (3) pewgsonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asijion, use or disposition of the company’s astieds could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢tmisstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future pesiade subject to the risk that controls may becoméequate because of changes in conditions
or that the degree of compliance with the policgeprocedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management has evaluated the e#aetss of the Comparsyinternal control over financial reporting as oéfdh 31
2010 based upon criteria established in Internalt@bdIntegrated Framework issued by the Committie8ponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based on the assessmer@otin@any’s management, including its Chief Execuficer and Chief Financial
Officer, concluded that, as of March 31, 2010, @menpany'’s internal control over financial reportings effective based on these criteria.
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Changes in internal controls over financial reportng

There were no changes in the Company’s internaralsmover financial reporting during the year ethdiéarch 31, 2010 that has
materially affected or is reasonably likely to miahy affect our internal control over financiaporting.

Item 16. Reserved
Item 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert

Henry F. Schlueter is a member of the Company’ét @odhmittee and is deemed to be a financial expit Schlueter, the
Company’s outside securities counsel, may not leengel to be “independent” within the definition aidependence” published by NASDAQ.

Item 16B. Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics that appliesnt&€hief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offit We intend to disclose any
changes in, or waivers from, our code of ethicdilbyg a Form 6-K. Stockholders may request a ftepy in print form from our Chief
Financial Officer at:
Bonso Electronics International, Inc.
Unit 1915-1916, 19/F, Delta House
3 On Yiu Street, Shek Mun
Shatin, N. T.
Hong Kong
Iltem 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Audit Committee’s pre-approval policies and procedue

The Audit Committee must pre-approve the audit mo-audit services performed by the independenit@uid order to assure that
the provision of such services does not impairainditor's independence. Before the Company oéitg subsidiaries engage the indepen:
auditor to render a service, the engagement musitier:

(1) specifically approved by the Audit@®mittee; or

2) entered into pursuant to this Pre-#wal Policy.

The term of any pre-approval is 12 months fromdate of pre-approval, unless the Audit Committescjally provides for a

different period. The Audit Committee may periadig revise the list of pre-approved services.
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The Audit Committee may delegate pre-approval aitthto one or more of its members. The membeanembers to whom such
authority is delegated shall report any pre-apprdeaisions to the Audit Committee at its next shlied meeting. The Audit Committee may
not delegate to management the Audit Committesfsorsibilities to pre-approve services performedhgyindependent auditor.

The Audit Committee must specifically pre-approlve terms of the annual audit services engagenigrg.Audit Committee shall
approve, if necessary, any changes in terms regudtdm changes in audit scope, Company structuceher matters. In addition to the annual
audit services engagement approved by the Auditr@ittee, the Audit Committee may grant pre-apprdeabther audit services, which are
those services that only the independent auditsaably can provide.

The Audit Committee may grant pre-approval to thosemissible non-audit services classified as atkevices that it believes would
not impair the independence of the auditor, inaigdhose that are routine and recurring services.

The Audit Committee may consider the amount or eamigestimated fees as a factor in determining kndred proposed service would
impair the auditor's independence. Where the ADdinmittee has approved an estimated fee for aceemhe pre-approval applies to all
services described in the approval. However, énetbent the invoice in respect of any such serigioeaterially in excess of the estimated
amount or range, the Audit Committee must appraxvh £xcess amount prior to payment of the invoitiee Audit Committee expects that
any requests to pay invoices in excess of the agtidnamounts will include an explanation as toré@son for the overage. The Company’s
independent auditor will be informed of this policy

The Company’s management shall inform the Audit @uftee of each service performed by the indepenaeditor pursuant to this
Pre-Approval Policy. Requests or applicationsrvjule services that require separate approvahéyAudit Committee shall be submitted to
the Audit Committee by both the independent auditad the Chief Financial Officer and must includeiat statement as to whether, in their
view, the request or application is consistent whitn SEC’s and the Public Company Accounting OgatsBoard (United States)’s rules on
auditor independence.

The audit fee indicated below was pre-approvechbyAudit Committee before the auditor commenced therk.

Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed by Moore Stephens fdepsional services rendered for the audit of thep@@tion’s annual consolidated
financial statements for the fiscal year ended M&t, 2010 and 2009 was $195,000 and $205,00C:cteply.

Audit Related Fees
There were no fees billed by Moore Stephens fofgggional services rendered for assurance an@dedatrvices that were reasonably

related to the performance of the audit and areepmirted above under “Audit Fees” for the fisoahyended March 31, 2010 and for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 20C
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Tax Fees

The aggregate fees billed by Moore Stephens fdepsitonal services rendered for tax compliancetferfiscal year ended March 31,
2010 were $2,862 and $nil for the fiscal year endedch 31, 2009. The aggregate fees billed byeRriterhouseCoopers for professional
services rendered for tax compliance for the figear ended March 31, 2010 were $21,749 and $59¢t90e fiscal year ended March 31,
20009.

Item 16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards fo Audit Committees

Pursuant to NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 4350(a), aifpreprivate issuer may follow its home country pieein lieu of Rule 4350,
which sets forth the qualitative Listing Requirenseior NASDAQ listed companies. Rule 4350 requisesong other things, that a listed
company have at least three members on its auditnittee. The Company currently has an audit cotemitonsisting of two directors, one of
whom is deemed to be “independent” as defined iSNAQ Marketplace Rule 4200. The Company has obthinletter from independent
counsel in the British Virgin Islands certifyingathhaving a single member audit committee is nobibited by British Virgin Island law. See
“NASDAQ Exemptions and Home Country Practices.”

Item 16E. Purchasers of Equity Securities by thessuer and Affiliated Purchasers

In August of 2001, the Company's Board of Direceuthorized a program for the Company to repurchase $500,000 of its
common stock. This repurchase program does n@aiblthe Company to acquire any specific numbahafes or acquire shares over any
specified period of time. No stocks had been refpased up to March 31, 2006. On November 16, 20@6Company's Board of Directors
authorized an additional $1,000,000 for the Comjmargpurchase of its common stock under the sam&rchase program. This authorization
to repurchase shares increased the amount auttidoizeepurchase from $500,000 to $1,500,000. mytine fiscal year ended March 31,
2007, 260,717 shares valued at $1,328,560 werénased under this program. No shares were repwdttasing the fiscal year ended March
31, 2008. During the fiscal year ended March 8D 70,019 shares valued at $133,765 were purdhaster this program. No shares were
repurchased during the fiscal year ended Marcl2810. The Company may from time to time repurclshsges of its Common Stock under
this program.

Item 16F. Changes in Registrants Certifying Accoutants.
Not applicable.
Iltem 16G. Corporate Governance.

For a discussion of the ways in which the Compangiporate governance differ from those followedlbynestic companies under
the NASDAQ Marketplace listing requirements, seASNDAQ Exemptions and Home Country Practices” above.
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PART llI
Iltem 17. Financial Statements
Not applicable.

Item 18. Financial Statements

The following Financial Statements are filed ag pathis Annual Report:

Pagt
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfings F-1 through -2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2002@h0 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compselre
Income (Loss) for the years ended March 31, 200892nd 201! F-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockh¢ Equity for the
years ended March 31, 2008, 2009 and F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeralec
March 31, 2008, 2009 and 20 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-7 through |-4C
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4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
11.1
12.1
12.2
13.1
13.2
(1)
2

Item 19. Exhibits
Banking Facility Letter, dated January 5, 2010 leetwBonso and Standard Chartered E
Banking Facility Letter, dated February 23, 2016ne=n Bonso and the Hang Seng Bank Lim
Banking Facility Letter dated April 17, 2009 betwe®onso and Standard Chartered Bank
Banking Facility Letter dated March 6, 2009 betw8amso and the Hang Seng Bank Limited
Code of Ethics For Chief Executive Officer and CGlimancial Officer (2)
Certification of Officer Pursuant to Section 1358,adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 200z
Certification of Officer Pursuant to Section 1386,adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopteduant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopteduant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002
Filed as an Exhibit on Form -F filed with the Commission on October 20, 20

Filed as an Exhibit on Form -F filed with the Commission on August 13, 20
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Bonso Electronics International Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Bonso Electronics International Ind. subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the related consotidstegements of operations and comprehensivedbasges in stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the two years in the peended March 31, 2010. These consolidated finasta@é¢ments are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these consolidated financiatistants based on our audit. We also
have audited the adjustments to the March 31, #i6@8cial statements to retrospectively apply tbeoanting for discontinued operations as
described in Note 12. In our opinion, such adjestta are appropriate and have been properly appitéel were not engaged to audit, review,
or apply any procedures to the March 31, 2008 firrstatements of the Company other than withees the adjustments and, accordingly,
we do not express an opinion or any other formsstisance on the March 31, 2008 financial statentakéen as a whole.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the consalifiaancial statements are free of mat
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform, an audit of i&sriral control over financial

reporting. Our audits included consideration d¢iinal control over financial reporting as a bésisdesigning audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thippses of expressing an opinion on the effectisginé the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express nealswpinion. An audit includes examining, on a tesis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statets. An audit also includes assessing the atioguprinciples used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evalubgrmyerall financial statement presentation. \Bkele that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaepferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the consolidated financial position
of the Company as of March 31, 2010 and 2009 aadetbults of its operations and cash flows for edche two years in the period ended
March 31, 2010 in conformity with accounting pripleis generally accepted in the United States of aae

/s/ Moore Stephens

Moore Stephens

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

October 15, 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To Board of Directors and Stockholders of Bonsacttmics International Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated statement of oji@na and comprehensive loss, of cash flows arahahfges in stockholders' equity for the
year ended March 31, 2008, before the effectsefttjustments to retrospectively reflect the difiooled operations described in Note
present fairly, in all material respects, the rtssaf operations and cash flows of Bonso Elect®imi¢ernational Inc. and its subsidiaries for the
year ended March 31, 2008, in conformity with astmg principles generally accepted in the Unitéat&s of America (the 2008 financ
statements before the effects of the adjustmentuidsed in Note 12). These financial statemeettharresponsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express ami@pon these financial statements based on adit.awVe conducted our audit of these
statements in accordance with the standards d?tlidic Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt&s). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonatdeirance about whether the financial statemeat$es of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatiements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made dgagement, and evaluating the overall financiaéstant presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Notes 1(p) and 9(h) to the conat@idi financial statements, effective from Aprik007, the Company adopted FASB
Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertaintylncome Taxes - An Interpretation of FASB Statatido. 109").

We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply@egedures to the adjustments to retrospectivélgatethe discontinued operations
described in Note 12, accordingly, we do not expeesopinion or any other form of assurance abdether such adjustments are appropriate
and have properly applied. Those adjustments exdéed by other auditors.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Hong Kong

November 14, 200




Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Trade receivables, n
Inventories
Income tax recoverab
Other receivables, deposits and prepaym
Held-to-maturity investment
Current assets of discontinued operations
Total current asse

Deferred income tax asset
Goodwill
Brand name and other intangible assets, n¢

Property, plant and equipment
Buildings
Constructio-in-progress
Plant and machiner
Furniture, fixtures and equipme
Motor vehicles

Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment
Property, plant and equipment, |

Non-current assets of discontinued operations
Total asset

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Current liabilities
Bank overdraft— securec
Notes payabl
Accounts payabl
Accrued charges and depos
Income tax liabilities
Current portion of capital lease obligatic
Current liabilities of discontinued operations

Total current liabilities

Capital lease obligations, net of current portior
Income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities

Commitments

Stockholders equity
Common stock par value $0.003 per st
- authorized share- 23,333,33¢
- issued shares: 2009 and 2(- 5,577,639
outstanding shares: 2009 and 2+ 5,246,903 share
Additional pait-in capital
Treasury stock at cost: 2009 and 2+ 330,736 share
Accumulated defici

Note

10
12

10

11

13

March 31
200¢ 201C
$ $
8,043,53! 8,085,40!
1,084,75! 1,323,65!
6,284,29: 4,989,95!
987,44 1,569,33;
837,19: 1,359,06!
1,000,00! =
3,813,69 199,89:
22,050,92 17,527,30
4,008,14 3,854,61!
9,567,35: 9,601,73:
- 475,93:
19,972,37 20,037,45
3,276,31; 3,287,85;
447,79: 448,21
33,263,83 33,851,18
(29,889,58) (31,544,30)
3,374,25. 2,306,88!
5,70¢ -
29,439,02 23,688,80
385,51 68,58(
1,361,78 2,094,53;
3,103,50; 2,633,18
2,004,84. 1,934,26!
6,88¢ 6,88¢
130,20: 51,971
5,787,09! 1,097,72:
12,779,83 7,887,141
51,97: -
2,595,13! 2,595,13!
14,16: 19,06¢
16,72¢ 16,72¢
21,764,78 21,764,78
(1,462,32) (1,462,32)
(8,714,23) (9,371,91)



Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,392,961 2,240,17.
13,997,92 13,187,45

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 29,439,02 23,688,80

See notes to these consolidated financial stateament
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive Loss
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Year ended March 3:

Note 200¢ 200¢ 201(¢
$ $ $
(restatec
Net sales 19 45,495,62 40,378,19 28,543,27
Cost of sales (43,628,62) (34,707,29) (23,693,40)
Gross profil 1,867,00. 5,670,90! 4,849,87.
Selling expense (720,20 (649,37) (375,29()
Salaries and related co: (3,540,78)) (3,776,84) (2,538,67)
Research and development expet (883,30 (792,07)) (579,700
Administration and general expen: (3,350,88) (4,601,87) (2,011,11)
Amortization of brand nam 7 (200,000) - -
Impairment of goodwil 7 (842,82) - -
Impairment of brand nan 7 (1,597,39) - -
Impairment of share investment 7 (200,000 - -
Loss from operation 19 (9,468,38) (4,149,26) (654,907
Interest incomt 198,25! 126,54 102,68t
Interest expense (448,377 (209,26%) (69,106
Foreign exchange lo: (431,057 (278,94, (521,83)
Gain on disposal of proper 3,123,98 162,68: -
Other income / (expense 592,52 706,54 620,20’
Loss before income tax (6,433,050 (3,641,70) (522,949
Income tax benefit / (expense) 9 340,68 (208,00 (9,08%)
Loss from continuing operatiol (6,092,370 (3,849,71) (532,039
Loss from discontinued operations (including gaonf
disposal of $363,411), net of tax 12 (2,457,54) (3,734,70) (125,644
Net loss (8,549,91) (7,584,41) (657,68()
Other comprehensive income, net of 1
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net>f ta 567,43! 811,36¢ (152,79:)
Comprehensive loss (7,982,47) (6,773,041 (810,477)

(see note 12
Loss per shar

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 18 5,577,63 5,246,90. 5,246,90:

- basic and dilute
-Continuing operation (1.09) (0.79) (0.120
-Discontinued operations (0.49) (0.72) (0.09)
(1.5%) (1.45) (0.19)

See notes to these consolidated financial stateament
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholderEquity
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Common stock Treasury stocl Accumulater
othel
Retainer comprehensiv
income-
Additional  Treasunr earnings foreigr Total
Share Amount paic-in Share Amouni (Accumulate: currenc' stockholder
Issue( outstandir capita helc outstandin deficit) adjustment equity
$ $ $ $ $ $
Balance, March 31, 20( 5,577,63! 16,72¢ 21,764,78 260,71° (1,328,561 9,584,18. 1,014,15¢  31,051,29
Cumulative effect of
adoption of ASC 74! - - - - - (2,164,08) - (2,164,08)
Net loss - - - - - (8,549,91) - (8,549,91)
Foreign exchange
translation adjustment - - - - - - 567,43¢ 567,43¢

Balance, March 31, 20( 5,577,63! 16,72¢ 21,764,78 260,717 (1,328,561 (1,129,81) 1,581,59¢  20,904,73

Net loss - - - (7,584,41) - (7,584,41)
Shares repurcha - - - 70,01¢ (133,769 - - (133,769
Foreign exchange

translation adjustment - - - - - - 811,36¢ 811,36¢

Balance, March 31, 20( 5,577,63! 16,72¢ 21,764,78 330,73t (1,462,32) (8,714,23) 2,392,961  13,997,92

Net loss - - - - - (657,68() - (657,68()
Foreign exchang
translation adjustment - - - - - - (152,79) (152,797

Balance, March 31, 201 5,577,63! 16,72¢ 21,764,78 330,73t (1,462,32) (9,371,91) 2,240,17.  13,187,45

See notes to these consolidated financial stateament
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Year Ended March 3:

200¢ 200¢ 201(
$ $ $
(restatec
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss (8,549,91) (7,584,41) (657,68()
Loss from discontinued operatio 2,457,54. 3,734,70. 125,64!
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby operating activitie
Depreciatior 2,188,70I 2,281,68! 1,794,14!
Amortization 293,53¢ 171,67 164,14¢
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipmbioté 5) (3,123,98) (162,68)) -
Inventory allowanct 2,184,841 559,24( (108,36¢)
Bad debt allowanc 633,54! 1,959,41: (154,97()
Impairment of goodwil 842,82: - -
Impairment of brand nan 1,597,39: - -
Impairment of investment in a private comp. 200,00 - -
Others 141,68: (23,129 (54,52
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Trade receivable 1,476,30! (390,28) (83,929
Other receivables, deposits and prepaym (956,13) 1,806,74! (521,879
Inventories 913,93! 1,603,371 1,402,70:.
Deposits (155,129 155,12! -
Income tax recoverab (404,74, (580,589 (581,88)
Accounts payabl 330,46 (2,262,630 (470,31
Accrued charges and depos 629,74¢ (272,030) (70,57¢)
Notes payabli 126,93¢ (2,501,67) 732,74!
Income tax payabl (376,439 - (4,180
Deferred ta: (89,779 31,47¢ 4,907
Operating activities of continuing operatic 361,33° (1,463,99) 1,515,99i
Operating activities of discontinued operatis (1,172,370 (352,96() 1,970,23:
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating itieth (811,03)) (1,816,95) 3,486,22!
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidi - 1 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant andpeaent and land use righ 4,875,51: 563,71¢ -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipmt (2,558,72) (71,539 (490,53)
Acquisition of hel-to-maturity investment - (1,000,001 -
Proceeds from investments 559,49! - 1,058,70
Investing activities of continuing operatio 2,876,28! (507,819 568,17(
Investing activities of discontinued operations (124,72() 3,561
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing Hiets 2,751,56! (507,819 571,73:
Cash flows from financing activities
Repurchase of common stc - (133,76Y) -
Repayment of loan from lo-term borrowings 301,43 - -
Capital lease paymer (95,725 (178,519 (130,20
Net advance / (repayment of) from banking faetit - 85,32: (316,939
Financing activities of continuing operatic 205,70¢ (226,967) (447,13Y)
Financing activities of discontinued operations (376,080 299,48 (3,935,190
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing &ti (170,379 72,51¢ (4,382,33)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equis 1,770,15 (2,252,25) (324,37)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvaéents held in foreign currenci 307,18" 767,32. (271,86
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of ' 8,118,01! 10,195,36 8,710,42
Cash and cash equivalents, end of \ 10,195,36. 8,710,42 8,114,19.
Less: cash and cash equivalents at the end oftlre-ydiscontinued operations (541,37 (666,89 (28,789
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the— continuing operation 9,653,99: 8,043,53! 8,085,40!
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informatior
Cash paid during the year fc
Interest paic 692,23: 475,12¢ 69,10¢



Income tax paid, net of refur 155,97

Non-cash investing and financing activiti
Property, plant and machinery acquired under

Capital lease 374,19
Interest Income 139,23¢
Provision for uncertain tax positions upon adopao@pril 1, 2007 2,164,08

See notes to these consolidated financial statesmen
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies

Bonso Electronics International In¢‘the Compan”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, t*Groug”) are engaged in the designi
manufacturing and selling of a comprehensive lihelectronic scales and weighing instruments, tal@ounication products a
other products

The consolidated financial statements have beguaped in United States dollars and in accordantie génerally accepted account
principles in the United States of America. Thepamation of consolidated financial statements negunanagement to make estim
and assumptions that affect the reported amourdss#ts and liabilities and disclosure of contingesets and liabilities at the date
the consolidated financial statements and the tegammounts of revenues and expenses during tluetirep periods. Significa
estimates made by management include provisiong ragainst inventories and trade receivable, andahation of longived asset:
Actual results could differ from those estimar

The Group sustained operating losses in fiscalsyeaded March 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, includingtdoss of $657,680 for the

fiscal year ended March 31, 2010.

(@)

(b)

Notwithstanding the operating losses sustainetiendst three fiscal years, the accompanying cateted financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis. Managdrakewes the Group will have sufficient working @¢apto meet its financing
requirements based upon their experience andahs@éssment of the Group’s projected performaneditdacilities and banking
relationships.

On November 1 2008, the Company disposed of allstieres of a whol-owned indirect subsidiary, Gram Precision Scales
(“Gram”), at a consideration of US$1. As a result, the figuof Gram are included as discontinued operafjses note 12) in tl
financial statement:

Pursuant to an agreement signed March 30, 2009r&oHaushaltswaren GmbH & Co. K*Korong”), an indirect subsidiary of t|
Company, agreed to sell all of its major assets)prising trade receivables, inventories, intellatiproperty rights and toolings, ti
third party purchaser at a consideration of EUR39,881 (or USD 2,605,997). The Group decided d¢oidilate Korona after tl
completion of the sale. As a result, the figureKarona are included as discontinued operatioas (©te 12)

The significant accounting policies are as follows:

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include ahcounts of the Company and its subsidiaries aftmination of intereompan'
accounts and transactiol

Acquisitions of companies have been consolidatech fthe date on which control of the net assetsogredations was transferred to
Group.

Acquisitions of companies are accounted for usimegpurchase method of accounti
Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents are «term, highly liquid investments with original maitigs of three months or less. Cash equiva

are stated at cost, which approximates fair vakeabse of the shi-term maturity of these instrumen
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(©)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of costjetermined on a first-in, firstut basis, or market. Costs of inventories inclpdechas
and related costs incurred in bringing the prodtmtsheir present location and condition. Markelueais determined by reference
the selling price after the balance sheet dateooménagement estimates based on prevailing maditoons. The Compal
routinely reviews its inventories for their salddpiand for indications of obsolescence to detewmnif inventory carrying values ¢
higher than market value. Some of the signifidactors the Company considers in estimating thekatavalue of its inventorit
include the likelihood of changes in market andtamner demand and expected changes in market pfiocets inventories. As «
March 31, 2009 and 2010, inventories were statedaaket value, which is lower than their costs 6% 240 and $nil, respective

Trade receivables

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at thedadamount, net of allowances for doubtful accoant$ sales returns. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is the Group’s lessimate of the amount of probable credit losséke Group’s existing trade
accounts receivable. Bad debt expense is includtte general and administrative expenses.

The Group recognizes an allowance for doubtfuliked®es to ensure accounts and other receivableatreverstated due to
uncollectibility. Allowance for doubtful receivad® is maintained for all customers based on atyavfefactors, including the length
of time the receivables are past due, significaet-time events and historical experience. An &ufthd allowance for individual
accounts is recorded when the Group becomes awatsmmers’ or other debtors’ inability to meegittfinancial obligation, such as
in the case of bankruptcy filings or deterioratiothe customer’s or other debtor’s operating rssoit financial position. If
circumstances related to customers or debtors eha&stimates of the recoverability of receivabldshe further adjusted.

Investments

Investment in a capital guaranteed fund is classifis held-to-maturity and recorded at amortizet, @chile investment in a private
company is recorded at cost less any impairmetitdrconsolidated balance sheets. These investmengibject to impairment tests.

Deferred income taxes

Amounts in the consolidated financial statemernitsted to income taxes are calculated using thecjples of ASC 740 “Income

Taxes”. ASC 740 requires recognition of deferi@dassets and liabilities for the expected futareconsequences of events that have
been included in the financial statements or téxrns. Under this method, deferred tax assetdiabifities are determined based on
the temporary differences between the financiabrriépg bases and tax bases of assets and liabilissng enacted tax rates in effect
for the year in which the differences are expettegtverse. Future tax benefits, such as net tipgrass carry forwards, are
recognized as deferred tax assets. Recognizedelbtax assets are reduced by a valuation allogvéinbased on the weight of
available evidence, it is more likely than not teane portion or all of the deferred tax assetsnil be realized.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

1 Description of business and significaatccounting policies (Continued)

(9) Brand name

Brand name acquired as part of the purchase ofiadss is capitalized based on the estimated d&ievas at the date of acquisition
and amortized using the straight-line method olrerrelated estimated useful life of 15 years. Braaghe is assessed for impairment
according to the policy described in note 1(k).

(h) Lease prepayments
Lease prepayments represent the cost of land gises iin the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). Harse rights held by the
Company are included in intangible assets, redladdrom property, plant and equipment. Theysteged at cost and amortized on a
straight-line basis over the period of rights ofy@&ars.

0] Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets represent taxi licemggsh are stated at cost and are amortized ora@btdine basis over the related grar
useful life of 50 years, the shorter of the rentainierm of the license period or the expected udiééuto the Group. Taxi licens
entitle the Group to operate 5 taxis for 50 yearShenzhen, PRC. The purpose of holding thesesigseis to generate additio
income. All 5 taxi licenses were disposed of ity 3010, for a total consideration of $512,820,haatgain on disposal of $40,8(
Taxi licenses were assessed for impairment acaptdithe policy described in note 1(

)] Property, plant and equipment
0] Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestdecumulated depreciation. Leasehold land aitdirtys are depreciat

on a straightine basis over 15 to 50 years, representing tloetshof the remaining term of the lease or theeeigd usefi

life to the Group

(i) Other categories of property, plant and equipmentcarried at cost and depreciated using the &t-line method over the
expected useful lives to the Group. The principalal rates used for this purpose i

Plant and machinel - 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipme -20%
Motor vehicles - 20%
(iii) The cost of major improvements and bettermentapétalized, whereas the cost of maintenance aralreejs expensed in t

year when they are incurre

(iv) Any gain or loss on disposal is included in thesmitated statements of operations and compreheitsse.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
Impairment of long-lived assets incding goodwill and other acquired intangible assets

Long-lived assets held and used by the Group aaddible assets, excluding goodwill, are reviewadrpairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the iceyigmount of such assets may not be recoverahke Group evaluates
recoverability of assets to be held and used bypawing the carrying amount of an asset to fututaundiscounted cash flows to be
generated by the asset. If such assets are coadittebe impaired, the impairment loss is meashyeithe amount by which the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds the faievaflthe assets calculated using a discountedefaiash flows analysis. Provisions
impairment made on other long-lived assets ardafied in the consolidated statements of operatiodscomprehensive loss.

Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment reviethe evaluation of goodwill for impairment involvéno steps: (1) the
identification of potential impairment by comparitige fair value of a reporting unit with its camgiamount, including goodwill and
(2) the measurement of the amount of goodwill lInssomparing the implied fair value of the repogtumit goodwill with the carryin
amount of that goodwill and recognizing a lossliy ¢éxcess of the latter over the former. The Compaeasures fair value based
upon a discounted future cash flows analysis. @asethe assessment for the year ended March 30, 2Qorovision of $nil was
made by the Group as an impairment of goodwill @@hil; 2008: $842,821).

Capital and operating leases

Costs in respect of operating leases are charggdsigncome on a straight-line basis over thedeéasn. Leasing agreements, which
transfer to the Group substantially all the beseditd risks of ownership of an asset, are treatéftlae asset had been purchased
outright. The assets are included in propertyntdad equipment (“capital leasegid the capital element of the leasing commitnr
is shown as an obligation under capital leases |&&se rentals are treated as consisting of tapitbinterest elements. The capital
element is applied to reduce the outstanding otiligand the interest element is charged agaimdit 30 as to give a consistent
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balandstanding at each accounting period end. Assetsureler capital leases are
depreciated over the useful lives of the equivatemted assets.

Revenue recognitior

No revenue is recognized unless there is persuasidence of an arrangement, the price to the bigyfered or determinable, delive
has occurred and collectibility of the sales pigceeasonably assured. Revenue is recognized vitheand risk of loss are transferred
to customers, which is generally the point at wipobducts are shipped to the customer from oulifiesi Shipping costs billed to ¢
customers are included within revenue. Associatstiscare classified as part of cost of sales.

The Company provides to certain customers an atditione to two percent of the quantity of cerf@oducts ordered in lieu of a
warranty, which are recognized as cost of saleswthese products are shipped to customers frorfegilities. In addition, certain
products sold by the Company are subject to adidnitroduct quality warranty. The Company accroeg$timated incurred but
unidentified quality issues based upon historictivity and known quality issues if a loss is prbleaand can be reasonably
estimated. The standard limited warranty perioghis to three years. Quality returns, refundsatesband discounts are recorded net
of sales at the time of sale and estimated basg@astrhistory. All sales are based upon firm @wdeth fixed terms and conditions,
which generally cannot be modified. Historicallye have not experienced material differences betwee estimated amounts of
quality returns, refunds, rebates and discountstaadctual results. In all contracts, there iprice protection or similar privilege in
relation to the sale of goods.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

1 Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
(n) Research and development costs

Research and development costs include salarigsesitand contractor fees that are directly htitable to the conduct of research
development progress primarily related to the dgwalent of new design of products. Research anda@went costs are expensed in
the financial period in which they are incurred.

(0) Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred andalgded within selling expenses. The advertisingts were $119,398, $53,673
$903 for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2009 8d0,2espectively

(p) Income taxes

On April 1, 2007, the Company adopted Financialdsting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation M8, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes — An InterpretatiorF#SB Statement No. 109", now codified as part ofAB10 (Note 9). ASC 740
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in incotages recognized in financial statements and pitesca recognition threshold and
measurement attributes for the financial statemedgnition and measurement of a tax position takezxpected to be taken in a tax
return. ASC 740 also provides guidance on deretiogniclassification, interest and penalties, actimg in interim periods, disclost
and transition. The Company’s accounting polictoifreat interest and penalties as componentscofne taxes.

(q) Foreign currency translations

0] The Grouy's functional currency is the United States dolldre financial statements of foreign subsidiariegrghthe Unite
States dollar is the functional currency and whiekie certain transactions denominated in baited States dollar currenc
are translated into United States dollars at thehamge rates existing on that date. The translaifdiecal currencies in
United States dollars creates transaction adjugsmehich are included in net loss. Exchange diffiees are recorded in
statements of operations and comprehensive

(i) The financial statements of foreign subsidiarieeerg no-United States dollar currencies are the functianatencies, al
translated into United States dollars using exchaates in effect at period end for assets andlitiab and average exchar
rates during each reporting period for statemenbpérations. Adjustments resulting from translatmfnthese financii
statements are reflected as a separate componsgmaigholde’ equity in accumulated other comprehensive incc
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
Stock options and warrants

Stock options have been granted to employees,tdigeand noremployee directors. Upon exercise of the optiorglder can acqui
shares of common stock of the Company at an exeptise determined by the board of directors. Tihéoas are exercisable based
the vesting terms stipulated in the option agregmenplan.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC 820. FAABC 820 clarifies when markets are illiquid or tharket pricing may not
actually reflect the “real” value of an asset. harket is determined to be inactive and marketeps reflective of a distressed price
then an alternative method of pricing can be usedh as a present value technique to estimatedhie. FASB ASC 820 identifies
factors to be considered when determining whetheoba market is inactive. FASB ASC 820 woulddfiective for interim and
annual periods ending after June 15, 2009, witly @aloption permitted for periods ending after JaBe2009 and shall be applied
prospectively. The adoption of FASB ASC 820 hadmaterial effect on the Company’s financial statetsen

In May 2009, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 165 “Substdteents”. The objective of this statement isdtablish general standards of
accounting for and disclosures of events that oatter the balance sheet date but before finastaments are issued or are avail
to be issued. SFAS 165, which is now codified aSBASC 855 “Subsequent Events”, is effective far ititerim and annual periods
ending after June 15, 2009. The adoption of FASEAS5 did not have a material impact on the Comjsafigancial position, resul
of operations and cash flows. Effective FebruaryZ®10, the Company adopted Accounting Standardatép“ASU”) No. 2010-09,
“Subsequent Events (Topic 855): Amendments to @eRacognition and Disclosure Requirements,” whigtmoves the requirement
to disclose the date through which subsequent sVewe been evaluated. The adoption of the ASWalidhave a material impact on
the Company'’s financial position, results of opiersd and cash flows.

In June 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC 105, whathldishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codifica#is the source of
authoritative accounting principles recognizediy FASB to be applied in the preparation of finahstatements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. FASB ASE explicitly recognizes rules and interpretivieases of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) under federal securitgvs as authoritative GAAP for SEC registransSB ASC 105 is effective
for financial statements issued for interim andusiperiods ending after September 15, 2009. TddifiCation is effective for the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2010. AdoptioFASB ASC 105 did not have a material impacttmCompany’s
consolidated financial statements.

In August 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Stand#pdate No.2009-05 (“ASU 2009-05"), FASB ASC 820¢&8&uring Liabilities
at Fair Value”. ASU 2009-05 applies to all enstidat measure liabilities at fair value within geaf FASB ASC 820. ASU 2009-05
provides clarification that in circumstances in @thia quoted price in an active market for the idahtiability is not available, a
reporting entity is required to measure fair valserg one or more valuation techniques.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
Recent accounting pronouncements (@nued)

The amendments in ASU 2009-05 also clarify thatméstimating the fair value of a liability, a repog entity is not required to
include a separate input or adjustment to othartipelating to the existence of a restriction ratvents the transfer of the liability. It
also clarifies that both a quoted price in an &ctharket for the identical liability at the measusent date and the quoted price for the
identical liability when traded as an asset in etiva market when no adjustments to the quotecefche asset are required are L

1 fair value measurements. The guidance providédSid 2009-05 is effective for the first reportingrfpd beginning after issuance.
The adoption of ASU 2009-5 did not have a maténiglact on the Company’s consolidated financialestegnts

In September 2009, the FASB issued Accounting StatsdUpdate No. 2009-12 (“ASU 2009-12"), “Fair ValMeasurements and
Disclosures (Topic 820), Investments in Certaintie® that Calculate Net Asset Value per SharédtéoEquivalent)”. ASU 2009-12
provides amendments to Subtopic 820-10, “ Fair ¥&lleasurements and Disclosures — Overall 7, ferféir value measurement of
investments in certain entities that calculateasset value per share. This ASU also requiresadiscés by major category of
investment about the attributes of investmentsiwithe scope of the amendments in this Update. afimendments in this Update are
effective for interim and annual periods endingaf2ecember 15, 2009. The adoption of this guidalideot have a material impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009‘@@nsolidations (Topic 810): Improvements to Finah&eporting by
Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest EnstieThe amendments in this update are the reslHA&B Statement No. 167
“Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46 (R)”, atiis now codified as FASB ASC 810-10-50-2A “Cotidalion — Overall —
Disclosure — Variable Interest Entities” and iseetive for the interim and annual periods endingrdbecember 15, 2009. The
adoption of ASU No. 2009-17 did not have a matangdact on the Company’s consolidated financiakesteents

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-Garisolidation (Topic 810)'in which it clarifies that the scope of the deceein
ownership provision of the Subtopic and relatedlgnce applies to a subsidiary or group of assatdgta business or nonprofit
activity, but does not apply to sales of substanetestate and conveyances of oil and gas mirigtdas. ASU No. 2010-02 is
effective for the interim and annual periods endiftgr December 15, 2009. The adoption of ASU Nld.(02 did not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financialestents

In April 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-13, fmensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Effé@enominating the
Exercise Price of a Share-Based Payment AwardeilCtirrency of the Market in Which the Underlyinguity Security Trades”,
which is now codified as FASB ASC 718 “CompensatigBtock Compensation.” This Update provides amendsnenTopic 718 to
clarify that an employee share-based payment awiindan exercise price denominated in the currasfey market in which a
substantial portion of the entity’s equity secestirades should not be considered to contain @ittmmthat is not a market,
performance or service condition. Therefore, aityemtould not classify such an award as a liabititif otherwise qualifies as equity.
The update is effective for fiscal years, and imgueriods within those fiscal years, beginningoorafter December 15, 2010. The
Company does not expect the adoption of ASC 201@&ill Bave a material impact on the Company’s ficiahposition, results of
operations and cash flows.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

2 Allowance for doubtful accounts

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accountsf&dasch 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 comprise:

200¢ 200¢ 201¢

$ $ $

Balance, April 1 - 633,54! 2,592,95!
Write-off - - (767,989
Additions charged / (written back) to expense 633,54 1,959,41 (364,97()
Balance, March 3 633,54 2,592,95! 1,460,001

In fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, the Companggeized a provision of $633,545 for allowancesdoubtful accounts, for long
outstanding trade receivables from third party canigs, which the Company believed to be non-re@ler In fiscal year ended
March 31, 2009, the Company recognized a provisfdbil,959,413 for allowances for doubtful accourighen the Company
disposed of its Canadian subsidiary, Gram PreciStales Inc. (“Gram”), on November 1, 2008, Grasuéxl a promissory note to the
Company to repay $1,700,000, the amount due t€tmpany prior to the disposal, in installmentsnc8iGram had operating losses
during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009 ar82the recoverability of the full amount of $1,7000 in time was doubtful. As a
result, the Company recognized a bad debt provisiéi, 700,000, which was included in the allowanfm¥ doubtful accounts of
$1,959,413. The remaining provision of $259,413 tiwee result of trade receivables from third padgnpanies which the Company
believed to be non-recoverable. During the yededrMarch 31, 2010, the Company wrote off $767 f@88he non recoverable
amount on trade receivables from third party congmnAs of March 31, 2010, the Company had cadlé§240,000 from Gram. The
Company believed taht the recoverability of the agnimg $1,460,000 in time was doubtful, and corghto include this amount in t
allowances for doubtful accounts as of March 31,0

3 Inventories

The components of inventories as of March 31, 2092010 are as follow

200¢ 201(

$ 4
Raw materialt 2,592,55I 1,904,84.
Work in progres: 2,602,16! 1,850,391
Finished good 1,089,57 1,234,772
6,284,29. 4,989,95!

During the years ended March 31, 2008, 2009 an@,28dsed upon material composition and expectegeusaanagement wrote off
obsolete inventories of $2,184,840, $559,240 arild i&spectively, which were charged to the cortailed statements of operations
under cost of sales.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Investments

Investments represent an investment in a privaigpemy principally engaged in the biochemistry indus the United States of
America. The purpose of holding the investments wwagenerate additional income.

The private biochemistry company incurred contirsioperating losses and had a net liabilities pwsiti the past three
years. Management determined that the Companyéstment would be worthless without further fundargnerger; therefore, the
Company provided for a full impairment of this ist@ent during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, then@any invested in a one-year $1,000,000 bond ttramng of its banks. The
investment matured in July 2009 for $1,058,707.

Property, plant and equipment, net

During the years ended March 31, 2008, 2009 an@®,20dpreciation expenses charged to the consdlidéé¢ements of operations
amounted to $2,188,700, $2,281,689 and $1,794r&4pectively. As at March 31, 2008, 2009 and 2013; depreciated assets that
were still in use by the Group amounted to $5,4%51,85,014,827 and $30,426,568, respectively.

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Groug ank of its properties located in Hong Kong withed book value of $401,037 to
a third party at a consideration of $563,718 anderagain of $162,681.
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Interests in subsidiaries

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Particulars of principal subsidiaries as of Mardh 2009 and 2010 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation ar

Particulars c

kind of issued capitaPercentage of capithkeld by
Name of compan legal entity registered capit the Compan Principal activities
200¢ 201(

Bonso Electronic Hong Kong, HK$5,000,00t 100% 100% Trading of scales ar
Limited * limited liability (US$641,02¢ telecommunication
(“BEL") company products

Bonso Investment Hong Kong, HK$3,000,00t 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited limited liability (US$384,61¢

(“BIL™) company

Bonso Electronics PRC, US$12,621,22 100% 100% Production of scales and
(Shenzhen) Co. limited liability telecommunication
Limited company products
(“BESCL")

Bonso Advanced Hong Kong, HK$1,000,00t 100% 100% Investment holding
Technology Limited *  limited liability (US$128,20%

(“BATL™) company

Bonso Advance: PRC, US$4,933,90 100% 100% Investment holding
Technology (Xinxing) limited liability
Limited company

(“BATXXL™)

Modus Enterpris British Virgin HK$7,80( 100% 100% Investment holding

International Inc. * Island limited (US$1,000
(“MEN") liability
company

Korona Haushaltswaren Germany, EUR511,29 100% 100% Trading of scales
GmbH & Co. KG limited liability (US$795,48¢
(“Koron&") partnershi

Bonso USA, USA, limited US$ 1,00 100% 100% Trading of scale
Inc. (“Bonso USA”) liability

company

* Shares directly held by the Compa
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)
Brand name and other intangible asset

Brand name and other intangible assets are anaggé&allows:

Brand name Other intangible asse
March 31, March 31,

200¢ 201( 200¢ 201(
$ $ $ $
Cost 3,000,00! 3,000,00! 5,374,76 5,389,911
Less: accumulated amortizati (1,402,60) (1,402,60) (1,366,621 (1,535,301
Less: impairment brought forwa (1,597,39) (1,597,39) - -
- - 4,008,14 3,854,61!

As of March 31, 2008, management noted declinéisaércurrent and projected operating results and flaw's of Korona. Together
with certain other indicators, such as a drop llirggprices of Korona branded products, managemers of the view that the carryi
value of the Korona brand name might not be reahlerand therefore performed an impairment reviewhe brand

name. Management evaluated the recoverabilithebtand name in accordance with the requiremerdertASC 350 and ASC 360-
10-20, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-livédsets”. Based upon the analysis, managementndetd that the brand name
of $1,597,392 should be fully impaired as of Ma8dh 2008. Amortization expense in relation to ldraame was $200,000, $nil and
$nil for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2009 d@iD2respectively.

The components of other intangible assets arellasvi

March 31,
200¢ 201(¢
$ $
Land use right of factory land in Shenzhen, Guangd®RC 1,807,08: 1,697,86:
Land use right of factory land in Xinxing, Guangdoi®RC 1,712,11 1,681,35I
Taxi licenses in Shenzhen, Guangdong, | 488,94t 475,39¢
4,008,14 3,854,61

The land use rights for the factory land in Shenzdwed Xinxing were reclassified from property plant equipment to other
intangible assets for the year ended March 31, 2@08five taxi licenses were disposed of in JAY10, for a total consideration of
$512,820, with a gain on disposal of $40,809. Aimation expense in relation to other intangiblsets was $93,536, $171,677 and
$164,149 for each of the years ended March 31,2008 and 2010, respectively.

As of March 31, 2010, future minimum amortizatioqpenses in respect of other intangible assetssaf@laws:

$
2011 178,11¢
2012 174,73.
2013 174,73:
2014 174,73:
2015 174,73.
Thereafte 2,977,56:

Total 3,854,61!
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8 Banking facilities

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

As of March 31, 2010, the Group had general bankiwilities for bank overdrafts, letters of crediptes payable, factoring, st-
term loans and lonterm loans. The facilities are interchangeablehwibtal amounts available of $14,707,693 (2
$18,617,948). The general banking facilities z¢itl by the Group are denominated in United Stat#éard and Hong Kong dollar

The Group’s general banking facilities, expressediited States dollars, are further detailed #evi:

Amount available

Amount utilized

Amount unutilizec

Terms of banking
facilities as of

March 31, March 31, March 31,
200¢ 201C 200¢ 201C 200¢ 201C
$ $ $ $ $ $
Import and
export
Facilities
Letters 0
credit 12,564,10 8,717,94 1,361,78 2,094 ,53; 11,202,31 6,623,41
Including
suk-limit
of:
Notes
payable 10,897,43 7,051,28; 1,361,78 2,094,53; 9,535,64! 4,956,75I
Other
facilities
Factoring 4,964,10: 4,964,10: - - 4,964,10: 4,964,10:
Bank
overdrafts 1,089,74. 1,025,64. 385,51 68,58( 704,23( 957,06
18,617,94 14,707,69 1,747,30: 2,163,11; 16,870,64 12,544,58

# HIBOR stands for Hong Kong Interbank Offering ®at
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)
Banking facilities (Continued)

The US Dollar equivalent amounts of banking faieititutilized by the Group are denominated in thi®fong currencies

Amount utilized

March 31,
200¢ 201(
$ $
Hong Kong dollar: 1,747,30: 2,163,11.

The Prime Rate and HIBOR rate were 5.25% and 0.2d&annum, respectively, as of March 31, 2010. Hitime Rate is determined
by the Hong Kong Bankers Association and is sulifecgvision from time to time. Interest rates subject to change if the Compe
defaults on the amount due under the facility emdrin excess of the facility amounts, or at treedition of the banks.

Average amount of bank borrowings were $4,597,81B%2,005,718 for the years ended 2009 and 204pectively.

The weighted average interest rates of short-temolvings of the Group are as follows:

As of March 31

200¢ 201C
Bank overdraft: 5.75% 5.75%
Notes payabli 4.28% 3.02%
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

9 Taxation

(@) The companies comprising the Group are subjeax®h an entity basis on income arising in or detifrom Hong Kong, Germar
the PRC, the United States (“USAdnhd Canada. The tax rate of the subsidiaries tpgran Hong Kong was 16.5% for the y
ended March 31, 2010 (2009: 16.5%, 2008: 17.5%e 3Jubsidiary of the Group in Germany was regidter® a partnership
Germany, which was subject to a statutory tax o&t®4.17% during each of the three years in théogeznded March 31, 2010. 1
Group is not subject to income taxes in the Britidhgin Islands. The statutory tax rate in Canada USA was 36% and 34
respectively, for the three years ended March 810z

Hong Kong Tax

BEL, BATL and BIL are subject to the Hong Kong ptefax rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%, 2008: 17.5%nislgement of BEL has
determined that all income and expenses are offshiod not subject to Hong Kong profits tax. Assule BEL did not incur any
Hong Kong profits tax during the years presentedTBdid not have any assessable profits for the .y8derefore, no provision for
taxation has been made.

PRC Tax

BESCL is registered and operates in Shenzhen,Rit® Bnd is subject to a tax rate of 22% and 20%hferyears ended December 31,
2010 and 2009, respectively. BATXXL is registene&inxing, Guangdong, PRC, and was entitled t@gemption from PRC incon
tax for the two tax years ended December 31, 20608809, and will be entitled to a 50% discountrffBRC income tax for the three
years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012.

(b) On March 16, 2007, the PRC Enterprise Income Taw (the “EIT Law”’) was enacted by the PRC government. The EIT
effective January 1, 2008, imposes a uniform ta& of 25% for both domestic and foreigrvested enterprises and revokes the
current tax exemption, reduction and preferentightiments applicable to foreigmvested enterprises. However, there is a tram
period for enterprises, whether foreimivested or domestic, that were receiving preféaémax treatments granted by relevant
authorities at the time the EIT Law became effectiynder the grandfathering rules of the EIT Lamtegprises that are subject tc
enterprise income tax (“ElThate lower than 25% will continue to enjoy lowetesawith gradual transition to the new tax rato%
in five years from the effective date of the EITw.aEnterprises that are currently entitled to exéoms or reductions from tl
standard income tax rate for a fixed term may camito enjoy such treatment until the fixed terriess.

During the period from January 1, 2008 to MarchZ11,0, the Company'’s subsidiaries operating irRRE€ were subject to the EIT
Law and its standard tax rate of 25%, but the P&R8Sigliaries are entitled to the grandfathering imtives. For the tax years ended
December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, BECSL, the Copp&@RC subsidiary, was subject to a tax rate 86158% and 20%,
respectively. BESCL will be subject to a tax rat@2% and 24% for the tax years ended Decembe2®I) and 2011, respectively,
and a uniform tax rate of 25% for the tax year eéndecember 31, 2012 and thereafter. BATXXL wastledtto an exemption from
PRC income tax for the two tax years ended Dece@be2008 and 2009. BATXXL will be subject toax trate of 12.5% for the tax
years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, ilrmkvgubject to a tax rate of 25% thereafter.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

9 Taxation (Continued)

(c) Income is subject to taxation in the various caestin which the Company and its subsidiaries dper@he profit (loss) befo
income taxes by geographical location is analyzefbkows:

200¢ 200¢ 201c¢

$ $ $

Hong Kong 849,19¢ (1,665,70) 619,49¢
PRC (3,137,05) 443,81t (1,289,46)
Others (4,145,19) (2,419,82) 147,02¢
Total (6,433,05) (3,641,70) (522,949

Others mainly include the (loss) / profit from B&fthd the United State
(d)

200¢ 200¢ 201c¢

$ $ $

Deferred income ta 31,47¢ (204,77°) (4,907%)
Current income tax benefit / (expen 309,20: (3,226) (4,180)
Total income tax benefit / (expense) 340,68 (208,00:) (9,087%)

The components of the income tax benefit / (expelmggeographical location are as follov

200¢ 200¢ 201c¢

$ $ $

Hong Kong 419,78 (204,77) (9,087)
PRC (72,219 (3,226 -
Others (6,889 - -
Total 340,68( (208,009 (9,087
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

xation (Continued)

200¢ 200¢ 201(
$ $ $
Deferred income tax ass¢ 21,77¢ - -
Deferred income tax liabilitie (4,460 (14,162) (19,069
17,31¢ (14,167) (29,069

Deferred tax assets comprise the following:
200¢ 200¢ 201(
$ $ $
Tax loss carry forward 2,997,13. 1,759,13! 122,37¢
Others 21,77¢ - -
Less: Valuation allowance (2,997,13) (1,759,13) (122,379
21,77¢ - -
Less: current portion - - -
Non-current portior 21,77¢ - -

As of March 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, the Group d@ximulated tax losses amounting to $11,603,13058/368 and $556,2
(the tax effect thereon is $2,997,132, $1,759,118% $122,378), respectively, subject to the appro¥ahe tax authorities, whi
may be carried forward and applied to reduce futasable income which is earned in or derived frelong Kong and oth
countries. Realization of deferred tax assetscistsal with tax loss carry forwards is dependemtnugenerating sufficient taxal
income prior to their expiration. A valuation allance is established against such tax losses whaagament believes it is m
likely than not that a portion may not be utilizéds of March 31, 2010, the Grougpaccumulated tax losses of $556,267 will e

in 2013.

Changes in the valuation allowance consis

200¢ 200¢ 201c¢

$ $ $

Balance, April 1 1,167,98 2,997,13 1,759,13!
Charged / (credited) to income tax expe 1,829,14! (1,237,99) (1,636,75)
Balance, March 31 2,997,13. 1,759,13! 122,37¢
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Taxation (Continued)

The actual income tax expense attributable to rgsnfor the years ended March 31, 2008, 2009 a6 Adfered from the amour
computed by applying the Hong Kong statutory tdae fa accordance with the relevant income tax lava aesult of the following

200¢ 200¢ 201(
$ $ $
Loss before taxatio (6,433,051 (3,641,70) (522,949
Income tax benefit on pretax income at statutoty 2,187,23 1,238,18. 177,80:
Effect of different tax rates of subsidic
operating in other jurisdictior (357,007 (298,129 (24,459
Profit not subject to income t: 787,19: - 5,066,08.
Expenses not deductible for income tax purpt (753,69 (2,386,051 (5,019,42)
Tax effect of future temporary differenc - - (4,907%)
(Increase) decrease in valuation allowa (1,829,14) 1,237,99 1,636,75
(Provision made)/ reversal of provision as a restittevelopment
tax rules 306,09: - (4,180
Utilization of tax losses not previously recogni: - - (1,836,76)
Total income tax benefit / (expens 340,68 (208,00:) (9,087%)

Effective April 1, 2007, the Company adopted ASQ.74s a result of the adoption of ASC 740, the @any recognized
$1,169,777 increase in the liability for unrecoguizax benefits and penalties of $994,310, whicteveecounted for as a reductiol
the April 1, 2007 balance of retained earningse Tompany assessed the tax position during thal figar ended March 31, 20
and concluded that the same tax liability was tacéeied forward. The uncertain tax liabilities the years ended March 31, 2(
2009 and 2010 are as follow

200¢ 200¢ 201C

$ $ $

Balance, April 1 2,164,08 2,164,08 2,164,08
Increase in uncertain tax liabilities - - -
Balance, March 3 2,164,08 2,164,08 2,164,08

The Company’s accounting policy is to treat inteegsl penalties as components of income taxesof March 31, 2010, the
Company had accrued penalties related to uncdgaipositions of $994,310.

The Company files income tax returns in Hong Kahg,PRC and various foreign tax jurisdictions. Ehare two subsidiaries which
operate within each of the Company’s major jurigdits resulting in a range of open tax years. Tpendax years for the Company
and its significant subsidiaries range betweerfigoal year ended March 31, 2006 and the fiscat gaded March 31, 2010. The
provisions made as a result of these open tax easesubject to the final agreement with the tathanities.
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10 Leases
(a) Capital lease

Plant and machinery include the following amouptsdapitalized lease

March 31,
200¢ 201¢
$ $
Cost 661,37: 374,19!
Less: accumulated depreciati (407,46%) (80,139
253,90¢ 294,06:

During the years ended March 31, 2008, 2009 and.20te Group entered into additional capital leabBgations amounting
$360,691, $nil and $nil, respective

Future minimum payments under capital leases &aoth 31, 2010 with an initial term of more tharegrear are as follow:

$
Total minimum lease paymer 52,17:
Less: amount representing interest (20€)
Present value of net minimum lease payments (imatudurrent
portion of $130,201 as of March 31, 2010) 51,97:
Future minimum payments under capital lez
2011 51,97
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)
Leases (Continued

Operating lease

As of March 31, 2010, future minimum lease pagtaeén respect of nonancellable operating leases for factory, officenpises ar
staff quarters in Hong Kong, the PRC, Germany &ed.tnited States are as follov

$

2011 133,00(

Rental expense for all operating leases amount&3&@,033, $357,954 and $397,336 for the yearscehtech 31, 2008, 2009 a
2010, respectively

Commitments
Capital expenditures contracted at the balance slage but not yet provided for is as follov

March 31,
200¢ 201¢
$ $
Land use righ 356,66 -
Construction of factory building in Xinxing, Guargaly, PRC - 1,632,99
356,66! 1,632,99

In November 2006, the Group entered into a landrigée purchase agreement with Xincheng Hi-Tectubidal Estate to acquire the
right to use a piece of land of approximately 188,5quare meters for future expansion of produatagecity in Xinxing of
Guangdong, PRC. The total consideration was $132%2, A deposit of approximately $610,000 was paiduly 2007 and the balar
was paid in October 2007. During the year endecch&1, 2008, the Group prepaid $150,325 for thpiaition of the right to use
another piece of land in Xinxing at a total considi®n of $501,083. This prepayment was classiéigdther current assets in the
consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 200@. balance of this second piece of land was fudig puring the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2010.

In December 2009, the Company entered into a caotragreement to construct one factory buildingtenland in Xinxing owned

the Company for a total consideration of $2,038,2BBe remaining balance of $1,632,990 was to [ fpainstallment in accordan
with the progress of the construction. This camdton is expected to be completed by December 2011
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Discontinued Operations
On November 1, 2008, the Company disposed of tiseeinterests in Gram to a third party for $1. #tipulated in the agreement, the
Company agreed to forfeit an amount receivable f@nam of approximately $5,000,000, except for $@,300, of which monthly
payments of $10,000 were to be paid to the Compathe six months from December 2008 to May 2009 monthly payments of
$20,000 were to be paid from June 2009 until tileafuount of $1,700,000 was repaid.

On March 31, 2009, the Company’s German subsidi&oyona, sold its assets (accounts receivable ntavies, toolings and
intellectual property rights) to a third party. tdaa had no operations since April 1, 2009 andig im the liquidation process.

The following table summarizes the result of theiseontinued operations, net of income taxes.

Discontinued Operations (Korona and Gram)

200¢ 2009 2010
$ $ $
(restatec

Sales 17,190,88 10,722,37 -
Cost of Sale: (14,053,87) (11,218,72) (70,090
3,137,00: (496,35() (70,090
Selling expense (1,760,29) (1,148,10) (14,82)
Salaries and related co: (2,240,461 (1,480,81) (126,797
Administrative expense (1,285,66) (1,488,94) (169,28)
Operating los: (2,149,41) (4,614,20) (380,990
Interest incom: 4,84¢ 53,03¢ -
Other income 87,60¢ 668,30¢ 283,38t
Gain on disposal of proper (364,24, - -
Interest expense (244,629 (241,11) -
Foreign exchange ga 214,81 44,71¢ -
Income tax expenst (6,52¢€) (8,860 -
Gain from disposal of a subsidie- Gram - 363,41 -
Net loss (2,457,54) (3,734,70) (125,64)

The March 31, 2009 statement of operations andrsgtt of cash flows have been restated to refiectdiiowing reclassifications:

According to FASB ASC 205-20-45-3, “in a periodvtich a component of an entity either has beenodisg of or is classified as
held for sale, the income statement of a businesty @r statement of activities of a not-for-ptofi

entity (NFP) for current and prior periods shapjog the results of operations of the componemtuiting any gain or loss recognized
in accordance with paragraphs 360-10-35-40 and18680-5, in discontinued operations.” As a reghk, Company has revised the
consolidated statement of operations and compréfeimcome (“statement of operations”) and statenoécash flows, by
reclassifying the gain from disposal of a subsi@r$363,411 from continuing operations to disamntd operations.
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Discontinued Operations (Continued)

According to FASB ASC 810-10-45-1, “as consolidafiedncial statements are based on the assumtatrihey represent the
financial position and operating results of a gngtonomic entity, such statements shall not ireclyadn or loss on transactions am
the entities in the consolidated group.” Thereftime Company has revised the statement of opasatind statement of cash flows by
removing the waiver of loan to subsidiaries of $8,590 and the waiver of loan to subsidiaries feidale of $2,180,779 from
continuing operations and reclassified them toatitaoued operations. Also, we have revised thieNl@ by removing the loan
forgiveness from continuing operations of $3,690,58d by reducing other income by $2,180,779 849,087 to $668,308.

The above changes made to the statement of opesatiatement of cash flows and this Note 12 dichage any effect on the net
sales, gross profit, net loss, comprehensive lodsearnings per share for the fiscal year ended¢iMat, 2009. The changes affected
only the loss from continuing operations and lassifdiscontinuing operations in the statement @rafions and statement of cash
flows.

The carrying values of the assets and liabilitiethe disposal group classified as held for salatddarch 31, 2009 and 2010 were as
follows:

March 31 March 31
200¢ 201(
Assets: $ $
Cash and bank balanc 666,89: 28,78¢
Trade receivable 1,195,97. -
Inventories - -
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 1,950,83. 171,10:
Current assets of discontinued operati 3,813,69 199,89:
Property, plant and equipme 5,704 -
Deferred income tax assets - -
Non-current assets of discontinued operations 5,70¢ -
Total assets of discontinued operations 3,819,40. 199,89:
Liabilities:
Short term bank loar 3,935,19 -
Trade payable 166,76¢ -
Rent payablt - 714,71:
Accrued charges and deposits 1,685,13! 383,01.
Liabilities of discontinued operatiol 5,787,09! 1,097,72.
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Stockholders’ equity
Repurchase of common sto

In August of 2001, the Company's Board of Direcuthorized a program for the Company to repurcbhase $500,000 of its
common stock. This repurchase program does nagatblithe Company to acquire any specific numbehafes or acquire shares ¢
any specified period of time. No stock had beemrefpased when, on November 16, 2006, the CompBogrel of Directors
authorized another $1,000,000 for the Companyganghase its common stock under the same repurginageam. This authorizatic
to repurchase shares increases the amount autthésizeepurchase from $500,000 to $1,500,000. Btwrd of Directors believed
that the common stock was undervalued, and thaethechase of common stock would be beneficihéoCompany's shareholders.
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, 26D ,®&lL,328,560) shares were purchased under thiggmo No shares were
repurchased during the fiscal year ended Marcl2@@8. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009019 ($133,765) shares were
purchased under this program. No shares werealeased during the fiscal year ended March 31, 20t@ Company may from tin
to time repurchase shares of its common stock uthdeprogram.

Preferred stoc

The Company has authorized share capital of $100@010,000,000 shares of preferred stock, withyadue of $0.01 each, divid
into 2,500,000 shares each of class A preferreckstdass B preferred stock, class C preferredkstow class D preferred sto
Shares may be issued within each class from timi@me by the Companyg’ Board of Directors in its sole discretion withdht
approval of the shareholders with such designatipawer, preferences, rights, qualifications, latiitn and restrictions as the Bo
of Directors shall fix and as have not been fixadhie Company Memorandum of Association. The Company has rsteid an
shares of preferred stock as of March 31, 2

Dividends

No dividends were declared by the Company for ediche fiscal years ended March 31, 2008, 2009281, respectively.
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Stock option and bonus plan:

On September 7, 2004, our stockholders adoptedfé Stock Bonus Plan (tI“ Stock Bonus PIe") which authorizes the issuance
up to five hundred thousand (500,000) shares of€ttrapan’s common stock in the form of stock bon

The purpose of this Stock Bonus Plan is to (i) celkey employees to remain in the employment ofXbmpany or of any subsidiary
of the Company; (ii) encourage such employeesdarseor increase their stock ownership in the Campand (iii) reward
employees, non-employee directors, advisors anduttamts for services rendered or to be rendered tor the benefit of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries. The Companiebes$ that the Stock Bonus Plan will promote caritinof management and
increase incentive and personal interest in théanebf the Company.

The Stock Bonus Plan shall be administered by antittee appointed by the Board of Directors whichgists of at least two but not
more than three members of the Board, one of whb Bl a non-employee of the Company. The exigiogymittee members are
Mr. Anthony So and Mr. Woo Ping Fok. The Committees the authority, in its sole discretion: (idetermine the parties to receive
bonus stock, the times when they shall receive suerds, the number of shares to be issued, artdrtheterms and conditions of t
issuance of any such shares; (i) to construeiatetpret the terms of the Stock Bonus Plany, (iii

to establish, amend and rescind rules andaggns for the administration of the Stock Bomlan; and (iv) to make all other
determinations necessary or advisable for admnmgt¢he Stock Bonus Plan.

On March 23, 2004, our stockholders adopted thel Z0ck Option Plan (th“2004 Pla”) which provides for the grant of up to
hundred thousand (600,000) shares of the Comparynmon stock in the form of stock options, subjeccertain adjustments
described in the Pla

The purpose of the 2004 Plan is to secure key grapbto remain in the employment of the Companytamshcourage such
employees to secure or increase on reasonable tkeingommon stock ownership in the Company. CThenpany believes that the
2004 Plan promotes continuity of management aneased incentive and personal interest in the weetiathe Company.

The 2004 Plan is administered by a committee ap@diby the Board of Directors which consists diast two but not more than
three members of the Board, one of who shall beraemployee of the Company. The current commitieenbers are Mr. Anthony
So and Mr. Woo Ping Fok. The committee determthesspecific terms of the options granted, inclgdime employees to be granted
options under the plan, the number of shares sutgjexach option grant, the exercise price of egatlon and the option period,
subject to the requirement that no option may l@sable more than 10 years after the date ot gfEime exercise price of an option
may be less than fair market value of the undeglgihares of Common Stock. No options granted utideplan will be transferable
by the optionee other than by will or the laws e§dent and distribution and each option will bereigable during the lifetime of the
optionee only by the optionee.

The exercise price of an option granted pursuatiie®004 Plan may be paid in cash, by the surresfdgptions, in common stock, in
other property, including a promissory note frora tptionee, or by a combination of the above, adikcretion of the Committee.

-F-2¢-




14

(@)

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Stock option and bonus plans (Contindg
(Continued)
In October 1996, the Board of Directors approved1B96 Stock Option Plan and 1996 Non-Employeediirg’ Stock Option

Plan. Under the 1996 Stock Option Plan, the Compaay grant options of common stock to certain eygés and directors of the
Company for a maximum of 900,000 shares. The H386k Option Plan is administered by a committgeoaged by the Board of

Directors which determines the terms of optionsitgd, including the exercise price, the option@ésiand the number of shares to be

subject to each option. The exercise price ofomstigranted under the 1996 Stock Option Plan mdgdsethan the fair market value
of the common shares on the date of grant. Themuam term of options granted under the 1996 Stopkdd Plan is 10 years. The
right to acquire the common shares is not assignadept for certain conditions stipulated in tB8@ Stock Option Plan.

Under the 1996 Non-Employee Directors’ Stocki@ptPlan, the nommployee directors are automatically granted stuutions ol
the third business day following the day of eachuah general meeting of the Company to purchassggregate of 600,000 share
common stock. The exercise price of all optionanggd under the 1996 Non-Employee Direct@gick Option Plan shall be ¢
hundred percent of the fair market value per sbétbe common shares on the date of grant. Theérmam term of options grant
under the 1996 Non-Employee Directo8bck Option Plan is 10 years. No stock option meyexercised during the first six mor
of its term except for certain conditions providedthe 1996 Non-Employee DirectorStock Option Plan. The right to acquire
common shares is not assignable except for undéaieconditions stipulated in the 1996 Non-Empley@irectors’Stock Optiol
Plan.

In April 2003, the Company issued options to certiirectors and ni-employee directors of the Company to purchase greggte ¢
372,500 shares of common stock of the Company akartise price of $1.61. The options shall expitéMarch 31, 2013 and can
exercised at any time after granting. The exerprsges of these options were equal to the fairketavalue at the time of grant.
such options have been exercised during the yeaedeMarch 31, 2008 2009 and 20

In March 2004, the Company issued options téagemonemployee directors of the Company to purchase gneggte of 40,0(
shares of common stock of the Company at an excmige of $6.12. The options shall expire on Mag5, 2014 and can
exercised at any time after granting. The exerpisees of these options were equal to the fairketavalue at the time of grant.
such options have been exercised during the yealesdeMarch 31, 2008, 2009 and 20
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Stock option and bonus plans (Continued
(Continued)

In September 2004, the Company issued optionsrtaicgnon-employee directors of the Company to pbase an aggregate of 40,000
shares of common stock of the Company at an exepeise of $6.20. The options shall expire on Seybter 12, 2014 and can be
exercised at any time after granting. The exengigzes of these options were equal to the fairketavalue at the time of grant. No
such option was exercised during the years endedhvii, 2008, 2009 and 2010.

In December 2005, the Company issued options taioenon-employee directors of the Company to paseran aggregate of 30,000
shares of common stock of the Company at an exepeise of $4.50. The options shall expire on Ddwoend, 2015 and can be
exercised at any time after granting. The exengigzes of these options were equal to the fair @iavklue at the time of grant. No
such options had been exercised during the yedededarch 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010.

On November 16, 2006, the Board of Directors ofGeenpany voted to rescind the Company’s 1996 NomplByee Directors’ Stock
Option Plan (the “Non-Employee Directors’ Plan”)l Aptions previously granted under the Non-Empko{aErectors’ Plan continue
in full force and effect pursuant to their termsgoént.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, naeshar share options were granted under the 19@& sption plan.

The stock options summary as of Ma8t, 2010 is as follows:

Weighted

average

Number exercise

of options price

Balance, March 31, 20( 1,104,500 $ 4.1¢
Balance, March 31, 20( 1,104,500 $ 4.1¢
Retired (248,000 & 8.01
Balance, March 31, 2010 856,50( $ 3.01
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14 Stock option and bonus plans (Continued
(c) The following table summarizes the information atallistock options of the Company outstandingtddarch 31, 2010
Weighted
Number average Exercisable
Neighted averag outstanding a remaining life shares a
exercise pric March 31, 201( (years) March 31, 201(

$ 1.61 342,50( 3.C 342,50(
$ 2.5C 168,00( 2.C 168,00(
$ 2.5t 10,00( 1.6 10,00(
$ 3.6 196,00( 1.1 196,00(
$ 4.5C 30,000 5.8 30,000
$ 6.1Z 40,00( 4.C 40,00(
$ 6.2C 40,00( 4.5 40,000
$ 7.87¢ 30,00( 0.8 30,00(
$ 4.131 856,50( 2.5 856,50(

The intrinsic value of options outstanding and eisable was $157,550, $nil and $nil on March 310802009 and 201
respectively. The intrinsic value represents thestpx intrinsic value (the difference between thesing stock price of the Compasy’
common stock on balance sheet date and the exgrdis for both the outstanding and exercisabléoap) that would have be
received by the option holders if all options hagib exercised on March 31, 2008, 2009 and Z

New shares will be issued by the Company upon éuxercise of stock optior
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15 Related party transactions

The Group paid emoluments, commissions and/or dtamsly fees to its directors, officers and formeectors as follows

Mr. So Hung Mr. Fok
Year ende Gun Mr. Chung Kirr Wog
March 31, Anthony Wat Pin
Director, Chie
Executive
Officer anc
Treasunr Directot Directol
2008 $ 705,90:(i) $ 150,47¢ Nil
2009 $930,25! (i(iii) $162,50:(iii) Nil
2010 $ 800,00((i) $ 151,10¢ Nil
Mr. J. Mr. So Chul
Stewar Mr. Henry Mr. Georg:t Wah
Jackso
v Schluet O'Leary Albert
Chief Financie
Director ant Forme Officer anc
Directol Assistant Secreta Director (iv) Secretar
Nil $59,365 (ii Nil $ 36,10(
Nil $109,364 (i $ 240,00((v) $ 86,02¢
Nil $78,415 (i $ 60,00((v) $ 86,53¢
() Apart from the emoluments paid by the Group as shalove, one of the properties of the Group in H&iogg is als
provided to Mr. So Hung Gun, Anthony as part ofdospensatior
(i) The amount for the years ended March 31, 2008, 20092010 represented professional fees paid tlu&ehn & Associate
P.C., and the Grors SEC counsel in which Mr. Henry Schlueter is ohthe principals
(iii) The amount for the year ended March 31, 2009, deduwnpaid vacation payment of $114,872 and $13@5KIr. So Hun
Gun, Anthony, and Mr. Chung Kim Wabh, respectiveljhe vacation payment was paid in July 2(
(iv) Mr. George C Leary resigned from his position as director of @@mpany on November 16, 20(
(v) This represented a consultancy fee paid to Mr. @eQ’ Leary for provision of support and management ses/in German

for completing an asset deal to sell Koranassets (accounts receivable, inventories, tookmgl intellectual property righ
to a third party company, and for progressing ttpeidation of Korona

As of March 31, 2008, BEL had paid deposits of agpnately US$1,528,000 with regard to potentialdsiments in a commerc
residential building and a land use right in theCPRSubsequently, Mr. So, Chairman of Bonso decttetake up BELS potentie
investments and paid BEL the full amount of appmadely US$1,528,000 in September 2C
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16 Concentrations and Credit Risk

The Group operates principally in the PRC (inclgditong Kong) and grants credit to its customerhig geographic
region. Although the PRC is economically stalilés always possible that unanticipated eventsirifin countries could disrupt the
Group’s operations.
Financial instruments that potentially subject@r@up to a concentration of credit risk consistagh, accounts and notes receivable.

At March 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, the Company heditcrisk exposure of uninsured cash in bankgpfeximately $9,653,991,
$8,043,535 and $8,085,405, respectively.

A substantial portion, 29%, 45% and 57% of revemaes generated from one customer for the yearsdeidech 31, 2008, 2009 and
2010, respectively .

The net sales to customers representing at le8stof®et total sales are as follows:

Year Ended March 3:

2008 2009 2010
US¢$ 000 % us¢00c % USs¢¥ 00C %
Sunbeam Products, In 13,09¢ 29 17,99( 45 16,29¢ 57
Gottl Kern + Sohn GMBF 3,487 8 3,91¢ 10 2,57¢ 9
Pitney Bowes Inc 2,92¢ 6 5,00¢ 12 2,30( 8
TTI Tech Co. Ltc 9,14¢ 20 4,512 11 2,125 7
Global Link Corporation Ltd. 8,574 19 2,24: 6 82( 3
82 84 84

The following customers had balances greater ti8d6 af the total accounts receivable as of March2B09 and 2010:

March 31,

2009 2010
uUSs¢0oc % US¢ 00C %
Sunbeam Products, In 38¢ 36 457 35
Pitney Bowes Inc. 59¢ 55 24¢ 19
il ___ o
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Employee retirement benefits and severance paymeatiowance

With effect from January 1, 1988, BEL, a whi-owned foreign subsidiary of the Company in Hong &omplemented a defin
contribution plan (the “Plan™ith a major international insurance company tovjate life insurance and retirement benefits fo
employees. All permanent full time employees whiagd BEL before December 2000, excluding factorykeocs, are eligible to jo
the provident fund plan. Each eligible employeat tthooses to participate in the Plan is requicedontribute 5% of their montt
salary, while BEL is required to contribute from 5% 10% depending on the eligible employesalary and number of years
service.

The Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPRias introduced by the Hong Kong Government, andneented in December 2000. B

joined the MPF by implementing a plan with a majdernational insurance company. All permanent ¢i&iong full time employees
who joined BEL on or after December 2000, excludaxjory workers, must join the MPF, except fordhavho joined the Plan beft

December 2000. Both the employee’s and employamnsributions to the MPF are 5% of the eligible éogpe’s monthly salary and

are subject to a maximum contribution of HK$1,006$128) per month.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Gi®ugquired to make contributions for each empdogerates based upon the
employee’s standard salary base as determinedetdgdhl Social Security Bureau, to a defined cbotion retirement scheme
organized by the local Social Security Bureau speet of the retirement benefits for the Group’playees in the PRC.

The contributions to each of the above schemesamgnized as employee benefit expenses when thwe and are charged to t
consolidated statement of operations. The Grougpéd contributions to the above schemes for treeyended March 31, 2009 and
2010 amounted to $324,882 and $276,187, respectividle Group has no other obligation to make paymim respect of retirement
benefits of the employee

According to the New Labor Law in the PRC which veffective on January 1, 2009, a company is reduwgrovide one mon's of
salary for each year of service as a severance gratyr\s such, the company recognized a provisi&668,779 in the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2010 for severance payments fiiristdne PRC (2009: $785,438). The accrued sexargpayment allowance is
reviewed every yea
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Loss per share

Year ended March 3

200¢ 200¢ 201C

Loss applicable to common shareholc
— continuing operation $ (6,092,37) $ (3,849,71) $ (532,03)
— discontinued operations $ (2,457,54) $ (3,734,70) $ (125,64
Net loss $ (8,549,91) $ (7,584,41) $ (657,680
Weighted average shares outstanc 5,577,63 5,246,90: 5,246,90:
Loss per shar- continuing operation $ (1.09 $ 079 $ (0.10
Loss per shar- discontinued operatior $ (049 $ (0.72) $ (0.0%)
Net loss per share, basic and dilu $ (1.59) $ (145 $ (0.1%)

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing net kvvailable to common shareholders by the weightedage number of shares of
common stock outstanding. Diluted earnings pereslsacomputed in a manner consistent with thaiasfdearnings per share while
giving effect to all potentially dilutive shares @dmmon stock that were outstanding during theogefncluding stock options.

The diluted net loss per share is the same asatbie bet loss per share for the years ended MdrcB(®9 and 2010, as all potential

ordinary shares (856,500 shares) from the exeofistock options are antilutive and are therefore excluded from the corapaoih of
diluted net loss per share.
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19 Business segment informatiot

(a) The Group is organized based on the productséraftUnder this organizational structure, the G's operations can be classified |
three business segments, Scales, Telecommunidatimlucts and Other

Scales operations principally involve productiod amarketing of sensor-based scales products. Thelsele bathroom, kitchen,
office, jewelry, laboratory, postal and industables that are used in consumer, commercial austinal applications.

Telecommunication Products operations principaiiyolve production and modification of two-way rasliand cordless telephones
that are used in consumer and commercial applitsitio

The “Others” segment is a residual, which prindipaicludes the activities of (i) tooling and mowdtarges for scales and
telecommunication products, and (ii) sales of scnaperials.

The accounting policies of the Group’s reportalglgnsents are the same as those described in theéptiescof business and
significant accounting policies.

Summarized financial information by mesds segment as of March 31, 2008, 2009 and 2G)falows:

Identifiable Depreciatiol
Operating assets as anc Capita
Net sale profit /(loss March 3: amortizatiol expenditur
$ $ $ $ $
2010
Scales 25,171,84 1,140,01 8,536,22 656,62! 224,66t
Telecommunication Produc 3,021,633 (925,489 3,870,02 730,41! 265,87
Others 349,79! 135,12: 68,86 - -
Total operating segmen 28,543,27 350,65: 12,475,10 1,387,041 490,53
Corporate - (1,005,551 11,013,80 571,25¢ -
Group 28,543,27 (654,90:) 23,488,91 1,958,29: 490,53
Discontinued operatior 199,89:
Total Assets 23,688,380
2009
Scales 30,352,49 150,86t 8,706,35! 823,56 32,76¢
Telecommunication Produc 9,475,17! (2,065,69) 6,002,98! 916,11! 38,77
Others 550,52! 99,09¢ 42,10¢ - -
Total operating segmen 40,378,19 (1,815,72) 14,751,44 1,739,67! 71,53¢
Corporate - (2,333,53) 10,868,17 713,68 -
Group 40,378,19 (4,149,26) 25,619,62 2,453,36! 71,53¢
Discontinued operatior 3,819,40.
Total Assets 29,439,02
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19 Business segment information (Continued
(a) (Continued)
Identifiable Depreciatiol
Operatiny assets as anc Capita
Net sale profit / (loss March 3: amortizatiol expenditur
2008
Scales 26,649,04 (3,513,361 7,809,11. 608,28 315,58t
Telecommunication Produc 18,597,93 (2,561,41) 10,426,82 1,092,02i 489,78¢
Others 248,63 44,75¢ 58,79¢ - -
Total operating segmen 45,495,62 (6,030,02) 18,294,74 1,700,31. 805,37
Corporate - (3,438,35) 15,749,51 781,92 1,753,34.
Group 45,495,62 (9,468,38) 34,044,25 2,482,23 2,558,72!
Discontinued operatior 7,741,591
Total Assets 41,785,84
Operating profit / (loss) by segment equals tofsdrating revenues less expenses directly attrikeitalthe generation of the segment’
operating revenues. Operating loss of the corp@agiment consists principally of salaries andedlaosts of administrative staff, ¢
administration and general expenses of the Grédgntifiable assets by segment are those assetarthased in the operation of that
segment. Corporate assets consist principallyasti@nd cash equivalents, deferred income taxsaasétother identifiable assets not
related specifically to individual segments.
(b) The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong, the PRB&rmany, Canada and the United States. The manwfaof components a

their assembly into finished products and reseamth development are carried out in the PRC. ThegH¢ong office is mainl
responsible for the purchase of raw materials armhgement of shipments. Subsidiaries in Germayaga and the United Ste
were responsible for the distribution of electrositales and telecommunication products in Europk Maorth America. As tt
operations are integrated, it is not practicablaligiinguish the net income derived among the #igs/in Hong Kong, the PR
Germany, Canada and the United Ste

Total property, plant and equipment, net by gedgjicg areas are as follows:

March 31 March 31 March 31

200¢ 200¢ 201¢

$ $ $

Hong Kong 1,931,15. 1,672,41 1,180,71
The PRC 3,960,521 1,701,83 1,126,16!
United States 51,52; - -
Total property, plant and equipment 5,943,19 3,374,25. 2,306,88!
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19 Business segment information (Continued

(c) The following is a summary of net export sales bpgraphical areas, which are defined by the fihgdraent destination, constituti
10% or more of total sales of the Company for tharg ended March 31, 2008, 2009 and 2

Year ended March 3:

2008 2009 2010
$ % $ % $ %
United State! 29,585,94 65 26,923,18 67 19,798,91 69
Germany 5,361,89! 12 4,782,28I 12 3,922,77. 14
Other EC countrie 6,652,23I 14 2,858,23! 7 685,22 3
Asia and other 3,895,54. 9 5,814,49 14 4,136,35: 14
45,495,62 10C 40,378,19 10C 28,543,27 10C

(d) The details of sales made to customers constitdi®g or more of total sales of the Company ar@bes:

Year ended March 3:

Busines
segmer 2008 2009 2010
$ % $ % $ %
Sunbeam Product
Inc. Scales 13,097,83 29 17,990,41 45 16,298,23 57
Gottl Kern + Sohr
GMBH Scales 3,487,24. 8 3,913,10: 1C 2,575,64. 9
Pitney Bowes Inc ~ Scales 2,926,36! 6 5,005,64: 12 2,300,37! 8
Tele-
communication
TTI Tech Co., Ltd  Products 9,147,73! 20 4,511,622 11 2,126,57. 7
Tele-
Global Link communication
Corporation Ltd. Products 8,574,01 19 2,241,97! 5 819,85. 3
37,233,19 82 33,662,76 83 24,120,67 84
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
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(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Fair value of financial instruments

Effective April 1, 2008, we adopted ASC 820 (fortyeBSFAS No. 157), “Fair Value Measurements” (“A820"). ASC 820 clarifies
the definition of fair value, prescribes methodsrfeeasuring fair value and establishes a fair vhlagarchy to classify the inputs used
in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1-Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices irvaatiarkets for identical assets or liabilities &lale at the measurement date.

Level 2-Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices foilaimssets and liabilities in active markets, gdoprices for identical or similar
assets and liabilities in markets that are nowvacihputs other than quoted prices that are obsésyand inputs derived from or

corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3-Inputs are unobservable inputs which réflee reporting entity's own assumptions on whatagptions the market
participants would use in pricing the asset oriligtbased on the best available information.

The adoption of ASC 820 did not have a materialdotn our fair value measurements as the fairevafuhe Group's assets or
liabilities do not differ from their book value.
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Exhibit 12.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Anthony So certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 2§f-Bonso Electronics International Inc. (the “Caang”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report shaesontain any untrue statement of a material daamit to state a material fi
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statements mwade, not misleading with respect to
period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd other financial information included in tlisnual report, fairly present in
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the Company aardd, for, the periods presented in this an
report;

4. The Company's other certifying officer and nifyssse responsible for establishing and maintainitigclosure controls a
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}kmnd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchan
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Compamyg have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls @odedures, or caused such disclosure controlgpeswkdures to be desigr
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrmédgion relating to the Company, including its caidated subsidiaries, is me
known to us by others within those entities, paftidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared;

b. Designed such internal control ovaeficial reporting, or caused such internal corgv@r financial reporting to |
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financigborting and the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principles

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the @amy's disclosure controls and procedures and miexsen this report ol
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disc®santrols and procedures as of the end of thegeovered by this report basec
such evaluations; and

d. Disclosed in this report any changéhin Company's internal control over financial mtipg that occurred during t
period covered by the annual report that has naditeraffected, or is reasonably likely to mategadlffect, the Company's inter
control over financial reporting.

5. The Company's other certifying officer(s) andhdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatianternal controls ov
financial reporting, to the Company's auditors #melaudit committee of Company's Board of Directarspersons performing the equiva
function):

a. All significant deficiencies and maaérweaknesses in the design or operation of ialecontrols over financi
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffect the Company's ability to record, processnmiarize and report financ
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not materiakttinvolves management or other employees who hasignificant role in tr
Company's internal controls over financial repaytin

Date: October 15, 2010

[s/ Anthony So
Anthony So, President, Chief Executive Officer dmdasurer



Exhibit 12.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Albert So certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 2§f-Bonso Electronics International Inc. (the “Caang”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report shaesontain any untrue statement of a material daamit to state a material fi
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statements mwade, not misleading with respect to
period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd other financial information included in tlisnual report, fairly present in
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the Company aardd, for, the periods presented in this an
report;

4. The Company's other certifying officer and nifyssse responsible for establishing and maintainitigclosure controls a
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}kmnd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchan
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f)) for the Compamd have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls @odedures, or caused such disclosure controlgpeswkdures to be desigr
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrmédgion relating to the Company, including its caidated subsidiaries, is me
known to us by others within those entities, paftidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared;

b. Designed such internal control ovaeficial reporting, or caused such internal corgv@r financial reporting to |
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financigborting and the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principles

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the @amy's disclosure controls and procedures and miexsen this report ol
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disc®santrols and procedures as of the end of thegeovered by this report basec
such evaluations; and

d. Disclosed in this report any changéhin Company's internal control over financial mtipg that occurred during t
period covered by the annual report that has naditeraffected, or is reasonably likely to materadiffect, the company's inter
control over financial reporting.

5. The Company's other certifying officer(s) andhdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatianternal controls ov
financial reporting, to the Company's auditors d@hd audit committee of the Company's Board of Does (or persons performing !
equivalent function):

a. All significant deficiencies and maaérweaknesses in the design or operation of ialecontrols over financi
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffect the Company's ability to record, processnmiarize and report financ
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not materiakttinvolves management or other employees who hasignificant role in tr
Company's internal controls over financial repaytin

Date: October 15, 2010

[s/ Albert So
Albert So, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary




EXHIBIT 13.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbadsy Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of sertl350, chapter 63 of title 18, United St
Code), each of the undersigned officers of BonsxtEbnics International, Inc., a British Virgin dslds international business company
“Corporation”), does hereby certify, to such offiseknowledge, that:

The Annual Report on Form 20-F for the yeaded March 31, 2010 (the “Form 20-F%) the Corporation fully complies with t
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S@egrExchange Act of 1934, as amended and infaomatontained in the Form 20-fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the Corporati

Date: October 15, 2010

/sl Anthony Sc
Anthony Sa
President, Chief Executive Officer and Treas!



Exhibit 13.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbaxdsy Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of sertl350, chapter 63 of title 18, United St
Code), each of the undersigned officers of BonstEbnics International, Inc., a British Virgin dsids international business company
“Corporation”), does hereby certify, to such offissknowledge, that:

The Annual Report on Form 20-F for the yeaded March 31, 2010 (the “Form 20-F%) the Corporation fully complies with t
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&esrExchange Act of 1934, as amended and infdomatontained in the Form 20-fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the Corporati

Date: October 15, 2010
/s/ Albert Sc
Albert So

Chief Financial Officer and Secrete



